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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees
of Cornell University

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cornell University (the
“University”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 and of cash
flows for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the University’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1200 Bausch & Lomb Place, Rochester, NY 14604-2705
T: (585) 232 4000, F: (585) 454 6594, www.pwc.com/us
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Cornell University as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 and the
changes in their net assets for the year ended June 30, 2019 and their cash flows for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the University changed the manner in
which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its consolidated financial statements as a not-
for-profit entity in 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

We previously audited the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the
related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended (the statement of
activities is not presented herein), and in our report dated November 1, 2018, we expressed an unmodified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the
accompanying summarized financial information as of June 30, 2018 and for the year then ended is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as awhole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30,
2019 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. The information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.



-

pwc

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 17,
2019 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2019. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

DreesniiheadCappra S

Rochester, New York
October 17, 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 AND JUNE 30, 2018 (in thousands)

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 234,539 % 241,127
Accounts receivable, net (note 3-A) 550,060 518,762
Contributions receivable, net (note 3-B) 804,904 826,109
Prepaid expenses and other assets 141,274 137,030
Investments (note 4) 7,756,468 7,503,029
Land, buildings, and equipment, net (note 5) 4,347,909 4,297,047
Funds held in trust by others (note 6) 133,180 113,795
Total assets $ 13,968,334 $ 13,636,899
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 643,679 $ 592,141
Deferred revenue and other liabilities 244,355 247,358
Obligations under split interest agreements (note 6) 134,087 135,331
Deferred benefits (note 7) 605,741 621,348
Funds held for others (note 8) 100,827 108,195
Obligations under capital leases (note 10) 119,022 122,552
Bonds and notes payable (note 9) 1,486,958 1,305,651
Total liabilities 3,334,669 3,132,576
Net assets (note 12)
Without donor restrictions 3,422,627 3,437,286
With donor restrictions 7,211,038 7,067,037
Total net assets 10,633,665 10,504,323
Total liabilities and net assets $ 13,968,334 % 13,636,899

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR-ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
WITH SUMMARIZED INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR-ENDED JUNE 30,2018 (in thousands)

Without Donor With Donor
L L 2019 Total 2018 Total
Restrictions Restrictions
Operating revenues
Tuition and fees (scholarship allowance
$412,029 and $385,158) $ 770,907 $ - $ 770,907 $ 726,621
State and federal appropriations 151,421 - 151,421 150,632
Grants, contracts and similar agreements
Direct 679,599 - 679,599 656,496
Indirect cost recoveries 176,501 - 176,501 159,792
Contributions 82,713 156,303 239,016 242,965
Investment return, distributed 193,055 139,352 332,407 336,914
Medical Physician Organization 1,116,384 - 1,116,384 1,068,163
Auxiliary enterprises 166,442 - 166,442 167,391
Edu;atlonal activities and other sales and 712,130 ) 712,130 638,303
services
Net assets released from restrictions 333,961 (333,961) - -
Total operating revenues 4,383,113 (38,306) 4,344,807 4,147,277
Operating expenses (Note 11)
Compensation and benefits 2,884,000 - 2,884,000 2,729,643
Supplies, services and other 1,063,625 - 1,063,625 1,010,193
Maintenance and facilities 139,262 - 139,262 127,907
Interest (note 9) 57,338 - 57,338 51,541
Depreciation 304,818 - 304,818 307,109
Total operating expenses 4,449,043 - 4,449,043 4,226,393
Ch?”S? in net assets from operating (65,930) (38,306) (104,236) (79,116)
activities
Nonoperating revenues and (expenses)
Statg gppropnauons for capital 25338 i 25338 33,930
acquisitions
Grants, contracts and similar agreements ) ) ) 7 4471
for capital acquisitions ’
Contributions for capital acquisitions, 5328 170,878 176,206 179,680
trusts and endowments
IrTvegtment return, net of amount 29,722 63,302 93,024 290,615
distributed
Change in value of split interest 2,101 508 2,309 559
agreements
Pension and postretirement changes 31,399 - 31,399 45,581
Swap interest and change in value of (78,091) ) (78,091 23,601

interest rate swaps
Other (16,823) 216 (16,607) (22,587)

Net assets released for capital

- - 52,297 (52,297) - -
acquisitions and reclassifications
Chgnge in net assets from non-operating 51.271 182,307 233578 558,820
activities
Change in net assets (14,659) 144,001 129,342 479,704
Net assets, beginning of the year 3,437,286 7,067,037 10,504,323 10,024,619
Net assets, end of the year $ 3,422,627 % 7,211,038 $ 10,633,665 $ 10,504,323

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS-ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND JUNE 30, 2018 (in thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

6

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 129,342 % 479,704
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided/(used) by operating activities
:;?jcoe;:;;rtc;m contributions for capital acquisitions, trusts and (151,143) (204,423)
Depreciation and amortization 295,800 298,981
Net realized and unrealized (gain)/loss on investments (363,277) (544,723)
Pension and postretirement changes (31,399) (45,581)
Change in unrealized (gain)/loss interest rate swaps 61,549 (44,840)
Bond call premium, bond premium and issuance costs (1,114) -
Loss on disposals of land, building, and equipment 1,449 1,226
Other adjustments (2,580) (2,877)
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable, net, other than student loans (35,676) (52,555)
Contributions receivable, net 21,205 76,737
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,244) (3,533)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (17,047) 22,335
Deferred revenue and other liabilities (1,456) 11,285
Obligations under split interest agreements (20,629) (1,006)
Deferred benefits 15,792 10,456
Net cash provided/(used) by operating activities (103,428) 1,186
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from the sale and maturities of investments 6,014,440 10,842,078
Purchase of investments (5,902,760) (10,622,635)
Acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment (net) (344,457) (312,591)
Student loans granted (9,932) (9,744)
Student loans repaid 11,649 15,475
ﬁtzr;tg;;r;::nds held for others, net of unrealized (gain)/loss on (9,210) (36,114)
Net cash used by investing activities (240,270) (123,531)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from contributions for capital acquisitions, trusts and
endowments
Investment in endowments 124,483 151,571
Investment in physical plant 23,427 50,488
Investment subject to living trust agreements 3,233 2,364
Principal payments of bonds, notes payable and capital leases (89,219) (33,265)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes payable 275,619 15,680
Bond call premium, bond premium and issuance costs 1,114 -
Government advances for student loans (1,547) (4,631)
Net cash provided by financing activities 337,110 182,207
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (6,588) 59,862
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 241,127 181,265
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 234,539 % 241,127
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $ 65,979 % 59,442
Increase/(decrease) in construction payables, non-cash activity $ 7,036 % (22,951)
Assets acquired under capital leases $ 396 % 56,350
Gifts-in-kind $ 5241 % 2,586



NOTES TO THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Description of the Organization

Founded in 1865, Cornell University (“the University”) is dedicated to a mission of learning,
discovery, and engagement. Cornell is a private university, the federal land-grant institution of New
York State, and a member of the Ivy League. Cornell administers four contract colleges, which

are also units of the State University of New York. Described as the first truly American university
because of its founders’ revolutionary egalitarian and practical vision of higher education, the
University is dedicated to its land-grant mission of outreach and public engagement. Cornell’s
community includes nearly 25,000 students, 4,000 faculty, and approximately 287,000 alumni who
live and work across the globe.

The University comprises colleges and schools in Ithaca, New York (seven undergraduate units

and four graduate and professional units), New York City (two medical graduate and professional
units, together with its physician organization referred to collectively as “Weill Cornell Medicine” or
“WCM?”), and Doha, Qatar (the “Weill Cornell Medicine - Qatar”). Also in New York City, the Cornell
Tech campus offers graduate programs in applied sciences, including two programs offered jointly
with the Technion - Israel Institute of Technology under the auspices of the Joan and Irwin Jacobs
Technion-Cornell Institute.

The University is subject to the common administrative authority and control of the Cornell
University Board of Trustees. The University is prohibited from using funds attributable to the
contract colleges (i.e., those colleges operated by the University on behalf of New York State) for
other units of the University. Except as specifically required by law, the contract and endowed
colleges at Ithaca, Cornell Tech, and WCM are, to the extent practicable, governed by common
management principles and policies determined at the private discretion of the University. In
addition to the activities of the endowed and contract colleges, the University’s subsidiaries and
certain affiliated organizations are included in the consolidated financial statements. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are categorized
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The University’s Board of Trustees, with consideration to the actions, reports, information, advice,
and counsel provided by its duly constituted committees and appointed officers of the University,
including University Counsel, has instructed the University to preserve the historical dollar value

of donor-restricted (true) endowment funds, absent explicit donor direction to the contrary. As a
result, the University classifies as net assets with donor restrictions the original gift value of true
endowments, plus any subsequent gifts and accumulations made in accordance with the directions
of the applicable gift instruments.

Net assets with donor restrictions also include gifts and appropriations from the endowment that
can be expended, but for which the donors’ purpose restrictions have not yet been met, as well as
net assets with explicit or implied time restrictions, such as pledges and split-interest agreements.
Expiration of donor restrictions is reported in the consolidated statement of activities as a
reclassification from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions on
the net assets released from restriction lines.

Net assets without donor restrictions are the remaining net assets of the University, and include
donor-restricted contributions for which the purpose restrictions are met in the same fiscal year as
the revenue is recognized.

The University’s measure of operations as presented in the consolidated statement of activities
includes revenue from tuition and fees, state and federal appropriations, grants and contracts,
contributions for operating programs, allocation of endowment spending for operations, medical
services and other revenues. Operating expenses are reported in the consolidated statement of
activities by natural classification.



The University’s non-operating activity within the consolidated statement of activities includes
appropriations and grants and contracts for capital acquisition, contributions to the endowment
and for building construction and renovation, investment returns and other activities related to
endowment, long-term benefit plan obligation funding changes, and certain nonrecurring items.

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank accounts, money market funds, and
other temporary investments held for working capital purposes with an original maturity term of
ninety days or less. The carrying amount of cash equivalents approximates fair value because of
their short terms of maturity. Cash that is part of the University’s investment portfolio is reported as
investments and included in Note 4.

D. Investments

The University’s investments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at fair value.
The values of publicly traded securities are based on quoted market prices and exchange rates, if
applicable. The fair value of non-marketable securities is based on valuations provided by external
investment managers. These investments are generally less liquid than other investments, and the
values reported by the general partner or investment manager may differ from the values that
would have been reported, had a ready market for these securities existed. The University exercises
due diligence in assessing the policies, procedures, and controls implemented by its external
investment managers, and believes the carrying amount of these assets is a reasonable estimate of
fair value.

Investment income is recorded on an accrual basis, and purchases and sales of investment securities
are reflected on a trade-date basis. Realized gains and losses are calculated using average cost for
securities sold.

Investment return included in operating revenues consists of amounts appropriated by the Board

of Trustees from the pooled endowment, as well as income and realized gains and losses on
investments from working capital and non-pooled endowments and similar funds. Unrealized gains
and losses on investments, any difference between total return and amounts appropriated from the
pooled endowment, and income and realized gains reinvested per donor restrictions are reported as
non-operating activities.

E. Fair-Value Hierarchy

The University values certain financial assets and liabilities, on a recurring basis, in accordance with
a hierarchy that categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. Fair
value is defined as the price associated with an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. This fair-value hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on inputs
that market participants would use in valuing the financial instruments, which is based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the University. The hierarchy of inputs used to measure
fair value, and the primary valuation methodologies used by the University for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value, are disclosed below.

The fair value of Level 1 securities is based upon quoted prices in accessible active markets for
identical assets. Market price data is generally obtained from exchange or dealer markets. The
University does not adjust the quoted price for such assets.

The fair value of Level 2 securities is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and
model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market
or can be corroborated by observable market data. Inputs are obtained from various sources,
including market participants, dealers, and brokers. In determining fair value of financial instruments,
the University considers factors such as interest-rate yield curves, duration of the instrument, and
counter-party credit risk. The fair value of Level 2 securities is determined using multiple valuation
techniques including the market approach, income approach, or cost approach.

(SANVSNOHL NI S¥v110Q)
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fair value of Level 3 securities is based upon valuation techniques that use significant
unobservable inputs.

Inputs used in applying the various valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that are used

to make valuation decisions. Inputs may include price information, credit data, liquidity statistics,
and other factors. A financial instrument’s level within the fair-value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair-value measurement. The University considers
observable data to be market data that is readily available and reliable and provided by independent
sources. The categorization of a financial instrument within the fair-value hierarchy is, therefore,
based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument, and does not correspond to the University’s
perceived risk of that instrument.

F. Derivative Instruments

The University has approved the use of derivatives by outside investment managers, based on
investment guidelines negotiated at the time of a manager’s appointment. The derivatives are used
to adjust fixed-income durations and rates, to create “synthetic exposures” to certain types of
investments, and to hedge foreign currency fluctuations. The value of these derivative positions is
reflected in the net asset value of the respective fund. The change in the fair value of a derivative
instrument held for investment is included in non-operating investment return in the consolidated
statement of activities.

In addition, the University holds other derivatives to manage its exposure to interest-rate risk related
to its current and/or future long-term debt. These instruments are recorded at fair value as either
prepaid or accrued expenses in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the swap
interest and change in fair value is recorded as non-operating activity in the consolidated statement
of activities.

Derivatives involve counterparty credit exposure. To minimize this exposure, the University manages
counter-party risk by limiting swap exposure for each counter-party and monitoring the financial
health of swap counterparties, and has structured swap documents to limit maximum loss in the
event of counter-party default.

G. Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Land, buildings, and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position

at cost on the date of acquisition or at fair value on the date of donation, net of accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of the asset, and is reflected as an operating expense. Useful lives range from three to fifteen
years for equipment and fifteen to fifty years for buildings and improvements. Expenditures
associated with the construction of new facilities are recorded as construction in progress until the
projects are completed.

The University’s collections of art, rare books, and other property have been acquired through
purchases and contributions since the University’s inception. They are recognized as capital assets
and are reflected, net of accumulated depreciation, in the consolidated statement of financial
position. A collection received as a gift is recorded at fair value as an increase in net assets in the
year in which it is received.

H. Split-Interest Agreements

The University’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of charitable gift annuities,
pooled income funds, and charitable trusts for which the University serves as trustee. Assets

held in trust are either separately invested or included in the University’s investment pools in
accordance with the agreements. Contributions of split-interest agreements, net of related liabilities,
increase net assets with donor restrictions. Liabilities associated with charitable gift annuities and
charitable trusts represent the present value of the expected payments to the beneficiaries based
on the terms of the agreements. Pooled income funds are recognized at the net present value

of the net assets expected at a future date. Gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value,



changes in assumptions, and amortization of discount are recorded as changes in value of split-
interest agreements in the appropriate restriction categories in the non-operating section of the
consolidated statement of activities.

. Funds Held in Trust by Others

Funds held in trust by others represent resources that are not in the possession or under the
control of the University. These funds are administered by outside trustees, with the University
receiving income or residual interest. Funds held in trust by others are recognized at the estimated
fair value of assets or the present value of future cash flows due to the University when the
irrevocable trust is established or the University is notified of its existence. Gains or losses resulting
from changes in fair value are recorded as non-operating activities in the consolidated statement
of activities.

J. Endowments

The responsibility for accepting, preserving, and managing those funds entrusted to the University
rests, by law, with the Board of Trustees; however, the Trustees have delegated authority for
investment decisions to the Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees. The Investment
Committee determines investment policy, objectives, and guidelines, including allocation of assets
between classes of investments.

The University’s investment objective for its endowment assets is to maximize total return within
reasonable risk parameters, specifically to achieve a total return, net of expenses, of at least five
percent in excess of inflation, as measured by the Consumer Price Index over rolling five-year
periods. The achievement of favorable investment returns enables the University to distribute over
time increasing amounts from the endowment so that present and future needs can be treated
equitably in inflation-adjusted terms. Diversification is a key component of the University’s standard
for managing and investing endowment funds, and asset allocation targets are subject to ongoing
reviews by the Investment Committee.

The University applies the “prudent person” standard when deciding whether to appropriate or
accumulate endowment funds, and considers the following factors: the duration and preservation
of the endowment fund, the purposes of the institution and the endowment fund, the general
economic conditions including the potential effect of inflation or deflation, the expected total
return of the fund, other resources of the University, the needs of the University and the fund to
make distributions and preserve capital, and the University’s investment policy.

The Board authorizes an annual distribution from endowment funds that is within a target range

of 4.4 percent to 5.9 percent of a 12-quarter rolling average of the unit fair value. The Trustees may
occasionally make step adjustments, either incremental or decremental, based on prior investment
performance, current market conditions, and/or any of the factors for prudent judgment described
above. Total distributions, or spending, is presented as investment return, distributed, on the
consolidated statement of activities, and includes endowment payout and an administrative fee, net
of direct investment expenses, that supports the investment and stewardship costs of the University
endowment.

The New York Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (“NYPMIFA”) established a
requirement related to appropriations from endowments for which the fair value falls below the
historic dollar value (“underwater”). The University, in compliance with NYPMIFA, notified available
donors who had established endowments prior to September 17, 2010 of the new law, and offered
these donors the option of requiring the University to maintain historical dollar value for their
endowment funds. A minority of donors requested this option; for those who did, the University has
designed procedures to ensure that the University maintains historical dollar value by not expending
the payout on any underwater fund.

10
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

K. Revenue
Tuition and fees

Tuition and mandatory fees revenue is recognized within the fiscal year in which educational
services are provided. Institutional financial aid reduces the published price of tuition for students
receiving such aid. Payments received in advance for summer session courses for credit toward a
degree are recorded as deferred revenue.

State and Federal Appropriations

Revenue primarily consists of annual New York State appropriation through the legislative process in
support of the contract colleges, and it is recognized over the fiscal year.

Grants and Contracts

Revenue under grants, contracts, and similar agreements comprises federal and non-federal (state,
private foundation, etc.) grants and contracts. The funding may represent a reciprocal transaction
in exchange for an equivalent benefit in return, or it may be a nonreciprocal transaction in which
the resources provided are for the benefit of the University, the funding organization’s mission,

or the public at large. Federal grants and non-federal grants with similar restrictions on spending
are conditional and revenue is recognized at the time expenditures are incurred. Unconditional
non-exchange revenue is recognized in full when a qualifying promise to give has been made,
generally when the agreement is finalized. Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as
performance obligations are satisfied, which may be as milestones are achieved or as related costs
are incurred.

These revenues typically include the recovery of facilities and administrative costs, which are
recognized according to the rates defined in the respective sponsored agreement. Amounts
received in advance and in excess of incurred expenditures are recorded as deferred revenues.

Additional information regarding grant and contract revenue is presented below.

GRANTS, CONTRACTS AND SIMILAR AGREEMENTS

2019 2018
Federal $ 539,470 | $ 486,597
State and local 48,167 45,065
Private 268,463 284,626
Total Grants, contracts and similar agreements $ 856,100 | $ 816,288

Federal revenue is primarily nonreciprocal and conditional. A significant portion of private revenue
is received in exchange for benefit to the Qatar Foundation related to the operation of Weill
Cornell Medicine-Qatar. At June 30, 2019, the University has unrecorded conditional agreements of
$1,224,906.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give (pledges), are recognized as revenues in the
appropriate category of net assets in the period received. A pledge is recorded at the present value
of estimated future cash flows, based on an appropriate discount rate determined by management
at the time of the contribution. Amortization of this discount in subsequent years is included in
contribution revenue. A contribution of assets other than cash is recorded at its estimated fair value
on the date of the contribution. Contributions for capital projects, endowments, and similar funds
are reported as nonoperating revenues.

The presence of both a barrier and a right of return make a contribution conditional. Conditional
promises to give to the University are not recognized until the conditions are satisfied. Net assets
with donor restrictions include contributions to the University and to the Cornell University
Foundation, an affiliated entity that is included in the consolidated financial statements. The

1



Foundation maintains a donor-advised fund for which the donors can make recommendations
to the fund’s trustees regarding distributions to the University or other charitable organizations.
Distributions from the Foundation to external charitable organizations are recorded as
nonoperating expenses.

Medical Physician Organization

The Medical Physician Organization (“MPO”) provides the management structure for the practice of
medicine for all WCM physicians at the main academic medical center and various clinical practice
sites throughout New York City and surrounding areas. In addition to generating clinical practice
revenue, MPO members may provide instruction and conduct research activities. MPO revenue
represents patient care and management service agreement fees.

MPO patient care revenue is consideration received in exchange for clinical health care services
provided to patients. The patient is the customer, regardless of the payor. The contract with the
patient exists when the parties have approved the contract for clinical health care services either in
writing, verbally or implicitly, based on the MPQO’s customary business practice. Outpatient services
are recognized as the service is provided.

For Medicare, Medicaid and commercial payors, the transaction price is the amount the MPO
expects to be entitled to under the contract, which includes explicit price concessions similar to
current contractual adjustments. For self-pay, deductibles and co-payments, the transaction price
is reduced by implicit price concessions, including estimates of uncollectible amounts. These
estimates are based on policies and customary business practices of providing service regardless of
the ability to pay, combined with historical collection rates.

The MPO uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts rather than
recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The contracts are categorized and grouped
based on service provided, payor, and service location. Based on historical collection trends

and other analyses, the MPO believes that revenue recognized using the portfolio approach
approximates the revenue that would have been recognized had an individual contract approach
been used.

Revenue from management service agreement fees is consideration received in exchange

for services provided to an external healthcare provider. Under terms of these contractual
arrangements, WCM physicians provide services such as patient care or supervision and teaching of
medical staff. The agreements are typically for a one-year term and consideration is fixed in amount.
Revenue is recognized throughout the fiscal year as services are rendered.

Additional information regarding MPO revenue is presented below.

MEDICAL PHYSICIAN ORGANIZATION REVENUE

2019 2018

Outpatient services
Commercial $ 658,036 | $ 636,885
Government 102,334 103,087
Patient and other 185,715 192,793
946,085 932,765
Management service agreements 170,299 135,398
Total $ 1,116,384 | $ 1,068,163

Aucxiliary enterprises

Auxiliary enterprises support the educational experience of students, and include housing, dining
and the campus store. Housing and dining revenues are recognized over the course of the academic
year and campus store revenue at the time of the transaction.
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Educational activities and other sales and services

Educational activities and other sales and services represents revenue from operations related

to the University’s mission that are managed like commercial entities. The largest component of
Educational activities and other sales and services is consideration received at WCM from New
York-Presbyterian Hospital (NYPH) in exchange for providing personnel, space, and other services.
The revenue is billed based upon an approved annual joint budget and actual costs incurred. WCM
recognizes revenue throughout the fiscal year as services are rendered to NYPH and accrues for any
unbilled services as of June 30.

Educational activities and other sales and services also includes activities such as royalties,
transportation, parking, testing labs, teaching hotel, non-degree/non-credit course revenue,
athletics, etc. These activities comprise exchange transactions with customers, which may be
recognized at a specific point in time or over the period of the contract, depending upon when the
benefit is derived by the customer. Amounts received in advance are recorded as deferred revenues.

L. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues,
and expenses during the reporting period. Management’s assumptions are related primarily to the
appropriate discount rate for the purposes of fair-value calculations, to allowances for doubtful
accounts and contractual allowances, and to self-insured risks. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

M. Comparative Financial Information

The consolidated statement of activities includes prior-year information in summary form rather
than by restriction class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a
presentation of prior-year data in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such information should
be read in conjunction with the University’s consolidated financial statements for the prior fiscal
year from which the summarized information was derived.

N. Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09-Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)
at the conclusion of a joint effort with the International Accounting Standards Board to create
common revenue recognition guidance for U.S. GAAP and international accounting standards.
This framework ensures that entities appropriately reflect the consideration to which they expect
to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, by allocating transaction price to identified
performance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.
Qualitative and quantitative disclosures will be required to enable users of financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. In August of 2015, FASB issued ASU 2015-14-Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, which makes ASU 2014-09 effective for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The change became effective for the University July 1, 2018. There
was no material impact from adoption. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented, with no effect on net assets or previously issued financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02-Leases (Topic 842), which provides accounting
guidance for leases from both the lessor’s and lessee’s perspective. The main difference between
previous GAAP and Topic 842 is the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for
those leases classified as operating leases; however, the University will evaluate other impacts of
the new guidance. The new standard will be effective in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. The
University is planning for implementation of this new standard and reviewing the potential impact
on the financial statements, which is expected to be material.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14-Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of

Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities to improve the information presented in financial

statements and notes about a not-for-profit entity’s liquidity, financial performance, and cash flows.
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The significant changes under the new guidance include the reduction of net asset classifications to
two categories based on the existence or absence of donor restrictions, and additional disclosure
requirements related to board designation of net assets, and related to the liquidity and availability
of the entity’s financial assets. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. The
University consolidated financial statements present net assets with and without donor restrictions
and disclose functional expenses and liquidity information as required by the standard.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08-Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope
and Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The amendments
are intended to assist in evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
or as exchange transactions subject to other guidance and in determining whether a contribution
is conditional. The new standard was effective for contributions received for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2019. There was no material impact from adoption.

O. Reclassifications

The University has reclassified the consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30,
2018 to conform to current year presentation. Revenue of $160,550 was moved from Educational
activities and other sales and services to Grants, contracts and similar agreements, and bad debt
expense is now reflected as contra-revenue in Medical Physician Organization, rather than Supplies
and general expense, due to the implementation of ASU 2014-09. Due to the implementation of ASU
2016-14, net assets related to underwater endowments, which were previously reported as without
donor restrictions, were adjusted to reflect current year presentation as net assets with donor
restrictions. In addition, direct investment office expenses are now reflected as contra-revenue in
Investment return, distributed.

Certain items on the consolidated statement of financial position were combined for current year
presentation, with conforming adjustments to prior year. Student loans receivable are combined
with Accounts receivable and Government advances for student loans are combined with Deferred
revenue and other liabilities.

P. Income Taxes

The University is a not-for-profit organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is generally exempt from income taxes on related income pursuant to the
appropriate sections of the Internal Revenue Code. In accordance with the accounting standards,
the University evaluates its income tax position each fiscal year to determine whether the position is
more likely than not to be sustained if examined by the applicable taxing authority. This review had
no material impact on the University’s consolidated financial statements.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of June 30 are as follows:

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

2019

Total assets $ 13,968,334
Less:

Endowment funds and other illiquid investments 7,614,722

Land, buildings, and equipment, net 4,347,909

Contributions receivable, net, due after one year 471,200

Funds held in trust by others 133,180

Reinsurance receivable 119,955

Student loans receivable, net 69,393

$ 1,211,975

Financial assets available within one year
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Included within Endowment funds and other illiquid investments above is $1,367,064 in funds
functioning as endowment (FFE) as of June 30, 2019. These represent unrestricted operating
funds that have been internally designated by the University, which could be liquidated over time, if
necessary, to support operations.

The University manages its financial assets to be available as its operating expenditures, liabilities
and other obligations come due. The University’s cash flows have seasonal variations during the
year primarily attributable to tuition billing and a concentration of contributions received at
calendar and fiscal year-end. In order to manage liquidity, the University maintains three lines of
credit totaling $200 million; with $100 million expiring March 2020, $75 million expiring April 2020,
and $25 million expiring February 2020. As of June 30, 2019, the University had no outstanding
borrowings under these agreements. In addition, the University has a taxable commercial paper
program with a maximum authorized amount of $200 million. As of June 30, 2019, the available
balance was $46.1 million.

3. RECEIVABLES
A. Accounts Receivable

The University’s receivables from the sources identified in the table below are reviewed and
monitored for aging and other factors that affect collectability.

Accounts receivable from the following sources were outstanding as of June 30:

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2019 2018

Grants and contracts $ 101,883 | $ 92,451
New York-Presbyterian Hospital and other affiliates 51,762 51,508
Patients (net of contractual and bad debt allowances) 94,941 100,063
Reinsurance receivable 119,955 122,351
Federal revolving student loans 30,440 39,217
Institutional student loans 38,953 34,555
Student accounts 20,064 12,944
Other 92,062 65,673
Net accounts receivable $ 550,060 @ $ 518,762

Receivables are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts of $34,195 and $37,572 at June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The patient accounts receivable for medical services was comprised of the following at June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively: commercial third parties 78.4 percent and 74.1 percent; federal/state
government 15.4 percent and 15.5 percent; and patients 6.2 percent and 10.4 percent. Note 13
provides additional information related to the reinsurance receivable.

Other accounts receivable include receivables from other government agencies, matured bequests,
and other operating activities.

B. Contributions Receivable

Unconditional promises to give, or pledges, are recorded in the consolidated financial statements
at present value using discount rates ranging from 1.5 percent to 7.0 percent. The methodology
for estimating uncollectible amounts is based on an analysis of the historical collectability of
contributions receivable. Contributions are expected to be realized as follows:
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SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

2019 2018
Less than one year $ 333,704 | $ 341,413
Between one and five years 413,715 435,315
More than five years 173,027 164,223
Gross contributions receivable $ 920,446 | $ 940,951
Less: unamortized discount (90,648) (89,292)
Less: allowance for uncollectible amounts (24,894) (25,550)
Net contributions receivable $ 804,904 | $ 826,109
Contributions receivable as of June 30 are intended for the following purposes:
EXPECTED PURPOSE OF CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE
2019 2018
Program support $ 379,210 | $ 420,169
Capital purposes 142,253 157,839
Long-term support 283,441 248,101
Net contributions receivable $ 804,904 | $ 826,109

At June 30, 2019, conditional promises not reflected in the consolidated financial statements, which
consist primarily of bequest intentions, were $592,674. When conditional promises to give become
unconditional or payments from bequests are received, they are recorded, and generally will be
restricted for long-term support, program support and capital projects as stipulated by the donors.

4. INVESTMENTS

A. General Information

The University’s investments are overseen by the Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees.
The University’s investment strategy incorporates a diversified asset allocation approach and
maintains, within defined limits, exposure to the movements of the world equity, fixed income,
commodities, real estate, and private equity markets. Based on guidelines established by the
Investment Committee, the University’s Investment Office directs the investment of endowment

and trust assets, certain working capital, and temporarily invested expendable funds.

The University maintains a number of investment pools or categories for specific purposes as

follows:

INVESTMENT POOLS/CATEGORIES AT FAIR VALUE

2019 2018

Long-term investments (LTI)
Long-term investment pool (LTIP) $ 6,866,988 | $ 6,781,595
Other LTI 461,253 448,695
Total LTI $7,328,241 $7,230,290
Separately invested and other assets 428,227 272,739
Total investments $ 7,756,468 | $ 7,503,029
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o Total earnings on the University’s investment portfolio for the fiscal years ended June 30 is

2 presented in the following table:

%

o SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT RETURN

= 2019 2018
z Interest and dividends, net of investment fees $ 60,312 | $ 75,590
2 Net realized gain/(loss) 283,485 430,245
§ Net unrealized gain/(loss) 81,634 121,694
8 Total investment return $ 425431 | $ 627,529

B. Fair Value

hierarchy, are summarized in the following tables:

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The University’s investment holdings as of June 30, categorized in accordance with the fair-value

fail;e\;faellul fail;ev\;eliji fail;e\xaellui asset val\llueet 2019 Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 113,056 |$ 27,237 |'$ - % - % 140,293
Derivatives - 5,233 - - 5,233
Equity

Domestic equity 199,065 458,818 867 - 658,750
Foreign equity 344,327 118,345 2,599 945,468 1,410,739
Hedged equity - - 2,526 - 2,526
Private equity - - 52,040 1,684,502 1,736,542
Fixed income

Asset backed fixed income 416 24,163 790 - 25,369
Corporate bonds 225 97,310 1,730 - 99,265
Equity partnership - 29 - 509,360 509,389
International 9,763 25,423 553 - 35,739
Municipals 122 2,105 - - 2,227
Mutual funds (non-equity) 282 14,313 - - 14,595
Preferred/convertible - 2,743 5,057 - 7,800
Other fixed income - 161 - - 161
US government 463,300 55,720 - - 519,020
Marketable alternatives - 15,058 - 1,242,452 1,257,510
Real assets 31,630 - 18,749 1,211,610 1,261,989
Receivable for investments sold 31,486 - - - 31,486
Ei);zsl:.szr investments (32,190) ) ) ) (32,190)
Other - - 70,025 - 70,025
Total investments $ 1,161,482 |$ 846,658 |$ 154,936 |$ 5,593,392 |$ 7,756,468
Securities not included in

investment portfolio
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4375 |'$ - 9% - % - $ 4,375
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INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

faitev\:i; faitev\ﬁji faitev\ﬁjz asset v;\ll Li: 2018 Total
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 142,849 |$ 20,272 - % - % 163,121
Derivatives - (5,961) - - (5,961)
Equity
Domestic equity 284,020 315,090 1,654 - 600,764
Foreign equity 386,998 538,044 849 610,424 1,536,315
Hedged equity - - 2,788 - 2,788
Private equity - - 61,974 1,572,494 1,634,468
Fixed income
ﬁiij;ZaCkedf”ed - 21,282 844 - 22,126
Corporate bonds - 132,214 2,070 - 134,284
Equity partnership - 31 - 531,869 531,900
International 2,970 28,632 469 - 32,071
Municipals - 3,003 - - 3,003
'gf]‘;trtzquji';;; 196 14,854 - - 15,050
Preferred/convertible - 1,380 4,929 - 6,309
Other fixed income - 495 - - 495
US government 109,562 59,470 - - 169,032
Marketable alternatives - 279 - 1,324,224 1,324,503
Real assets - 62,694 19,997 1,242,818 1,325,509
i - - e
Ez{:EI:sicér investments (49,126) ) ) ) (49,126)
Other - - 24,677 - 24,677
Total investments $ 909,170 |$ 1,191,779 120,251 |$ 5,281,829 |$ 7,503,029
Securities not included in
investment portfolio
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 118,905 |$ - - % - $ 118,905

Level 1 investments consist of cash and cash equivalents, equity, and fixed-income securities with
observable market prices. Fair value is readily determinable based on quoted prices in active
markets. Unsettled trade receivable and payable valuations are reflective of cash settlements
subsequent to the fiscal year-end and are also categorized as Level 1. The University does not adjust
the quoted price for such instruments, even in situations where the University holds a large position
and a sale of all its holdings could reasonably impact the quoted price.

Investments that are classified as Level 2 include cash and cash equivalents, domestic and foreign
equities, as well as fixed income securities that trade in markets that are not considered to be
active. Fair value is based on observable inputs for similar instruments in the market, and obtained
by various sources including market participants, dealers, and brokers; the University’s custodian
secures pricing for these assets. The fair value of derivative investments is based on market prices
from the financial institution that is the counterparty to the derivative.

Level 3 investments have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. The
inputs into the determination of fair value are based upon the best information in the circumstance
and may require significant management judgment. Investments included in Level 3 consist primarily
of the University’s ownership in real estate, oil and mineral rights, limited partnerships, and equity
positions in private companies.
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C. Investments Using Net Asset Value

The net asset value (“NAV”) column above represents the University’s ownership interest in
certain alternative investments. As a practical expedient, the University uses its ownership
interest in the NAV to determine the fair value of all alternative investments that do not have a
readily determinable fair value, and have financial statements consistent with the measurement
principles of an investment company or have the attributes of an investment company. The NAV
of these investments is determined by the general partner and is based upon appraisal or other
estimates that require varying degrees of judgment. If no public market exists for the investment
securities, the general partner will take into consideration, among other things, the cost of the
securities, prices of recent significant placements of securities of the same issuer, and subsequent
developments concerning the companies to which the securities relate. The University has
performed significant due diligence around these investments to ensure that NAV is an appropriate
measure of fair value as of June 30.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

The following table provides additional information about alternative investments measured at NAV:

SUMMARY OF ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS MEASURED USING NET ASSET VALUE

Unfunded Timing
Asset class NAV in funds to draw Redemption terms*

commitments )
commitments

These funds are in a private
Private equit $ 1,684502 % 685,753 1to 10 years  equity structure, with no abilit
quity Y quity y
to be redeemed

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These funds are in a private
Real assets 1,211,610 460,110 1to 10 years  equity structure, with no ability
to be redeemed

No redemptions available

for funds in a private equity
structure; balance includes 8%
within 7 days, 8% with rolling
2-year redemptions with 9o-days
notice, and 9% within 5 years**

Fixed income 509,360 260,805 1 to 10 years

Ranges between thrice-monthly
redemption with 2-days notice,
to rolling 3-year redemption with
90-days notice

Foreign equity 945,468 3,800 N.A.

Ranges between quarterly
redemption with 30-days notice,
to 33% redemption per year with
60-days notice

Marketable alternatives 1,242,452 N.A. N.A.

Total for alternative

investments using NAV §5593392 % 1410468

* Represents initial investment lock up restriction. No other material redemption restrictions, such as redemption gates,
were in place at year end.

**75% of NAV is in a private equity structure, with no ability to be redeemed. Redemption provisions for the remaining
25% are shown above.

D. Level 3 Investments

The table below presents a summary of Level 3 investment activity. All net realized and unrealized
gains/(losses) in the table are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.
Net unrealized gains/(losses) relate to those financial instruments held by the University at June
30, 2019. There were no significant transfers into or out of Level 3 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019.
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SUMMARY OF LEVEL 3 INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

. . Transfers .
Fair value Realized Unrealized in /(out) Fair value
at June 30, ainj(loss) gain/ Purchases Sales of Level at June 30,
2018 | © (loss) ; 2019
Equity
D )
omestic $ 1654 | $ -1 (@787 % S - ¢ SR 867
equity
Foreign equity 849 (30) (104) 2,538 (654) - 2,599
Hedged equity 2,788 (8) (102) 24 (176) - 2,526
Private equity 61,974 641 2,961 418 (13,954) - 52,040
Fixed income
Asset backed
fixed income 844 ) G4 i ) ) 790
Corporate
bonds 2,070 - (340) - - - 1,730
International 469 (58) 142 - - - 553
Preferred/ 4,929 - 103 25 . - 5,057
convertible
Other fixed ) ) . ) . ) .
income
Real assets 19,997 (1,046) (72) - (130) - 18,749
Other 24,677 1 162 45,196 amn - 70,025
Total level 3
investments $ 120,251 |$  (500) |$ 1,909 [$ 48201 [$(14925) |$ - |$ 154,936

Level 3 equities not priced by qualified third parties (e.g., brokers, pricing services, etc.) are valued
using discounted cash flows, taking into account various factors including nonperformance risk,
counter-party risk, and marketability. Investment value is also derived using a market approach
through comparison to recent and relevant market multiples of comparable companies. Start-up
assets, held by the University’s student-run venture fund or other similar programs, are maintained
at or near initial investment amounts due to the nature of the activity.

Level 3 asset-backed fixed income investments are valued using discounted cash flows. Preferred/
convertible fixed income investments are valued using discounted cash flows or a market approach
using a dividend multiplier. Investments in start-up companies, as described above, are valued at or
near initial investment amounts.

Level 3 real assets represent directly owned real estate, and oil or mineral rights. To the extent
feasible, third-party appraisals are used to value real estate directly owned by the University. If
current appraisals are not available, fair value is based on the capitalization rate valuation model
or discounted cash flow, corroborated by local market data, if available. Oil and mineral rights are
valued based on industry standard revenue multiplier methodologies or discounted cash flows.

The following table provides additional information related to the valuation of the investments
classified by the University as Level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION ABOUT LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Range (weighted

Level 3 fair value  Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs
average)
Equity
Domestic equity $ 867  Start-up valuation
Foreign equity 2,599  Third-party valuation
Hedged equity 2,526  Third-party valuation
Private equity 15,720  Discounted cash flow Discount rate 4.8%
Discount fgr lack of 16.8%
marketability
7,054  Start-up valuation
29,266  Third-party valuation
Fixed income
Asset backed fixed 790 Sales comparison Recent transactions
approach
Corporate bonds 1,730  Third-party valuation
International 553 Third-party valuation
Preferred/convertible 5,032 Market comparable Dividend multiple 17'3)((_2(2)145;
25 Start-up valuation
Real assets 4,329 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 11.1%
993 Sales comparison Recent transactions
approach
4,578  Third-party valuation
8,849  Cap rate valuation model  Capitalization rate 5.0%
) . 1.2%-5.3%
Other 9,654  Discounted cash flow Discount rate (1.8%)
Years to maturity 3-14 (6)

1,887  Start-up valuation
58,484  Third-party valuation

Total Level 3

. $ 154,936
investments

The methods described above may produce a fair-value calculation that is not indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the University believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

E. Derivative Holdings

The use of certain financial derivative instruments is governed by either the University’s written
investment policy, specific manager guidelines, or partnership/fund agreement documents.
Specifically, financial derivative instruments may be used to manage foreign currency exposure,
to obtain commodity exposure, to create synthetic exposure, or to obtain protection against
increases in interest rates. These derivatives, based on definitions in GAAP, are not designated as
hedging instruments.

As part of its overall diversification strategy, the University allocates a percentage of its assets to
investment managers specializing in securities whose prices are denominated in foreign currencies.
The investment guidelines provide discretion to these managers to adjust the foreign currency
exposure of their investment portfolios by using derivative instruments. A derivative is used for
buying or selling foreign currency under a short-term contract to lock in the dollar cost of a specific
pending purchase or sale of a foreign security, or for selling foreign currency under a longer-term
contract to hedge against a general decline in the dollar value of foreign security holdings.
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Some investment managers have discretion, limited by overall investment guidelines, to use
derivative instruments to create investment exposures that could not be created as efficiently with
other types of investments. These synthetic exposures in the University’s portfolio consist of four
types: 1) forward contracts used to increase exposure to a foreign currency beyond the level of
underlying security investments in that currency; 2) futures contracts used to create exposures to
assets where the futures market provides a more efficient investment than the underlying securities;
3) swap contracts, also used to provide a more efficient means to gain exposure than the underlying
securities; and 4) option contracts used to adjust the exposure of the long-term portfolio to interest
rate volatility.

The University entered into option contracts on interest-rate swaps as a way to mitigate the impact
of a significant rise in interest rates in the future. Under the terms of certain option contracts on
interest-rate swaps, the University is obligated to make future premium payments. At June 30,

2019 and 2018, the University had unfunded premium payment commitments of $2,048 and $3,072
respectively. The University’s premium payment schedule is as follows: $1,024 for the years ending
June 30, 2020 and 2021.

The following table provides detailed information on the derivatives included in the investment
portfolio as of June 30.

FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVE HOLDINGS IN STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019 2018
Location Derivative type Notional # of Fair value Notional # of Fair
amount  Contracts amount  Contracts value
Investments
Foreign
Currei iy $ - 15 ¢ (165) | $ - 28 $ 42
Commodity 387,924 62 4,449 130,826 55 (1,735)
Synthetic 114,281 4 2,853 174,941 16 (2,951)
Interest rate - 3 (1,904) 301,004 3 (1,701)
Total fair value $ 502,205 84 % 5233 | $ 606,771 102 $ (5,961)

5. LAND, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT
A. General Information

Land, buildings, and equipment are detailed as follows:

LAND, BUILDINGS, AND EQUIPMENT

Book value at Book value at

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Land, buildings, and equipment $ 6,534,130 | $ 6,232,741
Furniture, equipment, books, and collections 1,417,714 1,371,173
Capital leases 122,473 125,059
Construction in progress 197,155 211,039
Total before accumulated depreciation $ 8,271,472 | $ 7,940,012
Accumulated depreciation (3,923,563) (3,642,965)
Net land, buildings, and equipment $ 4,347,909 | $ 4,297,047

Certain properties, for which the University has possession and beneficial use for an indefinite
period and which other entities may also record as assets, are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as follows: (1) land, buildings, and equipment of the Contract
Colleges aggregating $745,019 and $741,078 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, the acquisition
cost of which was borne primarily by New York State and (2) land, buildings, and equipment for
which titles rest with government and corporate agencies aggregating $625 and $1,338 at June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively.
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The future commitments on capital projects in progress, excluding projects funded by New York
State, are approximately $60,999 at June 30, 2019.

B. Cornell Tech Campus

In December 2011, the University, in partnership with Technion-Israel Institute of Technology, won
the Applied Sciences NYC competition to build and operate a new applied sciences and engineering
campus in New York City. The city committed, through the New York City Economic Development
Corporation (“NYCEDC”), a location and seed funding for the initial construction of the new
campus. Under the terms of the agreement with the NYCEDC and the ninety-nine year ground
lease for Roosevelt Island, the University made the commitment to create the new applied sciences
campus in three phases, with milestones in 2017, 2027, and 2037. In addition, the University has
enrollment, faculty, and other operational commitments as part of the agreement.

In 2014, the University broke ground on Roosevelt Island, taking the first steps toward the
completion of the Phase | development commitments, which include the first academic building, a
residential building, a corporate co-location space, and an executive education facility. The total cost
of demolition of the existing structures on the site is considered to be a prepaid cost of the ground
lease, and will be amortized over the term of the lease. At June 30, 2019, the unamortized amount of
the demolition costs is $54,769.

On March 31, 2016, the University entered into a joint venture with the Hudson Companies through
its subsidiary H/R Tech Residential LLC. The purpose of the new joint venture, called Hudson
Cornell Residential JV LLC, is to construct and operate the new residential facility on the Cornell
Tech campus. The University has an equity interest of 86.59 percent and controlling financial
interest and, therefore, consolidates the joint venture. This consolidation resulted in $126,334
included in land, buildings, and equipment, net attributed to the joint venture at June 30, 2019. In
addition, Hudson Cornell Tech LLC, a subsidiary of Hudson Cornell Residential JV LLC, held bonds
and notes payable related the construction of the residential building (“The House at Cornell
Tech”) (see Note 9A). Net assets without donor restrictions of $4,100 and $4,509, representing
the noncontrolling interest of H/R Tech Residential LLC, is also consolidated into the University’s
net assets at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Operating activity related to the joint venture is
immaterial in the current fiscal year.

The Tata Innovation Center (formerly “The Bridge”) is a corporate co-location building and
condominium association comprised of a “Cornell Unit” and one or more other units initially owned
by the developer and/or its affiliates. The University has entered into a lease agreement for the
Cornell Unit for a term of thirty-five years. As part of the lease agreement, the University has made
a commitment in the form of gap rent for the developer’s unit(s) in an amount not to exceed $2,982
annually, or $44,731 over twenty years. The annual amount of gap rent is adjusted based upon the
occupancy level in the developer’s unit(s). During the year ended June 30, 2019, a gap rent payment
of $2,082 was made.

Cornell Tech met its first milestone when faculty, staff, and researchers moved into the first
academic building (Bloomberg Center) on Roosevelt Island during the summer of 2017, and
students, faculty, and researchers moved into the House in advance of the fall semester. In addition,
programs and operations in both the Bloomberg Center and The Tata Innovation Center began
during the 2017-2018 academic year, rounding out the University’s operational commitments.

6. OBLIGATIONS UNDER SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS AND FUNDS HELD IN
TRUST BY OTHERS

The University reports its obligations under split-interest agreements at fair value. The fair value of
the obligation is calculated annually and considered Level 3 in the fair-value hierarchy. The discount
rate is based on average return of investment-grade corporate bonds, weighted using a schedule of
actuarial estimates of the lives of the income beneficiaries and the relative value of the agreements.
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The University’s interest in funds held in trust by others is considered Level 3 in the fair-value
hierarchy. Trusts in which the University has an income interest are valued annually using estimated
cash flows based on average actual income over three years. Remainder interests are determined
using present value calculations based on annual valuation reports received from the funds’
trustees. The discount rates used to estimate present value are based on the average return of
investment-grade corporate bonds, weighted according to a schedule of actuarial estimates.

The following tables summarize the fair values and activity of funds held in trust by others and

obligations under split interest agreements.

SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENTS AT FAIR VALUE AND LEVEL 3 QUANTITATIVE INFORMATION

R
2019 Valuation Unobservable ) ange
. . (weighted
Total methodologies inputs
average)
Funds held in trust by others
Remainder $ 59,618 Present value calculation Discount rate 3.00%
Years to maturity 0-54 (15)
Lead and perpetual 73,562  Discounted cash flows Discount rate 3.70%
Total funds held in trust by others ~ $ 133,180
Obligations under split interest $ 134,087 Discounted cash flows Discount rate 3.60%
agreements
Years to maturity 0-62 (16)
R
2018 Valuation Unobservable . ange
. . (weighted
Total methodologies inputs
average)
Funds held in trust by others
Remainder $ 53,682 Presentvalue calculation  Discount rate 4.00%
Years to maturity 0-55 (11)
Lead and perpetual 60,113  Discounted cash flows Discount rate 4.60%
Total funds held in trust by others $ 113,795
Obligations under split interest $ 135,331  Discounted cash flows Discount rate 4.20%
agreements
Years to maturity 0-62 (16)
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SUMMARY OF LEVEL 3 SPLIT-INTEREST AGREEMENT ACTIVITY

Fair value Realized | Unrealized Transfers Fair value
at June 30, gain/ gain/ | Purchases Sales in/(out) | atJune 30,
2018 (loss) (loss) of Level 3 2019
Funds held in trust by others
Remainder $ 53682 '$ 1,755 | $ 3,528 |$ 1,284 | $ (631) |$ - |$ 59,618
Lead and perpetual 60,113 (144) 13,593 - - - 73,562
Total funds held
in trust by others $ 113,795 |$ 1,611 | $ 17,121 |$ 1,284 |$ (631) |$ - |$ 133,180
Obligations under split-
interest agreements $ 135331 1% S| B (244 19 ik ik S |B 134087
Fair value Realized | Unrealized Transfers Fair value
at June 30, gain/ gain/ | Purchases Sales in/(out) | at June 30,
2017 (loss) (loss) of Level 3 2018
Funds held in trust by others
Remainder $ 50,067 '$ 1,638 $ (2,053) |$ 5,099 | $(1,069) |$ - |$ 53,682
Lead and perpetual 60,850 (3,725) (16) 3,004 - - 60,113
Total funds held
in trust by others $ 110,917 |$ (2,087) | $ (2,069) |$ 8,103 | $(1,069) |$ - |$ 113,795
lioati lit-
Obligations under split $ 133459 | $ s 1872 | % S - % - 1$ 135,331

interest agreements

7. DEFERRED BENEFITS
A. General Information

Accrued employee benefit obligations as of June 30 include:

SUMMARY OF DEFERRED BENEFITS

2019 2018
Post-employment benefits $ 32,203 | $ 26,034
Pension and other postretirement benefits 381,382 406,852
Other deferred benefits 192,156 188,462
Total deferred benefits $ 605,741 | $ 621,348

Accrued postemployment benefits include workers’ compensation and medical continuation
benefits for those on long-term disability. Other deferred benefits include primarily vacation
accruals, deferred compensation, and medical benefit claims incurred-but-not-reported.
Additionally, the University provides various benefits to former or inactive employees after
employment, but before retirement, that are recognized when they are earned.

B. Pension and Postretirement Plans

The University’s employee retirement plan coverage is provided by two basic types of plans: one
based on a predetermined level of funding (defined contribution), and the other based on a years-
of-service calculation to determine the level of benefit to be provided (defined benefit).

The primary defined contribution plans for endowed colleges at Ithaca and for exempt employees
(those not subject to the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act) at WCM are funded
either by employer contributions based on a percentage of salary or by voluntary employee
contributions. The contributions to the defined contribution plans are held on investment platforms

25



with the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association (also a recordkeeper to the plans); Vanguard

(WCM only); and Fidelity Investments (also a recordkeeper to the endowed colleges at Ithaca only).

Total contributions of the endowed colleges at Ithaca and WCM plans for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $120,971 and $115,051, respectively.

WCM maintains the University’s only defined benefit pension plan. The participants include
non-exempt employees at WCM who meet the eligibility requirements for participation. The plan
was frozen in 1976 for exempt employees at WCM and the accrued benefits were merged with
the active non-exempt retirement plan in 1989. In accordance with the funding requirements
applicable to defined benefit plans under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
(“ERISA”), the University must contribute to the plan’s trust an actuarially determined amount
that represents normal costs plus amortization of prior service costs over a forty-year period that
began on July 1,1976.

Additionally, the University provides health and life insurance benefits for eligible retired employees
and their dependents, based on the attainment of a set of defined service and age requirements.
The cost of providing these benefits is accrued during the service lives of employees

The WCM postretirement plan was amended on June 28, 2019 with an effective date of January 1,
2020. The amendment implemented a new post-age 65 benefit for both current and future retirees
(and their spouses) who have not yet reached that age as of December 31, 2019. The new benefit is
an annual health reimbursement arrangement (“HRA”) contribution, in a fixed amount, provided to
retirees and spouses. The impact of the plan amendment is included in the following table.

This space intentionally left blank.
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C. Obligations and Funded Status

funded status as of June 30:

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Actual return on plan assets
Employer contribution
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year

Service cost (benefits earned during
the period)

Interest cost
Actuarial (gain)/loss

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gross benefits paid
Less: federal subsidy on benefits paid
Plan amendments

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

Funded status

Amounts recognized in the consolidated

statement of financial position

Amounts recorded in net assets without
donor restrictions not yet amortized as
components of net periodic benefit cost

Prior service cost
Net actuarial (gain)/loss

Amounts recognized as reduction in
net assets without donor restrictions

Amounts recorded in non-operating pension
and postretirement changes

Change in amounts not yet amortized as
components of net periodic benefit cost
Other components of net periodic
benefit cost

Total non-operating pension and
postretirement changes

SUMMARY OF OBLIGATIONS AND FUNDED STATUS

Pension benefits

The following table sets forth the defined benefit pension and postretirement plans’ obligations and

Other postretirement

2019 2018 2019 2018

$ 122,885 | $ m530 | $ 279,934 255,181
8,916 9,186 17,739 19,753

7,000 6,500 26,991 26,781

(5,069) (4,331 (21,997 (21,781)

$ 133,732 | $ 122,885 | $ 302,673 279,934
$ 188,285 | $ 175870 | $ 621,386 632,041
10,221 10,824 26,555 30,757

8,040 7,658 27,569 26,250

5,709 (1,736) 23,694 (48,814)

(5,069) (4,331) (20,042) (20,212)

- - 1195 1,364

- - (69,756) -

$ 207,186 | $ 188,285 | $ 610,601 621,386
$  (73454) | $  (65400) | $  (307,928) (341,452)
$  (73454) | $  (65400) | $  (307,928) (341,452)
$ (232) | $ (324) | $  (69,756) -
43,563 38,887 66,486 40,557

$ 43331 | $ 38563 | $ (3:270) 40,557
$ (4,768) | $ 5954 | $ 43,827 53,287
(66) (2,690) (7:594) (10,970)

$ 4834 | $ 3264 | $ 36,233 42,317

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans was $181,276 and $160,410 at June 30,
2019 and 2018, respectively. The accumulated benefit obligation differs from the projected benefit
obligation in the table above in that it includes no assumptions about future compensation levels.
It represents the actuarial present value of future payments to plan participants using current

and past compensation levels. For postretirement plans other than pensions, the accumulated
benefit obligation is the same as the projected benefit obligations because the liabilities are not

compensation-related.
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D. Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Net benefit expense related to the pension and postretirement plans for the fiscal years ended June
30 includes the following components:

NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST

Pension benefits Other postretirement

2019 2018 2019 2018

tS:ngl)Ziig?j;t (benefits earned during $ 10221 | $ 10824 $ 26555 | $ 30,757
Interest cost 8,040 7,658 27,569 26,250
Expected return on plan assets (8,951) (7,818) (20,081) (18,773)
Amortization of prior service cost (92) (92) - -
Amortization of net (gain)/loss 1,069 2,942 106 3,493
Net periodic benefit cost $ 10,287 | $ 13,514 | $ 34,149 | $ 41,727

The amounts of prior service costs and actuarial gains/losses that will be amortized into net periodic
benefit cost for the year ending June 30, 2020 are estimated as follows:

ESTIMATED COMPONENTS OF NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST
Pension benefits Other postretirement

Prior service cost $ (92) % (12,627)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss 2,068 485
Total $ 1976 % (12,142)

E. Actuarial Assumptions

Assumptions used in determining the pension and postretirement plans’ benefit obligations and net
periodic costs are:

SUMMARY OF ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Pension benefits Other postretirement
2019 2018 2019 2018
Used to calculate benefit obligations at
June 30
Discount rate 3.96% 4.31% 3.83%/3.62% 4.30%/4.29%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
Used to calculate net periodic cost at July 1
Discount rate 4.31% 4.04% 4.30% [ 4.29% 3.97%/3.96%
Expected return on plan assets 7.30% 7.00% 7.30% 7.30%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%
Assumed health care cost trend rates
Health care cost trend rate assumed ofa nfa 5.00%/ 6.00% 5.50%/ 6.00%
for next year
Ultimate trend rate nfa n/fa 4.50% 4.50%
Years to reach ultimate trend rate n/a n/a 2/5 3/4

The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant effect on the amounts reported for
postretirement health care plans. Increasing the health care cost trend rate by one percent in each
future year would increase the benefit obligation by $104,413 and the annual service and interest
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cost by $12,564. Decreasing the health care cost trend rate by one percent in each future year would
decrease the benefit obligation by $83,520 and the annual service and interest cost by $9,632.

F. Plan Assets

The University’s Retirement Plan Oversight Committee (“RPOC”) is chaired by the Vice President
and Chief Human Resources Officer, with committee members selected from across multiple
disciplines at the University. Its primary purpose is to assist the University in fulfilling its fiduciary
responsibilities by providing guidance and oversight for the University’s retirement plans, including
oversight of the custodial bank. The RPOC, in accordance with an Investment Policy Statement, and
in conjunction with its outside consultant, regularly reviews the investment strategies, along with
evolving institutional objectives, and will make recommendations regarding possible changes to
asset allocation and investment managers accordingly.

The University’s overall investment objectives for the pension plan and postretirement healthcare
plan assets are broadly defined to include an inflation-adjusted rate of return that seeks growth
commensurate with a prudent level of risk. To achieve this objective, the University has established
fully discretionary trusts with a custodial bank as trustee and investment manager for WCM’s
defined benefit pension plan and the postretirement medical benefit plan for the University’s
endowed employees on the Ithaca campus. Under those trust agreements the custodial bank
implements investment allocations through various investment funds in order to carry out the
investment objectives established by the RPOC.

Risk mitigation is achieved by diversifying investments across multiple asset classes, investing in
high quality securities, and permitting flexibility in the balance of investments in the recommended
asset classes. Market risk is inherent in any portfolio, but the investment policies and strategies

are designed to avoid concentration of risk in any one entity, industry, country, or commodity. The
funds in which the plan assets are invested are well-diversified and managed to avoid concentration
of risk. The expected rate of return assumptions are based on the expertise provided by investment
managers at the custodial bank. The factors that impact the expected rates of return for various
asset types includes assumptions about inflation, historically based real returns, anticipated value
added by investment managers, and expected average asset allocations.

The fair values of the pension plan assets and postretirement medical benefit plan assets are
categorized according to the fair-value hierarchy. Both the pension plan and postretirement medical
benefit plans invest in funds to meet their investment objectives. The asset allocation is based on
the underlying assets of the various funds. The fair-value level is based upon each fund as the unit of
measure. The fair value of the plans’ assets as of June 30 and the roll-forward for Level 3 assets are
disclosed in the tables below.

SUMMARY OF PLAN ASSETS

Target allocation Pension benefits Other postretirement
2019 2018 2019 2018
Percentage of plan assets
Equity securities 39-85% 62% 64% 69% 77%
Fixed income securities 15-55% 32% 30% 31% 23%
Real estate 0-10% 6% 6% 0% 0%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%
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PENSION PLAN ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019 2018
fair value fair value fair value Total Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market $ 199 |$ - % - % 199 | $ 3
Equity securities
U.S. small cap - 2,750 - 2,750 8,463
U.S. large cap - 25,865 - 25,865 35,989
U.S. multi cap - 19,737 - 19,737 7,364
US. REITS - 3,272 - 3,272 3,082
Emerging markets - 7,531 - 7,531 8,075
International equity - 23,354 - 23,354 16,347
Fixed income securities
U.S. high yield bonds - 8,091 - 8,091 5,263
Corporate bonds - 27,942 - 27,942 23,528
Mortgage-backed securities - 3,665 - 3,665 3,441
International fixed income - 3,323 - 3,323 1,225
Floating-rate debt instruments - - - - 2,457
Other types of investments
Real estate - - 7,784 7,784 7,278
Receivable for investments sold 16,858 - - 16,858 2,097
Payable for investments purchased (16,639) - - (16,639) (1,727)
Total assets $ 418 |$ 125530 |$ 7,784 |$ 133,732 | $ 122,885
SUMMARY OF LEVEL 3 PENSION PLAN ACTIVITY
Fair value, Realized Unrealized Transfers Fair value,
June 30, . ) Purchases Sales in/(out) of June 30,
2018 gain/(loss) gain/(loss) Level 3 2019
Real estate $ 7,278 |$ - 1% 396 |$ 110 | $ $ - 1% 7,784
Total Level 3
assets $ 7278 [$ - 19 39 |$ 110 | $ $ - 1% 7,784
POSTRETIREMENT PLAN ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market $ 8,633 | $ - % - % 8,633 | $ 1,563
Equity securities
U.S. small cap - 26,365 - 26,365 26,586
U.S. large cap - 95,822 - 95,822 90,548
Emerging markets - 30,818 - 30,818 35,464
International equity - 49,782 - 49,782 55,961
US. REITS - 5,642 - 5,642 6,210
Fixed income securities
U.S. high yield bonds - 23,976 - 23,976 15,351
Corporate bonds - 52,592 - 52,592 44,100
Emerging markets debt - 9,014 - 9,014 4,150
Receivable for investments sold 2,288 - - 2,288 3,649
Payable for investments purchased (2,259) - - (2,259) (3,648)
Total assets $ 8,662 |$ 294011 |$ - |$ 302,673 | $ 279,934
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G. Expected Contributions and Benefit Payments

The expected annual contributions and benefit payments that reflect anticipated service are as
follows:

EXPECTED CONTRIBUTIONS AND BENEFIT PAYMENTS
Other postretirement

Pension benefits Employer paid Government subsidy

University contributions
2020 $ 7,000 $ 25,909 n/a

Future benefit payments
2020 6,321 22,395 2,039
2021 7,022 24,009 2,173
2022 7,752 25,398 2,324
2023 8,475 26,957 2,474
2024 8,829 28,686 2,625
2025-2029 55,949 169,218 15,621

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 established a
prescription drug benefit known as “Medicare Part D” that also established a federal subsidy to
sponsors of retiree healthcare benefit plans. The estimated future government subsidy amounts are
reflected in the table above.

H. Contract College Employees

Employees of the Contract Colleges are covered under the New York State pension plans.
Contributions to the state retirement system and other fringe benefit costs are paid directly by the
state. The amount of the direct payments applicable to the University as revenue and expenditures
is not currently determinable and is not included in the consolidated financial statements. The
University reimburses the state for fringe benefit costs on certain salaries, principally those
associated with externally sponsored programs. The amounts reimbursed to the state during the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $18,414 and $17,306, respectively, and are included in
operating expenses.

8. FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS

The University, in limited instances, invests funds on behalf of related parties. Independent trustees
are responsible for the designation of income distribution. The value of the funds included on the
investment line in the consolidated statement of financial position was $223,932 and $222,006 for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The University recognizes an offsetting
liability for funds held for others, with one adjustment described below.

The New York Hospital-Cornell Medical Center Fund, Inc. (“Center Fund”), which benefits WCM and
the New York-Presbyterian Hospital, is the major external organization invested in the University’s
long-term investment portfolio with assets of $185,708 and $184,225 for the fiscal years ended

June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. WCM holds a significant beneficial interest in the assets of the
Center Fund of $123,105 and $113,811, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The liability related to New York-Presbyterian’s interest is $62,603 and $70,414 for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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9. BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

A. General Information

Bonds and notes payable are reported at carrying value, which is the par amount net of
unamortized issuance costs, premiums, and discounts. Bonds and notes payable as of June 30 are

summarized as follows:

SUMMARY OF BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE
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2019 2018 Interest rates (%) matilr?ta)l

Dormitory Authority of the State of New

York (DASNY)

Revenue Bond Series

1990B-fixed rate 24,425 | $ 27,870 4.50 to 5.00 2025
2000A-variable rate/monthly 32,735 35,355 2.27 t0 2.63 2029
2000B-variable rate/monthly 45,895 49,085 2.27 to 2.63 2030
2004A&B-variable rate/weekly 59,700 62,825 0.81t02.33 2033
2008B&C-fixed rate 102,700 106,035 5.00 2037
2009A-fixed rate - 261,050 4.00 to 5.00 2019
2010A-fixed rate 285,000 285,000 4.00 to 5.00 2040
2016A-fixed rate 112,260 117,205 3.00 to 5.00 2035
2019A-fixed rate 114,575 - 3.00 to 5.00 2029
2019B-variable rate/daily 92,210 - 0.82t02.30 2039
2019C-variable rate/monthly 79,370 - 2.48to 2.51 2034
Tax-exempt commercial paper - 52,890 0.79to 1.67 2037

Tompkins County Industrial

Development Agency (TCIDA)

2002A-variable rate/monthly 28,400 30,365 2.271t02.63 2030
2008A-fixed rate 55,400 57,320 3.00 to 5.00 2037

Empire State Development 1,250 1,375 - 2029

2018A-fixed rate 150,000 - 3.85 2048

2007A Taxable commercial paper 153,890 83,890 2.05t02.70 -

Hudson Cornell Residential JV LLC 97,550 96,630 3.81to0 4.27 2024

Other 7,948 6,027 4.90to 6.63 2039
Outstanding bonds and notes payable $ 1,443,308 | $ 1,272,922

g;;atr:ortized premium and issuance 43,650 32,729

Total bonds and notes payable $ 1,486,958 | $ 1,305,651

Debt and related debt service for borrowings by New York State for the construction and
renovation of facilities of the Contract Colleges are not included in the consolidated financial
statements because they are not liabilities of the University.

Under the DASNY Revenue Bond Series 1990B and tax-exempt commercial paper notes agreements,
these are general obligations of the University and are secured by a pledge of revenue. The
University has not granted a pledge of revenue on other debt.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the University issued $150 million taxable fixed rate
debt to finance capital projects. The University also issued $114,575 DASNY Series 2019A, $92,210
DASNY Series 2019B, and $79,370 DASNY Series 2019C to effect a current refunding of $254,000
Series 2009A and $52,890 of tax-exempt commercial paper. The University amended DASNY
Series 2000A&B bonds and TCIDA Series 2002A bonds to extend the agreements to the maturity
of the bonds.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, Hudson Cornell Tech LLC, a subsidiary of Hudson Cornell
Residential JV LLC (see Note 5B), extended its loan with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. for a variable-rate
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building and equipment loan up to $105,000 until February 2024. The University has consolidated
$97,550 and $96,630 of debt attributable to the subsidiary at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The loan is secured by a security interest in the building and equipment.

The University maintains tax-exempt and taxable commercial paper programs. Tax-exempt
commercial paper is used to finance qualified capital projects and equipment purchases. Taxable
commercial paper is also used for these purposes, and can be used to finance short-term working
capital needs. The maximum authorized amount of each commercial paper program is $200 million.

Scheduled principal and interest payments on bonds and notes for the next five fiscal years and
thereafter are shown below:

ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 38,846 % 40,752 $ 79,598
2021 41,174 44,903 86,077
2022 42,842 43,506 86,348
2023 44,522 42,085 86,607
2024 143,988 40,441 184,429
Thereafter 1,131,936 408,415 1,540,351
Total $ 1,443,308 $ 620,102 $ 2,063,410

The University estimates future interest payments on variable-rate debt based on the Securities
Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) rate for tax-exempt debt and the London
Interbank Offered Rates (LIBOR) rate for taxable debt.

B. Interest-Rate Swaps

The University approved the use of interest-rate swaps to mitigate interest-rate risk in the debt
portfolio. Interest-rate swaps are derivative instruments; however, their use by the University is not
considered to be hedging activity, based on definitions in generally accepted accounting principles.

Through the use of interest-rate swap agreements, the University is exposed to the risk that
counterparties will fail to meet their contractual obligations. To mitigate counterparty risk, the
University limits swap exposure for each counterparty. Master agreements with counterparties
include netting arrangements that permit the University to net amounts due to the counterparty
with amounts due from the counterparty. Utilizing netting arrangements reduces the maximum loss
in the event of counterparty default.

The University’s swap agreements contain a credit-rating-contingent feature in which the
counterparties can request collateral on agreements in net liability positions. At June 30, 2019 and
2018, the University did not have collateral on deposit with any counterparty.

The University’s interest-rate swaps are valued as of June 30 by an independent third party that uses
the mid-market levels, as of the close of business, to value each agreement. The valuations provided
are derived from proprietary models based upon well-recognized financial principles and estimates
about relevant future market conditions and the University’s credit worthiness. The University’s
interest-rate swaps are classified as Level 2 in the fair-value hierarchy.

At June 30, 2019, the University had five interest-rate swap agreements to exchange variable-rate
cash flows for fixed-rate cash flows without the exchange of the underlying principal amount. Net
payments or receipts of the swap agreements are recorded as adjustments to the swap interest
and change in value of interest-rate swaps line in the consolidated statement of activities. In all
agreements in effect at June 30, 2019, the counterparty pays a variable interest rate equal to a
percentage of the one-month LIBOR.

The following table provides detailed information on the interest-rate swaps at June 30, 2019, with
comparative fair values for June 30, 2018. The swaps are reported based on notional amount.
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FAIR VALUE OF INTEREST-RATE SWAPS IN STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notional Interest

Location
amount

rate

Termination
date

Swap interest and change in value of interest-rate swaps

$ 30,365
85,106
275,000
184,230
187,025
Total fair value

4.52
3.92
3.88
3.48
3.77

July 1, 2030
July 1, 2038
July 1, 2040
July 1, 2041
July 1, 2044

Basis

LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR

2019 2018

Level 2 Level 2

fair value fair value

$ (5651) $  (5012)
(20,928) (16,131)
(108,938) (79,298)
(42,352) (30,153)
(54,093) (39,819)

$ (231,962) | $ (170,413)

C. Standby Bond Purchase Agreements

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the University negotiated a standby bond purchase
agreement with US Bank for Series 2019B, expiring April 2024, and extended the standby purchase
agreement with BNY Mellon for Series 2004 bonds, expiring January 2022. In the event that the
bonds cannot be remarketed and the agreement is not otherwise renewed, the University will be
required to redeem the bonds or refinance the bonds in a different interest rate mode. In the event
that the bonds cannot be remarketed and the University did not redeem, the University will have a
current obligation to purchase the bonds tendered.

D. Lines of Credit

The University maintains three lines of credit totaling $200 million. $100 million expiring
March 2020, $75 million expiring April 2020, and $25 million expiring February 2020. The
lines of credit are used on a limited basis and as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the University

had no outstanding borrowings under these agreements. The University records the working
capital lines of credit activity and outstanding balances as other liabilities in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

10. LEASES

The University enters into lease agreements for the use of real property, machinery, and equipment.

Total operating lease expenses were $48,718 and $43,227 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The future annual minimum lease payments in the following table are
payments under operating leases expiring at various dates through June 30, 2068, and payments
under capital leases expiring at various dates through September 30, 2051. The capital lease balance
is primarily related to building leases for the Breazzano Family Center for Business Education at
Ithaca and the Tata Innovation Center at Cornell Tech.

ANNUAL MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS
Year
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments

Capital Operating

$ 8,500 % 49,365

8,493 48,696

8,402 44818

8,952 42,835

8,913 41,706

283,493 331,037

$ 326,753 % 558,457
(207,731)
$ 119,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

11. FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES AND STUDENT AID

Total expenses by functional categories for the fiscal years ended June 30 are as follows:

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Instruction,
'student Public Healthcare | Institutional Enterprises
services and Research ; ) and 2019 Total
. service services SUPpOI’t e

academic subsidiaries

support
Compensation
and benefits | 011,199 1$358,723 1§ 85704 | $ 978450 ' $ 324,628 |$ 125296 | $ 2,884,000
Other
operating 334,942 230,974 39,059 245918 97,529 115,203 1,063,625
expenses
Maintenance
and facilities 13,081 7,300 7,347 36,024 50,649 24,861 139,262
costs
Interest 25934 | 12,654 379 25 6,268 12,078 57,338
expense
Depreciation 133,166 | 53,577 5,334 47,320 27,787 37,634 304,818
expense
Total
operating $ 1,518,322 |$ 663,228 |$ 137,823 |$ 1,307,737 | $ 506,861 |$ 315,072 | $ 4,449,043
expenses
Other
components. 902 (99) (10) 5,882 886 99 7,660
of net periodic
benefit cost
Total $ 1,519,224 |$ 663,129 |$ 137,813 |$ 1,313,619 | $ 507,747 |$ 315,171 | $ 4,456,703

The expenses for operations and maintenance of facilities, depreciation, and interest related to
capital projects are allocated to functional categories based on square footage. The amounts
allocated for operations and maintenance were approximately $179,062 and $150,994 for the fiscal

years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Student financial assistance is shown as a component of instruction expense unless the assistance
is for tuition and mandatory fees. If the assistance is for tuition and mandatory fees, the amounts
are recorded as scholarship allowance, which reduces tuition revenue. Total financial assistance
amounts classified as instruction expense were $46,908 and $49,394 for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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12. NET ASSETS

A. General Information

The University’s net assets as of June 30 are as follows:

SUMMARY OF NET ASSETS

Endowment
True endowment

Funds functioning
as endowment
(FFE)

Total true
endowment and
FFE

Funds held by
others, perpetual

Total University
endowment

Other net assets
Operations
Student loans

Facilities and
equipment

Annuity and
other split-interest
agreements

Contributions
receivable, net

Long-term accruals

Total net assets

Without With donor 2019 Without With donor 2018
donor L donor o

o restrictions Total o restrictions Total

restrictions restrictions

$ - $5,062,037 $ 5,062,037 | $ - $4927564 $ 4,927,564

1,367,064 354,033 1,721,097 1,422,855 351,752 1,774,607

$ 1,367,064  $5,416,070 $ 6,783,134 | $ 1,422,855 $5,279,316 $ 6,702,171

- 191,503 191,503 - 169,310 169,310

$ 1,367,064 $ 5,607,573 $ 6,974,637 | $ 1,422,855 $5,448,626 $ 6,871,481

$ (98,414)  $ 455559  $ 357,145 | $(246,163) $ 471,590  $ 225,427

9,419 51,796 61,215 9,033 50,253 59,286

2,873,518 118,985 2,992,503 2,939,859 103,772 3,043,631

- 172,221 172,221 - 166,687 166,687

- 804,904 804,904 - 826,109 826,109

(728,960) - (728,960) (688,298) - (688,298)

$ 3,422,627 $ 7,211,038 $ 10,633,665 | $ 3,437,286 $ 7,067,037 $ 10,504,323

Net asset balances for operations (without donor restrictions) are affected primarily by operating
activities and strategic decisions to invest expendable balances in funds functioning as endowment
and capital projects. Long-term accruals represent longer-term liabilities including the unfunded
amount of pension and postretirement benefits, vacation accruals, conditional asset retirement

obligations for asbestos remediation, and fair-value adjustment on interest-rate swaps.

B. Endowment

The University endowment net assets at June 30 were held in support of the following purposes:

SUMMARY OF ENDOWMENT PURPOSE

Academic programs and research

Financial aid

Professorships

General purpose and facilities support

CU Foundation

Total true endowment and FFE, end of year

2019 2018

$ 1,978,914 | $ 1,966,874
1,784,316 1,733,832

1,475,443 1,447,617

1,382,125 1,384,398

162,336 169,450

$ 6,783,134 | $ 6,702,171
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Of the endowment assets held at the University, 98 percent was invested in the long term
investment pool (“LTIP”) at June 30, 2019 and 2018. The LTIP is a mutual-fund-like vehicle used
for investing the University’s true endowments, funds functioning as endowment, and other funds
that are not expected to be expended for at least five years. The University employs a unit method
of accounting for the LTIP. Each participating fund enters into and withdraws from the pooled
investment account based on monthly unit fair values. Participation in the LTIP using unrestricted
funds requires a minimum investment of one hundred thousand dollars and a commitment of at
least five years.

At June 30, 2019, 306 of 7,317 true endowment funds invested in the LTIP had a total historic dollar
value of $153,584 and a fair value of $140,029, resulting in these endowments being underwater

by a total of $13,555. The University holds significant appreciation on endowments to offset these
temporary decreases in value. The University has maintained these true endowment funds at their
historical book value.

Changes in the endowment net assets, exclusive of funds held in trust by others, for the fiscal years
ended June 30 are presented below:

SUMMARY OF ENDOWMENT ACTIVITY

Without ) Without )
With donor 2019 With donor 2018
donor L donor o
o restrictions Total o restrictions Total
restrictions restrictions

True endowment
and FFE, beginning $ 1,422,855 $ 5,279,316 $ 6,702,171 $ 1,395,479 $ 4,940,040 $6,335,519
of year

Investment return

Net investment

. 7,678 25,889 33,567 12,618 37,579 50,197
Income

Net realized and

unrealized gain/ 75,791 233,986 309,777 185,475 404,063 589,538
(loss)

::ttj:rulnvestment $ 83,469 $ 259,875 $ 343,344 | $ 198,093 $ 441642 $ 639,735
New gifts 2,342 117,452 119,794 5,703 136,892 142,595
Amounts

appropriated

for expenditure/ (75,883) (231,790) (307,673) (78,925) (232,431)  (311,356)
reinvestment

Other changes and (65,719) (8,783) (74,502) (97,495) (6,827)  (104,322)

reclassifications

Total true
endowment and FFE, $ 1,367,064 $ 5,416,070 $ 6,783,134 | $ 1,422,855 $ 5,279,316  $ 6,702,171
end of year

13. SELF-INSURANCE

The University retains self-insurance for property, general liability, student health insurance, and
certain health benefits. In addition, the University has an equity interest in a multi-provider captive
insurance company for medical malpractice.

A. Medical Malpractice

The University obtains medical malpractice insurance through MCIC Vermont (“MCIC”). MCIC is
a reciprocal risk retention group that provides medical malpractice insurance coverage and risk
management services to its subscribers.

MCIC is owned by the University, New York-Presbyterian Hospital, and four other institutions
of higher education and their respective teaching hospitals. All of WCM’s faculty physicians are
enrolled in MCIC. The medical malpractice incurred-but-not-reported liability is calculated annually
on an actuarial basis.
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WCM has recorded medical malpractice liabilities of $169,736 and $170,633 at June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively, as accrued expenses in the consolidated statement of financial position. In
addition, WCM maintains a reinsurance program with MCIC with anticipated recoveries of $119,955
and $122,351, respectively, recorded as accounts receivable (Note 3A).

B. Student Health Plan

The University has established a self-funded student health plan under Section 1124 of the New York
State Insurance Law (“NYSIL”). The Student Health Plan (“SHP”) provides health insurance coverage
to students at the University’s Ithaca-based campuses. The table below presents a summary of SHP
operations occurring during the University’s fiscal years ended June 30.

SUMMARY OF STUDENT HEALTH PLAN OPERATIONS

July 1-

August 1 -

July 1 -

August 1 -

July 31 June 30 ;019 July 31 June 30 2.018
) Fiscal . Fiscal
(prior plan (current (prior plan (current
year total year total
year) plan year) year) plan year)
Total premium revenue $ 3360 $ 33,804 $ 37,164 | $ 2,475 $ 29,897 $ 32,372
Expenses
Medical and prescription 3,434 24,554 27,988 2,819 21,000 23,819
drug expense
Health center capitation 826 6,885 7,711 523 5,847 6,370
Administrative fees 427 3,184 3,611 381 3,240 3,621
Total expenses $ 4687 $ 34623 $ 39310 | $ 3,723 $ 30,087 $ 33,810
i f health
Net income from healt $ (1,327) $  (819) $ (2,746) | $ (1,248) $ (190) $ (1,438)

plan operations

The University has established reserves with the amounts necessary to satisfy obligations of the
plan. Based on an analysis and recommendation of a qualified actuary, and with the approval of New
York State, the reserve for medical claims incurred-but-not-reported and claims reported but not
paid (“RBNP”) is maintained at an amount not less than 14.5 percent of expected medical claims
and 5 percent of expected pharmacy drug claims. In addition, a separate contingency reserve has
been established for the purpose of satisfying unexpected obligations in the event of termination

of the plan. The contingency reserve is maintained at an amount not less than 5 percent of the total
current plan year premiums and is invested in the University’s endowment. NYS requires that the
assets of the contingency reserve consist of certain investments of the types specified in Section
1404 of NYSIL. The specified types of investments include U.S. government securities categorized

in fair-value hierarchy Level 1, of which the University holds $463,300 and $109,562 in its investment
portfolio as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively (Note 4B). Premium revenue is billed in advance
of the plan year (unearned) and recognized as revenue on a monthly basis as coverage is provided.
The changes in the unearned premiums and SHP reserves during the fiscal years ended June 30 are
presented below.

SUMMARY OF STUDENT HEALTH PLAN UNEARNED PREMIUMS

2019 2018
Unearned premiums Unearned premiums
2017-2018 2018-2019 2016-2017 2017-2018
plan year plan year plan year plan year
Balance as of July 1 $ 2,764 % $ 2,270 % -
Balance as of June 30 - 2,837 2,764
Net change $ (2,764) % 2,837 | $ (2,270) % 2,764
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(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF STUDENT HEALTH PLAN RESERVES

IBNR/RBNP reserve Contingency reserve
2019 2018 2019 2018
Balance as of July 1 $ 3,275 | $ 3,203 | $ 1,863 | $ 1,723
Balance as of June 30 3,394 3,275 2,104 1,863
Net change $ 119 | $ 72 | % 241 | % 140

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The University is a defendant in various legal actions, some for substantial monetary amounts that
arise out of the normal course of its operations. Although the final outcome of the actions cannot
be foreseen, the University’s administration is of the opinion that eventual liability, if any, will not
have a material effect on the University’s financial position.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In September 2019, the University issued $121.4 million tax-exempt fixed-rate debt, maturing in July
2036, to finance capital projects. Based on the University’s evaluation of subsequent events through
October 17, 2019, the date on which the consolidated financial statements were issued, there were
no other events with material impact on the University’s consolidated financial statements.

39



‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

V1%

- T ILTY - - T ILLY 100°01 yoreasay paijddy pue otseg YoIeasay [eAmoLEY

30IAIBS YoJeasay [ednynaliby

PHLOL LL8000T $90°L81°T €188 [€10JGNS 80IAI8S BunaX eI [einnoLIby
- €0L 10T - - €0L 101 $LIOT weaSo1q Juowdo[aAd( SS90y 100y
- L8V £00-81-D-dDEDS-NL-SWV-VASN uBredwiey)-eueqi) 1V SIOUN[] JO ANSIPAIUN  L8F°] - 0L1°01 g wef - wesSoxd yuesn yoojg dox) Ayeroadg
- P98°LE 0£00-AN-dOEIS-91 SIPEN %9 BV JO 1A SAN $98°LE - 0L1°01 11 we] - wesSoxg yuesn) yoorg dox) Ayerads
100°59 LIS 16T 2000-AN-NDDS-91 sIEN % 8V JOIdOd SAN  L1S°16T - 0L1°01 g wef - wesSoxg yuein yoojg dox) Aeroadg
- 990°€L 9£0DXXXX00108 NV amnsup AN[IQRIA W] YI0X MON 990°EL - 0L1°01 11 we ] - wesSoxg yuein) yoolg dox) Ayeroads
- 0£2T! 11091 DS amnsup AN[IGRIA W] YIOX MON  0€£TTI - 0L1°01 g ey - weidoid juexn yooig doi) Aieroads
- S19°9C 800 91 DOS ammnsup AN[IQRIA Wi YI0X MON S19°9T - 0L1°01 e ey - weidold Juexn Yooig doi) Aeroadg
- €09°TT £00 91 DOS aunsup AN[IGRIA Wae YI0X MON  €09°TT - 0L1°01 g wieq - wesSoid yuein yooig doi) Kyjeroads
- 81T¥LT 900DXXXX0010L NV amnsuf ANNIQEIA W] YI0X MON 81THLT - 0L1°01 11 wiey - weadoid el yoorg doi) Ayeroadg
- £69°9L £000-81-D-dDEDS-WL-SINV-VASN A1aJes 29nP0I 10 1ND  £69°9L - 0L1°01 11 we - wesSoxd yuesn) yoojg dox) Ayeroads
- 6LY'SET £00-L1-D-dDEDS-WL-SNV-VASN A1aJes 29nP0IJ 101 1ND  6LH'SET - 0L1°01 11 wae ] - wesSoxd yuesn) yoopg dox) Ayjeroads
€pL'Sh SSI°I€l $£00-VO-dDEIS91 Aiayes 29npoig 10 1) 8ST°IE] - 0L1°01 [ wae - wiesSoxd yuesn) yoopg dox) Ayjeroads

- 098°€0L - - 098°€0L 9101 nezy pue Suipein

- PEIY LPTOXXXX00108 TNV SIIE % BV JO 1A SAN  PEIY - 95101 wesfoig JuawoAoxdw] SunodIRly dIeIS-[eIpa]
- 0578 - - 0578 951°01 weido1d yuswoAoIdw] SunoNIRy ARIS-[RIOP]

801085 BunajJe [einynauby
89 9SH 11 01091 DS IMsuL AN[IQRIA Wie JOA MON  9SH*T1 - 010 91 DOS axol 1y10 UMNILISY Jo Juounedoq
- @n 990ST€DS Aigeg 20npo1g 104 1Y) (LT) - 99051608 a¥or 1O UMNOHBY Jo juounredaq
- 8TET Spsss Auno) puepio) uoisudXE 2AnEIdo0) [[9WI0)  8TE‘T - P88 axor 1yI0 MMILIFY Jo Juowedoq
amymolI3y jo yusunaedoq
19)sN[D JWdOPAI( % YIIeISNY
- 9P8'8YESLL - 9Y8'8YESLL [0, 193SN]D IUEISISSY [ELULUL] JUIPTS
- 6ST°ESTS - 6STEST'S [E10 L, SOAAIIS UEWINE PUE [EIH Jo Juounaedoq
- 6S0°LES'Y - - 6S0°LES'Y TwWee6 810 ‘1 AInf Jo se sueo] SuIpuelSINO-SUIPNIS paSeueapesiy 10§ Sue0|
/sueo a1e) Arewid Surpnjou] ‘Sugo JUSPNIS SUOISSIJOI] YIBIH
- 00291 - - 00291 WEE6 SIUAPMIS PABLJUBAPESI(] 10f SUBO']/SUBO']
are) Arewig Supnjou] ‘sueo JUIPNIS SUOISSJOI] YHBIH
SIINAIIS UBWINY pue Yy[edy jo yudunaedaq
- L8S°S60°ELI - L8S°S60°€LI [er0 L uoyEanpy Jo yuowedoq
- 16S°€E6'LY - - 16S°€€6'LY 89T18 PaZIPISqNSUN-SUE0 JUAPMIS 10211 [B1OP2]
- 6TSPE0'ST - - 6TSPE0°ST 89T18 PIZIPISQNS-SULOT JUIPMS 1IN [2IPa]
- Lib'E61°9S - - Lib'E61°9S 89TH8 S(1'1d-SUr0T JUIPMIS 10931 [2I9PA
- LYT°E6V°TL - - Ly1'E6h'TL €908 WeIB014 JUeID) [[2d [F9P]
- £p8'H0T'SE - - £P8H0T'SE 86078 810T I AIn[ JO S® SUEOT SUIPUEISINQ-We1F01d UEOT SUDLA [BIOPI
- (00t°€) - - (00t°€) 8€0'P8 WEIF01q URO] SUPHOJ [P9PO]
- 9sp'sEl - - 9spSEl €608 AOUBMO[[Y 150D QANENSIUIWPY -WEIF0IJ APMIS-HHOM [210PA
- 6YTLYT'E - - 6VT LTS €608 weiBoig ApmS-jHoM [e10pa
- §  STL9S8T S - - §  STL9S8T S L00Y8 siexn KrumioddQ [evonzonpy [eyuawojddng [e1opa,g
uonednpy jo yusunredsq
A9)SN[D) UEBISISSY [BPDURUL] JUIPNIS

1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0} passeq w0, Spuy ySnoayp-ssed -sseq paesy
[euomIppy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



Iv

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- L9L'6 S1¥8T-0¥98¢-810T JUOWLIDA JO ANSIOAIUN  £9L°6 - s1zot UOHEINPE PUE YOIEISIY AIMNOLISY d[qeure)sng
- s S1692-0798€-L10T WOULIAA JO ANSIAIN  TTEHT - 1701 uonEINpE puk Yareasay mnoLdy ajqeureisng
- Tyl 08€ST-0P98E-910C JWOUdA JO ANSIOATUN  THTHIT - SITol UONEANPE PUE YOIEASAY AIMNOUTY d[qeureIsng
- 0SLL LLLET-098€-S10T JUOULIAA JO ANSIPAIUN  0SL°L - SITol UONEANPE PUE YOIEASAY AIMNOUTY d[qeureIsns
- S01°6 S169T-0v98€-L10T/1 €TTEIE]TANT ed 239]]0D) purlAIRIN JO AUSIOAIIN  S01°6 - S1T°01 UONEINPH PUE Y21easay AM[NIUTY d[qeureisng
- SI§°9T LL8Y8 0L MON JO UOHEIIPAL 1MIBIN SIRULE  S1§9T - s1zol UONEINPY PUE YOIEISIY AMNOLIFY d[qeule)sng
- 10¥'%S ST8BT-019€€-810T ‘0D asindelofy  [0pS - cIcol [oIeasay uoneaouu] ssauisng [ewis
- 998°C 17L9T-019€€-L10T "0 os|ndeiof - 9987 - TITol [oIeasay uoneaouu] ssauisng [ewg
- TEL'S - - EL's 01201 weSo1q yuern sdigsmo[o 4 ajenpein) — uoneanpy JYSIH
- 0S1°€01 - - 0S1°€01 L0T01 oIBISIY ISLISICT PUE Y[EIH [T
- 8EEBIT'L - - 8ECBITL €0T°01 1oV YoJeH Ay Jopuy) Suone)S JuswLadxy [EIMNOLEY 0} SjuswiAeq
- T67°07T - - 26207 0T0l1 yoreasay Ansaio aaneradoo)
- 09t°st PSLST-0058E-910T Jied 289]]00) PurlAIRIN JO AUSIOAUN  09F'SH - 00701 SJUBID) Y21easay [e10ad Yoreasay [eanousy 10§ sjuein)
- 698 80LST-I¥1€-910T QUIR JO ANSIPAUN  TH6°98 - 00201 SIUBID) Y2IL3sY [210adS ‘YoIeasay [eInouSy 10§ sjuein)
- 961°6T - - 961°6T 00T01 SIURID [0IeasaY [e10adS ‘YoIeasay [eInnoLSY o) sjuein

a1nynaLBy pue pooS 4o sIMIsU| [euoleN

ILY'E et 9Ty 868°0TC 1€301gNS 39IAI3S 153104
- PrO'El - - PPO'E1 66901 S)uowaISY diysiouireg
- 9Ty P¥€0-¥000TH11-DA-S1 "ou] uonepuno,f peaids AL Mol YOW AsdAD YL 9z - 089°01 uonaN0IJ YHEIH 182101
ILY'E 6ELTHT - - 6EL TP 089°01 UO13]014 YIEIH 1SA10,]
- S11°99 - - S11°99 78901 Yoreasoy A1sa104

801MI9S 15810

- 266'T6 - 2666 1e301gNS 801AI8S [en)NALIBY ubleio
- 0€1°T - - 0€1'%T 096°01 QOURISISSY [BIN[NOLIBY [O1UYII ],
- 79889 - - 79889 LLLOT diysmof[a] A30[0uyos ], pue 20USI0G [RINNOLISY [RUOHBWINU] SNR[I0g " UBWLION

301M8S [ean)naLBy ublaio4

78591 6ETPIT LTY'6 TIL'Y0T 1€101gNS 891AIAS U21L3saY IIWIOU0IT
- 6STL 790077000565 Auszoatun Mg 65TL - €5T°01 0IEa50Y UOHLINN PUE BJB(] 10WNSUO.)
78591 $78°001 - - $T8001 €501 218353} UOHLINN PUE Be(] JOWNSU0)
- 891°C $900--0009-6S Queme[d(] JO ANSIOAIUN 89T - 0ST0l suoneloqe[jo) pue
D) “YOIBASIY OIWOUOIE [BINY PUE [BINNOLISY
- L88°€ - - L88°¢ 0ST01 SUOIIBIOQE[[0)) PUE SJUAWAAITY

2ANEI2d00)) “YoIrISIY OIOUODT [BINY PUE [BIN)NOLSY
901AI8S J9easay JILOU0I]

020°01 T0L°LT8T 8YL°LTOT $S6°66L |B10JgNS 821AI8S UO1YRdSU| Ui[esH Jue|d pue [ewiuy
- ¥S9 $60000L9SOddLIdV ANISIOATUN) JBIS 29 AAMSU] JMUYNK[OJ BIUIBIIA 59 - ST001 Q1B [BWIUY PUE [O1UO)) 1594 ‘ASLAsI(] [EWIUY PUB Jur[]
- S6LES TL8002D SN %9 BY JO 1420 SAN  S6L°ES - ST001 aIeD) [EUNUY PUE ‘[ONUOD) 1524 ‘ASLASI(] [BUIUY PUE Jue|d
- 0€S°C 09¥2000040ddL1dV sIyEN % 8V JOIdOd SAN  0€5°C - ST0°01 aIeD) [EUIUY PUE ‘[O1U0)) 1524 ‘ASLASI(] [EWIUY PUE Jue|d
- 110°8€8 VO-S$120-9€78-91 sIEN P 8V JOIdOA SAN  110°8€8 - ST0°01 aIeD) [BWIUY PUE ‘[O1U0D) 152d ‘SLASI(] [BWIUY PUE Jue|d
- T0S°L1 T6¥D000040dd81dV UOHEID0SSY SUOPIED) dH[qNJ UBOLAWY  ZOS'L] - ST0'01 21D [BWIUY PUE ‘[O1U0D) 152d ‘SLASI(] [BWIUY PUE JUe]d
- T61°06 12000000HOd8 1V UONEI0SSY SUSPIED d1qnd UESLDWY  Z61°06 - ST0°01 QIED) [EWIUY PUE ONUOD) 1594 “OSEASI [BWIUY PUE JuT|d
- ¥90°ST VO-61S1-0018-91 UONEI0SSY SUSPIED d1[qnd UBOLAWY  $90°ST - ST0°01 9IED) [EWIUY PUE “[ONU0D) 1594 “0SEASI [BWIUY PUE Jue|d
0Z0°01 $S6°66L - - ¥S6°66L $T0°01 dIE)) [BWIUY PUB ONU0)) )Sd( *ISLISI(] [BWIUY pue Jue[g

90IAI8S UondadsU| UieaH Jue|d pue [ewiuy

1d1ay-qng saanyy q aaquiny Suikynuapy Amug ydnoayy-sseq y3nouayy, »auq uonEIYHUIPY va4d wea501d [e1apay
0 passeq oL Spug ySnoayp-ssed -ssed paeay
[euomIppy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



(44

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- SL6'6 011£2-90089-S10T 1810y SPASNYIBSSEIA JO ANSIDAIUN  G/6°6 - 01£°01 (144 V) 2ANENIU] OIB3SY POO puE aImnousy
- PIETT €LTIT-L10L9-€10T JSIOYWY SPASNYOBSSEIN JO ANSIPAIUN  F1E€°TT - 01£°01 (IIAV) 2AERIU] YO183SaY PO PUE AI)NOLBY
- 86T°€ L69LT-TEOLI-810T g 289]10D) PUBAIRIN JO ANsIoAUN  §ST'E - oreol (RIAY) 2AEIIU] YOIEasay POO PUE 2mynoLsy
- 8L6°0S FE9ET-H0069-S 10T OyEp] JO ANSIOAIUN  8L6°0S - orgol (I4AV) 2ARERIU] YoIeasay oo, pue amynoudy
- £6€°T1 96LLT-610L9-810T axemeaQ JO ANSIPAIN - €€€°TT - 01€°01 (IIAV) SAERIU] YO183S9Y PO PUE AIMYNOLBY
- 61) 900£T-€10L9-S10T ofai( ues ‘Blwoj[e) JO AusAn  (61) - orgol (RAAV) AURDIU] YOIEISY POO,] PUE 2Im[NILBY
- [aaked 6v1ST-L0069-910T PISIOARY BILION[ED) JO ANSIAIUN  HP1°Th - 01€°01 (IMAV) SAERIU] YO183SaY PO PUE AIMyNOLBY
- 199°12C 6£65T-L00L9-L10T SIAR( BIUIOJED JO ANSIOAIN  199°1TT - 01€°01 (IIAV) 2AERIU] YOI83SaY PO PUE AIMNOLBY
- 1087 T06¥T-£T0L9-910T SIABQ BILIOJ[ED) JO ANSIOAIUN 08D - 01€°01 (IMAV) SALEDIU] YoIBasaY POO,] PUE AIMNOLY
- 068 99102-70089-C10T SIABQT BILIOJED) JO ANSIOAUN 06§ - 01€°01 (IMAV) 2ALERIU] YoI8ISTY PO, puE AIYNOLSY
- 19€°61 109%2-€0089-910T oeyng JO ANsAln  19¢°61 - 0101 (V) 2ALERIU] YoI83STY PO, puE AINYNOLSY
- 7099 809¥T-€10L9-910T UONEPUNO, YoIedsay BII000 JO N +$09°9 - 01€°01 (144V) 2AnEHIU] YOI83S3Y POO] PuB IM[NOLISY
- PS1°T8 PPLYT-90089-910T Ays1oAtun synL - pS1°z8 - 01€°01 (RIAV) 2ATERIU] YoI23SaY PO, pUE AIMYMOLBY
- 11+0z1 €1682-€10L9-810T ANSIDAIUN WY SBXOL  11#°0T1 - 01€°01 (IIAV) SAERIU] Y0183y POOS PUE AIMYMOLBY
- SLS‘TS LO9¥Z-£0089-910T ANSIOAIUN NPV SBXOL  SLS'TS - 01€°01 (IMAV) 2ABERIU] Yo183STY PO, puE AINYMOLBY
- TUTYS €26vT-S10L9-910T AusIoAlN WBY SBXOL  TIT'HS - 01€°01 (IMAV) 2ABERIU] Yo18ISTY PO pUE AINYMOLBY
- 688°1€C S9LYT-S10L9-910T ANSIOAUN J[[YONI0Y  688°1€T - 01€°01 (IMAV) 2ALERIU] Yo183STY PO PuE AINYMOLBY
- LLEE 90062-600L9-610T ALUM 9IS BIUBAIASUUD]  LLE°C - 01€°01 (IMAV) dATRDIU] YOIB3saY POO,] pue amynousy
- T6'e 9Y9LZ-€20L9-810T ALU( 9JIS BIUBAIASUUD]  TT6°C - 01€°01 (1YAV) 2ABEDIU] YOSy POO,] PUE AIMNILTY
- 686°1S 85T92-€10L9-L10T ALu[) )e1§ BIUEAASUUD]  686°1S - 01€°01 (RYAY) SABRIU] YDIBISIY POO,] UL Iy noLSy
- $80°1 01+TT-€10L9-710T ArsiAtun ajeis oMo $80°1 - 01€°01 (IAV) PADEIIU] YOIEasRY POO,] Pur oSy
- L£9 05822-90089-510T Al 9IS BUBIIOI L9 - 01€°01 (RYAY) SABRHIU] YDIBISIY POO,] UL Iy noLITy
- 108°1L1 1€65T-70089-910C Ays1aAtup) IS UBSIPIN  108°1LT - 01€°01 (RIAV) 9ABENIU] YDIEISIY POO,] PUE MY NILITY
- 0Tr'l TTESTH0089-€10T AYSIOAIU() dBIS OPBIO[OD 0TI - 01€°01 (1YAV) 2ABEDIU] YOIEaSY POO] PUE AMNIUTY
- 050°0T 6087T-€20L9-910T AusioAtun deYS BUOZIY  0S0°0T - 01€°01 (1YAV) PABEDIU] YOIEASY POO,] PUE ANIUTY
- SOI'SL 886¥2-610L9-910T SuonIpadxg poqudLy  SO1°8L - 01€°01 (1YAV) PABEDIU] YOIEASY POO,] PUE A NIUTY
S6T°616 69V 1€S°L - - 69V 1€S°L 01€°01 (IRIAV) PADEDIU] YoIBasay POO,[ PUE AIMNILBY
- P6v°L SEPST-I811S-810T AusidALun eIS UOIBUISEA  P6bL - 60€°01 dAnEIIU] Yoreosay doi)) Ayeroods
- 9€L°T01 I18€TT-I811S-710T Aysioatun deys uoIBUIYSEN  9€L°TOT - 60€°01 dAnenIu] Yoreasay doi) Ayeroods
- 1€2°€S S9€8Z-18115-810T 181000 JO ANSIOAIUN  [€T°ES - 60€°01 dAnEnIu] Yoreasay doi) Ayeroods
- PE1°T6 TIEPT-I811S-S10T BPHOLI JO ANSIOAIUN  $E1°T6 - 60€°01 aaneniuf yoreasay dox) Aeroads
- Tho'6LE LLETT-I8T1S-410T EPLOL JO ANSIOAIUN  THO6LE - 60€°01 aaneniuf yoreasay dox) Aieroads
- 8SL°06 £5092-9100L-L10T OPISIOARY BIWION[ED) JO ANSIOAUN  8SL°06 - 60€°01 dAnEnIu] Yoreasay doi) Ayeroods
- 665°61 £8€8C-18115-810T Aasiof MON JO ANSIOAIUL) JIBIS OYL ‘SOFINY 66561 - 60€°01 aanenuf yoreasay dox) Aeroads
- 89791 60vST-I8115-910T ANSIDAIUN) AIBIS BUIOIED YHON  $89°T91 - 60€°01 aaneniuf yoreasay doi) Aieroads
- 7€8°961 TSTYT-18115-S10T ANSIOAIUN) AIBIS BUIOIED) YUON €861 - 60€°01 neniuy yoreasay dox) Aiperoads
- 0€8°TL SSTYT-1811S-S10T ANsIoAun) EIS UWEBIOUN  0€8°TL - 60€°01 aAneniuy yoreasay dox) Aiperoads
- 658°S1 8LEET-I8TISP10T AsIoatun deIS UEBIOUN  658°ST - 60€°01 aAneniuy yoreasay dox) Aiperoads
- 6LS€T 08€TT-1811S-¥10T Apsroatun) oer§ UBSIYIIN  6L5°€T - 60€°01 aaneniu] yoreasay dox) Aeradg
43T PISTLLY - - PISTLLY 60€°01 aAnenIuy yoreasay doi) Ayeroods
- 191°61 $TLSTOOEISITOT a0ua) desIQ YL [91°ST - LOE0T QAIRNIU] UOISUIXY PUE [DIEISY dIM[MOLIFY d1uediQ)
- 668°9 SSIPT-00€15-S10T Aus1oAtun aeig UOISUIYSEA,  668°9 - LOE01 SAEDIU] UOISUAIXY PUE YIEISIY MIMIOLBY dluesi
- 8TTTEL 0£18T-00€16-810T Ausioatun aeig U050 8TTTEI - LOE01 QAEDIU] UOISUQIXY PUE YIEISOY MIM[NOLBY d1uesio
- L9906 6089T-00€16-L10T Ausioarun aeig w0810 L9906 - LOE01 SANEDIU] UOISUQIXY PUE YIEISIY MIM[NOLBY d1uesio
- P18°9T £2TTT-00€15710T Ausioarun aeig 10810 $18°9T - LOE01 QANEDIU] UOISUQIXY PUE YDIEISIY HIM[NOLBY d1uesi0
159°16% €00°LST'T - - £00°LST'T LOEOT SAIENIU] UOISUIXE PUB [OIBISRY AIM[NILISY d1uesio
£2€°89€ 671°8Y9 - - 621°819 $0E01 [PAMOUBY AILNSS PUBWOH
- 799°9T LLLST-9011S-810T uonei0dio)) yoIeasay ANSIOAIUN BIWBIA 19N 799°9T - £0€°01 sweiSo1d payessojuy
- S06°'1S - - S06°TS £0€°01 sweio1q pajessajuy
- I71°sTI - - 11°sT1 61701 [oIBSOY JUSWISSISSY Ysry ASojouydaorg
STEYL S8L'EET - - S8LYEET L1T01 weiSo1q sjur1n) 9BUS[[RY) UOHMNSU] - UONELINPT JOYSIE
1dpay-qng saanyy a Jaquiny Sudyyuapy Apug ydnoyr-ssed ysnoay waua uoyEIRHUIPL vado wier3014 [619pg
0 passeq oL Spug ySnoayp-ssed -ssed paeay
[euomIppy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



Y00 V€L

adl
SES'6IL

€PS'L

685°959°C

THT'LOS'LE

081721

€1TEl

9LE'S

050°T8S

081°21

$€9'86
91670t
LYS'LT
£€6°€
610°LY

S06°88€'S

09€°59L°8T

81T°6

8¥S1T

€9L°LOY
8TY'LY
895°91
81€91
LLY'S
'8
8pb'LI
0£1°sT
899°T8¢€
L88°1

SIS°801

T00°07
17548
62
8LT6E
T60°0L
(82)
99
LS6'TS
192°8L

0} passeq

2.

eoL

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

LO0DEYPXT0STLIOV

L00-81-L£AT-69

LEE-LI-SLVE-R9

LT1LT-S000L-L10T
0€8ST-9000L-910T
+87TT-9000L-710T
LLTFT-9000L-S10T
S91¥T-9000L-S10T
TSI¥T-9000L-S10T
0T687-9000L-810T

8L88T-0TO0L-810T

6€8LT-1000L-810T
86STT-TOSBE-Y10T
€TILT-H0S8E-LT0OT
£€908T-€10L9-810T
S8FET-€00L9-S10T
68TET-€10L9-S10T
6€TIT-ST0L9-€10T
8LTST-610LS-910T
86T8T-S10L9-810T

Jaquiny Surkynuapy

Snug ySnoay-sseq

UOIOY ATRULIOJSULL, 10 191Ud))

ALU[) 91R)S BIUBA[ASUUD]

AMDSU Y21BISAY d NI

SIAR(] BIUIOJI[ED) JO ANSIOAIUN)

JUOWIdA JO ANISIdATUN)

JUOWLIdA JO ANISIdAIUN)

Sjaed 282[]0)) puelAIe|N JO ANSIOATUN)
epLIOL] JO ANsIoAIun

Kasiof MmN Jo ANISIOATUN 1S Ay, ‘S108Imy
AlU() 3JBIS BIUBAASUUD ]

JUOWIDA JO ANSIdATUn)

KNISIOATU) IO ] 99SSAUUD],

AIU() 9)B)S BIUBAJASUUDJ

ANsIoAIUN RIS OO

AKNSIOAIUN RIS 2 AMNSU] JIUYOANA[O BIUISIIA
AKYISIOAIUN RIS 2 AMNSU] JIUYOANK[O BIUISIIA
Qwe ANON JO ANsIoAIN

BYSBIQIN JO ANsioatun

LNOSSTA JO ANSIOATUL)

BoSOUUI JO ANSIOAIUL)

Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

134

- P00°PEL

- 69711

- SES6IL

- €rSL £000000008 1 TEEET
9€8710°9 907 T6L1E

- €I1Tel

9LE'S -

895701 8oLy

S£9°86 -

- 91670

- LyS'LT

£€6°¢ -

- 610°Lt

097°699°¢ 006°$60°ST

- €9L°LOY

STH'LY -

89591 -

81€91 -

LLY'S -

179’8 -

8ppLI -

0£1°sT -

- 899°T8€

L88°1 -

- S1S'801

200°0¢ -

1258 -

6y -

8LT6E -

T60°0L -
(82) -

$99 -

LS6'TS -

197°8L -

ysnoayy waa uoyEayHUIPY
-sseq paesy
[euomIppy

0T9°11
609°11

@1

06201

(344011

1601
1601
£06°01
206701
206°01

00S°01
0ge°01
62E01
6701
6701
6TE°01
6TE°01
6TE°01
6TE°01
8TE01

8TE01

9TE01
0TE01
61€°01
01€°01
01€°01
01€°01
01€°01
01€°01
01g°01

vain

[e101gns (LSIN) ABojouyds pue sprepuels Jo alniisu| [euoiieN
yoeann(Q) uoneonpg 10/pue ssauisng ‘AJojouyda ] ‘vousiog
SPIEPUE)S PUE [OIBASAY SuLIoauISuy pue JUSWAIMSLaA
(LSIN) ABojouya | pue spiepuels 4o aimusul [euoneN
1910 ‘neaIng snSu) 'S’
dduawwo) jo yudwredaq
&)oL danymaridy jo yusunaedaq
[2IBASIY OILOUOdT PUB JONIRA [RINNOLISY
SIWOU02T J31UD 3L} JO 3O YL
SIDUOURY PUE SIQULIE UBIIOA
p pesi( A][e100S 1oy 1SISSY pue yoranng
JuswisBeury [eyuswedaq S0 A1e18193S JUBISISSY

pue

1€101GNS 301AI8S UONBAIZSUOD $304N0S3Y [eJnfeN
weiBo1d SIANUOUL A)I[End) [RIUSWUONAUY
weiBo1d SIANUOUL A)I[End) [RIUSWUONAUY
£oamsg (10§
UONBAIISUO)) IOJEA\ PUE [10S
UONBAIOSUO)) 10} A\ PUE [0S

801AJ9S UONBAISSUOD $82IN0SAY [ednjeN

[e)01gns a1mnaLBy pue pooS Jo alnusu| [euoneN
201A108 UOISUAIXT] dANEId00))
weiSo1q yoreosay 93LI0] PUE BIEIY
weiSorq syuein) aannadwo)) juswaSeuey 1594 pue uonoajoid doi)y
weigoig syuein aannadwo)) juswafeue|y 1594 pue uonodjold doi)y
weidoig syuein aannadwo)) juswafeue|y 1594 pue uonodold doi)y
wesord syuein aannadwio)) juawafeuey 1594 pue uonoajold doi)y
wesord syuern aannaduwio)) juawaSeuey 1594 pue uonoajold dox)y
wesord syuern aannadwio) juswaSeuey 1594 pue uonoajold dox)y
wesoid syuern aannaduwio) juawafeury 1594 pue uonoajold dox)y
wesdoid syuein dANNadwo)) AOURISISSY [BIIUYID ],
PuE ‘Yor2nNQ) ‘UOISUAIXY ‘UoNeoNpy ‘Sururel], K1aJe§ poo [EUOHEN
wWeI501q SIULID SANNAdW0)) SIUBISISSY [BIIUYID L
puE ‘yorannQ ‘uoisud)xyg ‘uoneonpy ‘Suruter] K19jes poo [euoneN
(VOOIN) 21mnoudy jo sagajo)) juein pue-uoN 10y Sutpying Aioede)
weidoid ueln ung
0 Suny, pue \[ SSOUISN Wi,
(IRIAV) SADENIU] YOIBISIY POO,] PUE AINNOLTY
(IYAV) SANENIU] YOIBISIY POO,] PUE dIMNOLITY
(V) PATEHIU] YIBOSRY POO.] PUE AMNILEY
([YAV) OABEIIU] §oIEs9Y POO.] PUE Ay nousy
(RIAV) QABEDIU] §oIE0s9Y POO.] PUB JInynousy
([YAV) QABEDIU] §oIE0saY POO.] PUE JInynoLSy

weadoad [e1apayg

weidoiq syuein

610T ‘0€ dunp papuy 1ed3x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



T€0°T06°€

61LT
16599
716601
908°L8
S6LIST
SLTH
195701
859°01T
955901
268°69T
L61°691°T

06T 6L
000°0S
669°91
8E1°501
P6€70C
8L6'LI
[leaat
66L°761
€pL611
101°0€
699°5€
61011
119°LT
£65°0¢1
(6L1)
80S'PST
L68'T
T01°Ts
199151
YEE'EIT
(6+2°0)
(+9)

96¥'8LI'T

676°9¢Y

€977
£6v°es
PRO'p1
€7T'8
8€5°6¢€
$69°0L
€8€°L6
L6601
€1€°97

0} passeq

144

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

6L00-D-61-05L8V A
£98L-T-81-0598V A
$200-T-81-11004H
990t-0-S1-10099N
L0O8L-D-81-0598V A
000281 1VILAH
$20000V81d
TS8L-T-81-0S98VA
1£0000V81d

9¥ 10281 1100dH

EVLLY

11268
900-A-81-0€T86H
L00-D-L1-1100¥H
L800-D-81-£9A0%1
189-810C

9200-D-ST-AOTT6M
9€T0-0-S1=ANTI6M
6800-01=INI16M
£500-T-60-ANT16M
9L10-D-LI-HMXI8M
L1T0081SEERIN

6¥002-81-11004H

L1 0024d601Ly0SD
1000-A-S1-T0L8VA
11€0-A-91-1598Vd
£€00002d91a
900008THOLI-¥L10T

90001+7ANNSTVN
TSI0TEVIVOLIVN
6LI0TEPIVOITVN
6EE0TEPIVOSIVN

9600L17AVOSTVN
81-HHS
T1-aHd
6900LTHIVOFTVN

Jaquiny Surkynuapy
Snug ySnoay-sseq

[eUOnEWI] [YS
uoSurysepy JO ANSIOAIUN

oSeory) JO Asioarun)

Kopoysog BrwIoyIE) JO ANSIOAUN
571 ‘SuiSewy puy oynuaIdg KPR
suownsu] 10pAS

AysioAtun) onpang

AySI9ATUN UOYOUL]

AU AJBIS BUBIUOJ

Kioeioqer] so1sy g porddy

ouj e[sa,
AysoAtun) onpang

Ssu[ 20us10g sopdwo;) [PUOHEWINU]
AYSIOATUN UOYOUL]

DTTWwd[EX

D77 BALOURY

BIRQIRE BIULS ‘BIUIOJI[E)) JO ASIOATUN)
SOUIORJ SSOUISNE [EUONBUINU]
Auedwio)) uoaykey

Auedwio)) uoaykey

-5u[ SOIB[OUY UEDSEIA

77 semuop ASojouyoa |, Furprogy

f1opesoqer sorskyg poyddy
07171 Anpisug

LI Qe ujodury

uojke( JO Ansvaun
QUIIPII JO 989[[0) JojAeg
sydway JO AnsIoAtun

[1ouno) JusWdFRURIA AI19YSL] ONUR[Y-PIA
ueSyory JO ANsIoATUN

uoneiodio)) puey

AYSI9AIUN BIqUIN[OD)

{001g AU0IS DIMIISUT JUBID BIG Y104 MIN
0o1g AU0IS DIMIISU] JUBID BIS 104 MIN
{001 AUOIS “DIMIISU] JUBID) BIS Y104 MIN
{001 AUOIS “DINIISUT JUBID) BIS 10 MIN

Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

SE8'TEL'T L61'691°T [e101qns Aousby s108load Yoaessay paoueApy
61LT - 01671 Juawdojaaaq ASojouypa |, pue yoreasay
16¥°9%9 - 016l yuawdofaaa(y A5ojouyoa |, pue yoreasay
T16%601 - 016CL Juawdoaaaq A8ojouypa |, pue yoreasay
908°L8 - 0161 Juawdoaaaq ASojouypa |, pue yoreasay
S6LIST - 016TI JuswdojoAd(] A30[ouyd L pue YoIeasay
SYLTY - 016TL Juawdojaaaq ASojouyoa |, pue yoreasay
195401 - 016CI JuswdojaAd(] A30[ouyI pue YoIeasay
859°01T - 016T1 juowdooaaq ASojouyod |, pue yoieasay
955901 - 0161 JuswdojoAd(] AB0[ouyII pue YoIeasay
76569 - 016°TL Juowdojoaaq ASojouyoa |, pue yoreasay
- L61°691°T 016°T1 juowdojoaaq ASojouyoa |, pue yoreasay

fouaby s108lo1d Yyoreasay paoueapy
- 00°06T'¥6L 100D811100dH (e yal 1073 ‘asuRja(] J0 udunreda(
000°0§ - EVLL8 adct 110 “dsudge( Jo udunreda
66991 - 11268 adzl 101Q) “osudga( Jo dunedoq
8€1°501 - 900-0-81-0£Z86H ¥l 110 ‘osuaze( Jo jusuneda
$6£°T0T - L¥00-D-L1-1100¥H a¥el 1yIQ “dsudga( Jo udunreda
8L6'LI - £800-D-81-€9010¢ 1 ¥l 1O dsuage( Jo Judunedaq
Claaal - 189-810C a¥el 110 “asud)a( Jo waunedoq
- 66L°T61 TS00D8TOHTI6M a¥et 110 ‘osuaze( Jo Jusuneda
SHL611 - 9200-D-S1-ADTT6M a¥zi 110 “asuagaq] Jo yuounedoq
101°0€ - 9€20-D-ST-INTT6M ¥l YO “dsuaze( Jo Juduneda
699°5€ - 6800-D71-INTT6M ¥l 110 “osuaze( Jo Jusuneda
£6v°011 - £500-T-60-ANTT6M adet 110 “dsudpa( Jo udunreda
119°LT - 9L10-D-LI-HMXI8M ¥l 1YO “dsuaje( Jo Juduneda
€65 01 - LTTOOSISEERIN adet 1YIQ “dsudpa( Jo udunredo
- (6L1) 6002-D-T1-10099N a¥l 1O ‘dsudge( Jo wountedaq
80§ST - 6700D-81-1100MH adct 110 “dsudpa( Jo udunedoq
L68°T - L1 0008d601+0SD a¥zl 10 “asuaga(T JO Judumeda
201°TS - 1000-A-ST-T0L8VA adet 1YIQ “dsudya( Jo udunedoq
$99°151 - 11€0-a-91-1598V4 adct 1YIQ “dsudya( Jo udunedo
PEEEY - £00000d91a a¥zi 10 “asuaga(T JO Juoumeda
(6vT0) - 900008THOL1-¥L10T ¥zt Y0 “osudpa( JO Jdunedoq
- (+9) €L0L8 a¥zl 1q10 “osudpa(] JO Jdunedoq
asuaja( o yuauntedaq
11°L6€ $80°18L 1301, d1owwo)) jo yudunaedaq

11H°L6€ 8€5°6€ [e101anS (VVYON)

UonEASIUIWPY JLIBYdSOWNY PUE J1UBsOO [eUONEN
€977 - [Tt s[1ouno)) juawaSeuey A1oyst ] [puorSoy
£61°€S - Tl soymnsug aAne1d00) (VVON) UONRHSIUIpY O IV PUB d1UEIOQ) [PUOHEN
PROY1 - 1€Y11 YoIeasay duaydsowyy pue spew))
£TT'8 - (3t YoIeasay duaydsowyy pue spewr))
- 8€5°6¢ 1€Y11 YoIeasay duaydsowyy pue spewr))
$69°0L - LIFTI Joddng juern eag
£8€°L6 - LIFT1 y10ddng juein) eog
L6601 - LIFT1 y10ddng juein) eog
£1€°97 - LIP11 y10ddng juein) eog

(VVON) UOREASIUILPY 9113y dSOWy pue d1Uesd0 [euoneN

ydnoayy, waxq uoneIYHUIPY vaid weasoag [eIapag
-sseq presy
[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPABMY [B.I3PI] JO S2I1mIpuddxy JO 3[npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



197

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- $88°C - - $88°T 106°T1 SJUBID) SOOUAIOS [EINBWAYIEN

Kousby A11ndag [euoneN

060°€08°T LOS 1958 9EL'SLL ILL'SSL'L [e101qNS Yoseasay [eneN

10 43142 8y} 40 31140 ‘ANeN aup Jo Juswiedag
- 669°C THIT-1-ST-71000N SMAIPUY IS JO ANSIAIUN  669°T - 00€° yoreasay oynuatog parddy pue orseg
- (a3t 2862-1-91-F1000N rleqIRg BIUES BILIOJNED JO ANSIAIN  TOP'EIE - 00€°T! yoreasay oynualog parddy pue siseg
- 9L6'8Y 1SS0-1-¥1-¥1000N AysIoAluN pIOJURIS 9,68t - 00€°CI yo1easay dynuadg parjddy pue orseg
- SOP'L8T L98T-1-L1-¥1000N UONEPUNO YOIEAsIY ANSIOAUN ABIS 0521 UBS  SOB*LYT - 00€°CI 218350y dYnudS parddy pue oiseq
- LS9'8 808T-1-81-71000N AsIoAtun 21)§ U010 £69°8 - 00€°TI 218359y dYyHuIdS patddy pue oiseq
- T6L°06 88ST-1-L1-F1000N Aus1oatun) IS ©IBI09D  Z6L°06 - 00€°TI 218359y dYHUAIS patddy pue oiseq
- $98°€9 99TT-1-61-¥1000N ASojouyoo |, JO aymnsu[ BISI00D  G98°€9 - 00€°TI 018359y dYHUALS patddy pue orseg
- (pLE9) 1950-1-€1-F1000N Austoatun oyng  (pL€°9) - 00€°TI Yoreasay oynuatog parjddy pue orsee
- P1£°99 1820-C-S1-0SL8V Ausioatun uofo-o13ouE)  $1€°99 - 00€°T yoreasay dynuatdg parjddy pue siseg
060°€08°C TLL'SSL'L - - ILL'SSL'L 00€TI yoreasay synuadg parjddy pue oiseg

YaJeasay [eABN JO J31UD Y} JO 891340 ‘AneN ay) 4o Juauiedaq

8€0°966°'T Ov6'E11SI 00T'80L°1 ObL'SOPEl |e10gNns s13au1bu3 40 Ja1yd ayp Jo 9LJO ‘Awly syl Jo Juswredsq
- €TTL PS10-1-9T-ANTTOM UOSIPRIN UISUOISIA JO ANSIAUN  €TT°L - 1ev'Tl [21easay dHuRLog dlseq
- 9IL 60S0-1-TI-ANTTOM BIUBA[ASUUR JO ANSIOATUN 9L - 1er°Tl [2180say dPHURLOS dlseq
- 9¥S°L0T 89S0-1-ST-ANTI6M ISIYUIY SPASNYIESSBIN JO ANSIDAIUN 9P LOT - 15344 [2180SY dPHURIOS dlseq
- 615001 €000-1-¥1-ANTI6M 088214 JO ANSIAIUN 615001 - 1evTl [2I80SY dNULIoS dlseq
- 66T°61T TST10-T-8I-ANITTOM AYISI0AIUN) PIOJURIS  667°61T - 1er'Tl [2IB0SaY dNULIOS dlseq
- 066611 LS00-1-61-INTT6M JouyPa, JO dImnsu | 066°611 - 1£p°zl OIRISOY OLNUAIOG O1see
- 009°1T LITO-1-61-ANTT6M [0UYO3 L JO Amnsu] I 009°1T - {3t [183s9Y QYHUAIDG dIse
- £TLTL 9200-T-SI-ANTI6M [0UY93 L JO Amnsu] I €Ll - {3l 218382y JYHUAIDG dIsee
LTO'LSO'T 107 €€6°t - - 107°€€6'Y 1ep'Tl [2IBASIY dYNUDIDG dIsey
- 098°0€ €0-STE0-1-9T-HMXI8M Qmpsu| SULONIN-UBOS  098°0E - 0Tr'Tl 1uawido]aAd(] pue YoIeasay [EDIPIN ATeN[IN
- (8) S0-6610-1-€T-HMXI8M Ampsu] SuLNIN-uLo[S  (8) - 0Tr'Tl udwdo[aAd(] pue YoIeasay [EDIPIN ATNIN
- T6eTIT 9€00-T-STHMXI8M QUIDIPIIN JO [00Y9S ANSIDAIUN) YIOX MIN  T6ETIT - 0Tr'el JuowdoO[PAI(] PUE Y218ISIY [BOIPIN ATRN[IA
989°0¢ L69°€1T SO0LO-1-ST-HMXISM wieySuwg - ewRqe[y JO ANSIOAIUN  £69°€1T - 0Tzl Juawdo[oAd( PUE Y2ILISIY [BOIPIN AT
- szre ST61-SLOTTAM PIWIOJ[E) WIAYINOS JO ANSIATUN  STI'E - 0yl uowdo[aAd( pue YoIeasay [PIIPOIN ATENIN
- LTH'0S LETOTSTHMXI8M Ayis1oAtuN UOROULY  LTHOS - 0Ty'Tl Juawdo[aAd(T PUe YoIEasY [RIIPIN ATBHIN
- LIT0ES VdA-dYWAd-LI-HMX TSM AysidAmuN pIeAIRH  LT1°0€S - 0Ty'Tl JuawidooAd(] pue YoIEasaY [BIIPIN ATHIIN
- PLO'LL TLEO-1-LI-HMX SM AysioArun dA YLE'LL - 0Ty'Tl JuawidooAd(] pue YoIEasaY [BIIPIN ATHIIN
STE'R06 65€°TLY'S - - 6€°TLY'S 0Tr'el JuowdojoAad(] put YoIeasay [EIIPAIN ATEN[IN

s8au1BuT 0 Ja1yD 3y} JO 30140 AWy 8Yp Jo Jiswredeq

LIL0TS'T PSEPESTL L90°126 L8T'E19°9 |B10)GNS PUBWIIOD [3LIBIRIAl ‘8940 1Y U JO Juawpedaq
- LTTIT S€00-D-LI-ANTTOM UOSIPRJN UISUOISIA JO ANSIAUN  LTT1T - 008°CI WeIB0I SIUINDG YOIBASIY SUYI(] 10, 1Y
- ePETHI 6L¥0-1-81-0SS6VA BIRQIRg BIUBS ‘BIUIOJI[RD) JO ANSIOATUN  €HETHI - 008°C1 WeIS01] SOUDIOG YOIRISIY ISUJI(] 10 Iy
- LY0'6YT 8€00-1-S1-0SS6V A Bojouyod [, JO aymnsuy N LPO'6bT - 008°CT weIS014 SIUDIOG YOIBISTY ASUJI( 910,] 1Y
- 00¥10€ 0T0-1-81-0SS6VA Aysioatun Aowsg 004 10€ - 008°C1 WeI5014 $AIUBIOG YOIBISY ASUIJA( D10, 1Y
- 0S0°L0E S600-1-81-0SS6Vd ABojouyoa 1, JO Immsu] BILION[ED  0S0°LOE - 008°T1 w5014 $AOUDIDS YOIEasY SURJA( 210 1Y
LIL0T8'1 L8TE19°9 - - L8T'E19°9 008°CI WeIS014 SAOURIDG YOIBASY ASURJA(] 910, Iy

puUBWIWOD [9LISTEIN ‘39104 1Y AU JO Juswiedsq

- 6L0°€9T 6L0°€9T - [exolans Aouaby uononpay 1eaiy | asuajeq
- 100°0t LE00-T-€1-1VILAH N1eg 95910) pueAIe]y JO ANSIATUN  [00°0t - 15€°71 uononnsa(J SseIA Jo suodeapy Sunequio) - [oIeasay dYNULIS
- 8L0°€TT 2S00-1-S1-1VILAH AKNSIOATUN) WINSIMUMON  8L0°€TT - 15€°21 uononnsa( SSeIA Jo suodespy Sunequio) - YoIeasay dYNHULIS

Kouaby uononpay 1eaiy L asuajea

1dpay-qng saanyy a Jaquiny Sudyyuapy Apug ydnoyr-ssed ysnoay waua uoyEIRHUIPL vado wier3014 [619pg
0 passeq 0L Snug ySnoay-sseq -sseg preay
[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



9

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 750°T6 €SIP8 "2UJ UOKDI)01] [QUUOSId] [BUOHRUIN]  TS0°T6 - €SI¥8 adel YO g Jo Juouniedd(q 'S N
ARe)s jo cﬂw—.—-chﬁﬂvﬂ SN

- 60°6S - 760°6S €30, Joqe] jo yuaunaeda(q

- 760°65 - - 760°6S 16L°L1 201J O uonEN[EAT JOIY) 10qeT JO Juduntedoq

Juswisbeuey [eyuswiredag
Joqe jo yuaunredaq

1LT8LS €98°8ST1 - €98°8S1°1 1©301, opsnr jo yuounedoq

1LT'8LS €98'8ST°1 - - €98°8S1°1 09591 spuen) 192014 Juawdojarag
PUE ‘UOHEN[BAF ‘YOIB3SIY 0USN[ JO AMISU] [EUONEN

sureiboud sonsne Jo 8010

dansnr yo yudunredaq

910°€L €59°CEl' ] 6V 88E YOT YL 1230 L, JoL12ju] 9y Jo judunaedoq
910°€L 8TS 1Tk - 8TS'ITH le10)gns Asnung [eaifojosn 's'N
L1°6€ 0098 - - 009°8% 0z8°s1 S101Ua)) 20u10g uoneidepy aewI|) [EUOISRY PuUE [BUONEN
- €19%6€1 - - €19°6€1 TI8ST S YoIeasay aaneradoo)
- $15°96 - - #15°96 808°S1 UOIPI[[0) BIE(] PUE OIBISAY ASAING [BIIT0[00) "§" M)
- 9S€°LS - - 95€°LS LO8'ST soupjsissy wesSo1q spiezep] axyenbyieq
698°€€ St¥'eL - - ShP6L S08°SIT SOIMIISU] [OIBISAY SIIINOSNY JAJR A\ d)BIS O] QIURISISSY
Aanung [ea1boj0so 's'N
- 8€L°S6 8rEYI 06€°18 1B103gNS 9IAIAS 3HIPIIM pUe Usid 'S'N
- 056 0S000dV81d 1OLISIQ UONEAIDSUOD) 1A1E A\ PUY [10§ AIUn0D) 039MsO ~0SH6 - 799's1 UONEIOISAY SINET LAID)
- L61'p1 - - L61'v1 T89Sl s9100dg dAtsEAU]
- 868t 1L100dV8Td AysI0AIU() 9JBIS BUIOIED) YUON 868 - 87961 JUBID) UOHBAIDSUOT) JIBISHINA
- €61°L9 - - €61°L9 079°ST pun,j uoneAIssuo)) jueydarq ueoLyy
30IAI3S SHIPIIM PUE USIH 'S'N
- SSIP81 - - SSIPSI SY6'S1 WoysAS e [BUONEN dY) JO

$20mM0say — swerdoid Sututel ] pue yoreasay aaneradoo)
801A9S JjIed [euoneN

- 118761 089°LET 1€1°LS [e101gns iswabeuey ABisuz uesdQ Jo neaing
- 089°LET WHOHIYTT-LI-v1 S [ENISWUOIAUY 10 10UD)) PUBIAIRIN JO ANSIOAIUN  089°LET - €Tr'S1 (S2) sa1pmig [eruswuoxAug (NHOH) \ AB1oug] uead() Jo neaing
- 1€1°LS - - 1€1°LS TSI (S3) sarpmig [uswuonaug (WF0g) uswadeury A319ug ueaoQ jo neaing

juswabeuepy AB1sug uesdQ 40 NeaINg
- 1T¥'9€T L8T000dL1d YoIeasay [8qO[D QMY [BIAUID  [THIET - L8T00D0dLTIA st 110 “Ioudu] Ay Jo Juauredacy
Joridyuy Ay Jo yusunaedaq
$16°659°L 059°868°8€ 16€°L6EL 6ST10S° 1€ [)0 L, 3sudgaq jo yudunedaq
- €50°1L +200-2-S1-1000NH uonepuno,j uosyor( ‘W AUSH  €50°1L - 0sLT1 $100[014 Yo18ISNY [RIIPIN ANSIOAIUN SIIIAIIG PIULIOJIUL)

$80UBI9S U3[eaH 8y L JO ANSIBAUN S30IAISS pauLIojiun
- PESLES - - PESLES 0£9°C1 SuroWSug pur AUIOG UL YOILISIY PIdUBAPY pue ‘parfddy ‘orseq

asuaJaq JO AIe13193S AU JO 3O

1d1ay-qng saanyy q aaquiny Suikynuapy Amug ydnoayy-sseq y3nouayy, »auq uonEIYHUIPY va4d wea501d [e1apay
0 passeq 0L fmug ysSnoay-sseq sseq preay

[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



Ly

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

8€0°T88°T 08E°€89°T1 8ES°0EEE TH8TSES [E10L UOpENSIUIWPY 29EdS PUE SIYNEUOIDY [EUONEN
- 8TL01 DESOVIIXNN SI[IASINOT JO ANSIOANN ~8TLOT - 404 ABojouyooy aoeds
- STI'119 - - 8TIT19 TI'er ASojoutoa | doedg
- $6S°1 0£T88S1 ABojouyoa, Jo Aminsuy eruwojie) A1oieioqe ] uorsindord 19 p6§ T - 800°€H uoreonpg
- LO8YT DTTNVIIXNN 10)U20UIS  £08°PT - 800°¢H uoneonpy
PL6°6S€E 188°818 - - 188°818 800°¢H uoyeonpy
- 8TT'S61 - - 8TT'S61 L00°EY suonesadQ 2oeds
T60°L1 8thPe - - b e £00°€Y uoneiofdxg
- 065°$9T - - 065°$9C 200°er sonneuoIRy
- PLO8S T100M81DSSNOS NS 99UdIOG ATEPUTIS  $L0']S - 100°€t 200§
- 1LL°9T SLYOMSIDSSNOS AysIoALUN) UOSBIN 98109D  [LL°9T - 100°€t 200§
- £LTE PPSOM61DSSNOS amusu IS €LT'E - 100°€y 200§
- Tss 2089291 ABojouydd 1, JO musu] eruoge) Aiojeioqe uoisindoid Jof - 76§ - 100°¢y Q0udIg
- LITTI L120191 ABojouya 1 30 Amnsuf enwoge)) Lojeroqe] votsindoid RF L1171 - 100°¢y 20108
- 1zTel S120191 ABojouya | 30 Amusuf erwoge) Aojeioqer] votsindoid R 1721 - 100°€F 20108
- €TTL LLPOMLIDSSNOS SeBOA SET ‘BPEASN JO ANSIOMUN  €TT'L - 100°€F RRIUEN
- 061°6 DTIIVLIXNN EPHOJ [20U2D) JO ANSIOAUN - 061°6 - 100°€r 20108
- 1L2°99 L1LP6AEINNN/BITTLEI PUOZLY JO ANSIOAIUN  [LT°99 - 100°€p 20uatdg
- Tsst DESAHLIVNN 20ss yoIeasay aoedg SomISIOAIN  TLS'S] - 100°€y aoudlag
- PSEOLI DSLYVIOINNN QIMINISU] YOIBISIY ISOMINOS  HSE0T T - 100°€y ERIEEN
- 0gEYy £690-91 Swaskg 20ualog 20eds WIEN  OEE'Y - 100°€y ERIEIEN
- 609°9v1 DI0VVTINNN Aiojeioqe uoisindoid 1f  609°9¥1 - 100°€y aoudlag
- 019° DISNVFIXNN oULSIED  019°] - 100°€y aoudlag
- TSE6 6€81€S1 AusioAtun je)g vUOZUY  Z5E'6 - 100°€y aoudlag
- €89°1 DLSINVSTXNN Arojeroqery sorsAyd parddy €891 - 100°€y 20ud108
$€0°009 SIE001Y - - SIE001'Y 100°€r aoudtag
- 1L1°61 T9€TTI-TS094TTY AusioAun piojums  1L1°61 - T9€TTI-TSO9HTTY aver Y0 ‘uoneNsuIWpY 20eds pue o1 [euonEN
- 0€T°LL 6612091 Asopeioqey uoisndoig 1f - 0€ZT'LL - 0006612091 aver 1410 ‘uonensiuIUpPY 20eds pue o1 V [euoneN
- SsEpIe L196PAEINNN ANSIOAIUL) B BUOZHY  SSEDTE - L1965AEINNN aver 1yIO ‘vonensiuIpY 20eds pue o1 [euonEN
891°1€T £SP°E0ET DIOVVZINNN Asopeioqe uorsndoig 1r  €5H°€0E° - DI0VVTINNN a¥er Yo v ooeds pur V [euoneN
- L8Y°EES - - L8Y'EES D06D4LIONN avsy eLle) v ooeds pue V [euoneN
- 655091 9¥801LONN SwaysAS 20105 20edS UBIN - 655°091 - 9r801LONN aver eLiTe) v ooeds pue V [euoneN
- LOV'OL TIETITILOAN Aioperoqu T uorsindorg 0f  LOY0L - TIETITILOAN aver elile) v ooeds pue V [euoneN
898°Gp1 8T0°6€L STITILOAN AKioperoqe] uorsindord 19f  8Z0°6€L - ETITILONN aver elile) v 20edg pue sor V [euoneN
- 867°6C 9r801LONN Aioyeroqey uorsindoid 0f - 86+°6T - 9¥801LONN aver YO ‘vonenstIWpPY 20eds pue st V [euoneN
- $66°1S $SS9T-SSYN ‘J5u] 20ud1og 2d0asaa 1, 0eds  §66°1S - SSS9T-SSVN aver 1O ‘uonenst aoedg pue V [euoneN
206°LTS 1 S9LE6L L - - S9L'E6LT $E00081D4SINO8 aver 1O “uonenst aoedg pue V [euoneN
- 096°Tt TT80€S T Aiojeioqer] sotshyg panddy 096z - 000°TZ80€S T aver Y0 v doudg pue V [euoneN
- £€06°LT SPTSIST Aioperoge] uorsindoid 19f  €06°LT - 000°S5TS9S 1 aver Eo) v 2ouds pue V [euoneN
- 8v1°g £089€S1 AKiojeroqe] uorsindoxg 1ar  8p1°g - 000°€089€S 1 avey 1010 ‘uonenstIwpy aoeds pue V [euoneN
- 00S°€T T0PSTST AKioyeroqu] uorsindorg 10f - 00S°€T - 000°T0¥STS avey 1210 ‘uonenstuIpy deds pue sot V [euoneN
uopeysiUIpPy dedg pue SHPNEU0IdY [EUonEN
9SI°SH0'T LES°908°T 19L°€6 9LLTILT [e10), uoyeptodsue. ] jo Juaunaedoq
- £56°S - - €56°S siToT uoneonpy pue Sururel] KemysiH
(emyy) uonensiuiwpy AemybiH [esspa4
9S1°SH0°1 P8SOLL'T 19L°€9 £28°90L°1 [B101GNS 2JeLIB}2108S UONRASIUILIPY (LSO) Ale1a108S 8U} J0 801440
- 0Eh St Z01LF8ISSEVE9 Kas1af MAN JO ANSIOAIUN RIS YL ‘SITINY  0EH S - 10L°02 weiBo1q s19)ud) uoneuodsurl], ANSIOAIUN
- 1€€°81 TEDLN-D-E1LULA ¥ $6L0£0D SHOA MONJO Ansioaun A0 1€€°81 - 10L°02 weiBo1q s109u0) uonEHodsurI L ANSIOAIUN
9ST°S40°1 £28°90L°1 - - €28°90L° 10L°02 WeiBo1q S10U0) uonEHOdsurIL ANSIOAIUN

8]E11e12198S UONEASIUILPY (1SO) AIBIB193S BU) JO 8910

- 000°0€ 620911089 SN0 1§ Uy ANsioAtun) uoBurgsEAN 00008 - 62091-1089 a¥oz 1yj0 ‘uonenodsuri], Jo Juounedacy
uogeya0dsur. L, o yusunaedaq

1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0} passeq w0, Spuy ySnoayp-ssed -sseq paesy
[euonIppy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



8y

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 869°011 0700S91-80N ANSIOAU[) WINSIMYLON  869°01 [ - PLO'LY s590u31§ [edt3ojote
- LY6'81T LS99¥S1-SOI Ayszoatun) 94w UBSIYOIN - LP6'81T - YLO'LY $20UDIOG [BIIFOO1E]
- 201°LST 8S6EYST AusioAtun g sesuey  701°LST - PLO'LY $20UDIOG [BIIFOO1E]
- 8€TTE L9SLT81 ANsIoAIUN RIS BMO]  BETTE - YLO'LY $90UDIOG [BIIFOO1E]
- 00T+t T889¥S1-SOIL 19)U9)) 20ULIOS JUB|J YHOJuR( PlRuCOd 00Tt - YLO'LY $90UDIOG [BIIF0[O1E]
- $60901 S89LE9L SAIPMIS WAISAS0dg JO AMSUL K1) $60°901 - YLO'LY $O0UDIOS [BIIF0[O1E]
- 816°TC 120€S91S01 amysup uosdwoy, 204og  816°CC - YLO'LY $OUDIOS [BIISO[O1E]
- L6001 ST99¥S1-SOI amnsuf uosdwoy [, 20K0d  £60°0T1 - YLO'LY S90UdI0G [ea1F0[o1e]
- £LS°6L 95TSH91 aimnsuy uosdwoy 1, 90K0g  €£5°6L - PLOLY s90ua10g [ear3ojore
L8L'99S'T T00°€L6'PT - - T00°€L6'Y1 PLO'LY soouar0g [etBororg
- LYST9€ 08SLYPST-IDV A)ISI9ATUN 91BIS 29 AMNSU OTUY0AK[0g BIUISIA  LHSOE - 0LO'LY Buuourdug pue 20us10g UoNEWLIOJU] puk 1Indwo)
- €6 S0E0EET-SND UOSIPEIN UISUODSIAN JO ANSIOAIUN  TE6'Y - 0L0'LY SueawBUz pur 20UdI0S UoKEULIOJU] pue Jpnduwio)
- 9LY'LYT 8LSE991 unsny 1y SeXa ] JO ANSIOAIUN  9/9°LpT - 0LO'LY Surawduz pue doudIog uoneuLIojuy pue sndwo))
- (£L¥°92) 66S0€ET-SND 11tH 1dey) eurjore) yuoN JO Ansioatun  (§L4°97) - 0LO'LY BuuowrSuy pue 25u210g uoHEULIOJU] pue 1andwo))
- 08r'op1 89T6€91 1H [odey) euIjoIe) YUON JO ANSIOAIIN  08%°0P1 - 0L0'LY SuueamBuz pur 20ua1dS uoneuLIOjU] puE Jnduwo)
- 179628 T9S8PSI-1DV uBiedwey)-eueqin 1y SIoul[] JO ANSIOAIN  159°6T8 - 0LO'LY 2ouIBus pue 20UL1S UoEWLIOJU] pue 1yndwoy)
- 8LT'CT 1916€11-SIT ANSIOAIUN) PIOJUBIS  8LT'ET - 0LO'LY 92uISug pue 20Ua10g uoneLIoju] pue 1andwo)
- 1€9°v€ 0S99€81-DVO ANSIDAIUN UOYOUL  [€9°PE - 0LO'LY LRauIBug pue 20UaIdg uonewLIou] pue s)nduo)
- T6€£°8S $09StH1-1D0V AysIoAIun BUBIPUL  76€°8S - 0LO'LY BuueawISuyg pue 20uAIdS uonEWLIOJU] pue 1ndwoy)
- TTT98 L88EIST Aysioatun) uo[PN-d132uIR) 77798 - 0LO'LY Surauiuy pue souslog uonewoyu] pue sndwo)
8Y7°T98 68T°8F8°91 - - 68787891 0LO'LY Surauidug pue aoualog uonewoyu] pue sndwo)
- $6 STEYEY1-HDO AusiaAtun piojuels g6 - 0S0°LY RERIIEIERET5Y
- 689°01 L0S0TI-0d4D ALuf) A1EIS BIUBAJASUUD]  689°0F - 0S0°LY $90USI0S03D
- 0€6°€l 8TSOSFI-4D0 ANsIoAIUN BIQUINOD  0E6°ET - 0S0°LY $30U210S03D)
- 0LTHl 12601119V As1oAtun BIQUINOD LTI - 0S0°LY $30U210S03D)
- L80°TT 09SST91-44D1 0K MINJO ANstoalun A £80°TT - 0S0°LY §90U210503D
8T6°1LS'L 89T°TSTY - - 89TTSTY 0S0°LY $§90U210503D
- 69€°6€ TToLT8l 01y OHANG JO ANSIOAIUN  69€°6E - 6¥0°LY SP0UDIOG [EDISAYJ PUE [EONEWAYIRIN
- 891°%¥1 S§¥99¢€91 Aysioatun) Suno weysug 891yl - 6¥0'LY SP0UDIOG [EDISAYJ PUE [EONEWAYIRIN
- LEL0O9Y ¥80€¥1-AHd QNNEM[I UISUOISIAN JO ANSIOAIUN  LEL°09% - 6¥0°LY SO0UDIOG [EDISAYJ PUE [EONEWAYIRIN
- $56'859 T98ETHI-AHD RI0SOUUIN JO ANSIOAUN  $56°859 - 60LY S0UDIOG [8IISKYJ PUE [EONEWAIEIN
879°886 6SH°E0E°T 9SEPT9T-AHd Ausioatun wolouId  6SH E0ET - 6v0'LY SIOUAIOS [BOISAT PUE [EONBWIGIEIN
- TTLs6 9TZ0PH1-1SY AsIdATUN UOROUL  TTL'S6 - 60'LY $00UD10G [BISAYJ PUE [EONEWOYIEIN
- wy'Te 1LPTEST-HHD ATU[) 9)B)S BIUBAJASUUD]  TLH'TE - 6v0°LY SO0UIOG [IISKTJ PUB [EONBWAYIEIN
- L9E°LE 07902 1-4NA AIU[) 9)B)S BIUBA[ASUUD]  £9E°LE - 6v0'LY S00URI0G [BIISKLJ PUB [EONBWAYIEIA
- 995°1%1 1SP0TH1-4Na Ansroatun aeIS OO 995111 - 6V0°LY $90UB108 [BOISAYJ PUE [BORWAIRI
- €88°TC 9Z161S1-1SV A135qQ) Awouonsy oipey PeN  €88°TT - 6v0'LY S90UBIOG [IISAYJ PUE [EONBWAYIRIA
TSLLLO'E UTLIV'SY - - UTLIY'SY 6v0'LY SO0UBIOG [BIISAL ] PUT [EOIEWAYIEI
- 90°€ €8S TEEI-THAA PIUBAIASUUSG JO ANSIPAIUN - 9p0°E - 1v0'Ly Buteauiduy
- (€6€) 06vEEP 114 awe(] aNON JO ANsiaaln  (£6€) - 190°Ly Suueauidug
- 09%°0€ 1150€81 QueME[R( JO ANSIOAIUN  (910E - 1v0'LY Surauiduy
- €691 69TIEET QuEME[R( JO ANSIOAIUN  €69°PTT - 170°Ly Surauiduy
- LTO'S8 $0S0911-0d49 so[aBuy S0 ‘eruop[e) JO ANSIOAIUN  LT0°68 - 170°Ly Buourduy
- 98€°1S LYLE081-LAED ANSIDAIUN) UIGISOMULON  98E°TS - 170°LYy Suuesursug
- Lyr0l 80LITLT "0 as|ndelofy  Lpp 0l - 170°LYy Suwauidug
- 65L°99 9911¢€81 "ou] *AB12Ug [EUOISUSWI(  6SL°99 - 170°LYy Buourduy
- (208°y) T80TLT "ouf *AB1oug [euOISUSWICT  (Z08't) - 170°LYy Buourduy
- 896°SS1T 00TT¥91-VINIT ANsIoAIUN BIQUINOD  896°GST - 170°LYy Buoursuy
- ELI'IS OTELTLI-TAWAD Ansioatun uoysog  €L1°1§ - 170°LYy Buoursug
0ST9€L 106°T81°€1 - - 106°T81°€1 170°LYy Buoursuz
- L0081 $66S8 AS0[ouyd [, JO ISUT 19159400y LOO'8T - $66S8 'Ly J2YI0 ‘UOHEPUNO UG [BUOHEN.
- (#00°L) - - (#00°L) 6568 a¥'Ly IOYIQ “UONEPUNO,] HOUIIDG [EUONEN

UONEPUNO ] IIUIDS [EUONEN

1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0) passeq e, Snug ySnoay-sseq “sseq paesy

[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- €0TS1 100000VNDS1TEET68
- 196°7S 96£STVN9O-TSOV-4d
- 88TC TTANYOO81DUN
- 166°€61 LTL$1000S-9a
- €L°801 STSE000VN-Id
- €17°101 PPELTVNLO-TSOV-AA
- PI8°19 0€810TA9L-S00V-4A
- 8S6°SL 000S8TVH6-70DV-Ia
- LPIHL9 98801HD86-200V-3d
- 179'€TT S1S004S9L-T0DV-ad
- T9°e91 6SE1THDLO-Z0DV-3d
- erTL €21 THOS0-200V-ad
- S95°p1 £0959
105"t S9TEIST

- PIvLL $STTO00TO
- $88°Lz1 97220300~ 1D
- 1€9°1 1-L¥0Z0300-1D
105°€ty €6LTSI'L -
- 8ESH -
- $00°691 10SS19€8
L09°556°6 TITI80911

- L6861 1101€56-ISI0
- 101°1€ -
- 195°8 8TT6Y91-QUH
- 0917t POLTILI-ANA
- 00L°9 9ssTTEl
- 015°TT 1L6SELI
- £55°91 189LE11-Q¥H
- $08°1L €ELTILL
- LES'TL T8p1191-dnd
- 69€°LT1 6£00191-T4Q
17T'88 $80°€L9'L -
- TIs'Ll T08LTLI
- 8LI'LYT 685091
- S€9°6C €LEITPISND
- 9L0°IL T9rp991-S08
€LS°€9 LSE6E1T -
- 960°LT L149SST
- 88T LSESS9I-9aA
- 0SL°TT 09$8€91-49
- £y Tl 0L0LSKI-88A
- 6126 6T6LISI
- 9sTTI 62L11000dSAAN
- 807°€9€ LOSPYYI
- $89°G1T 90€1€Z1-19a
- L£99°0S 0v85S91-98a
- 60TTI1 1€€5¥91-SO1

1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy
0 passeq oL Spuy ySnoayp-ssed

A101210qR T [RUOIEN SOWE]Y SOT
A101210qR T [RUOIIEN SOWER]Y SOT
ANsIoATUN) BIUISIIA 1S9\

Jowen|n

K1012I0QR T [RUOTIEN BIPUES

£10J810QE ] [PUOHEN] SIOULIDAIT IOUMIME
AI0)2I0qE"] [BUONEN JSOMULION JLIOB]
A101210qE ] [PUONEN BIPUBS

K101210QR] [BUOLEN UdARYOOIE
K10)L10qET 10JRID[A00Y [RUONEN B[S
A10)810QET 10JRID[000Y [BUONEN IULID |
K1o1e10qRT [RUOIIEN AS[Q319g] OUAIMET
ANSIDAIUN A0} BUOZLIY

eIs ofelng ANNS
Qure(] A10N JO ANSIATUN
el JO wawedd(q elosauurjy

ANSIOATUN UISLAYLION

18901D AqAD

10159400y JO ANsiotun)
urey JO Ansioatun
urely JO Ansioatun
Kyis1oAtup) 9aSaysn],
Kyis1oatup) oaSaysn],
Ays1oAtup) asnoeIkg
AyisioAlun) piojuelg
10)U20UAIOG

181090 JO Ansiaatun)

AKopaxiog eruIojife) JO ANSIoATUN
Ausioaun uojSuiysep, 281000
a8a[[0D oty [0 JoID

AJSIOATU[) BUOZLIY UIDYLION
AKISIOATU[) BUOZITY UIDYLON

19)UDD) Y0IB3SY A[OH SPOOM
Sunuok gy JO ANsioaun

29ssouUUd ], JO ANSIOATUN)

®BPUOL] JO ANsIoAIUN

0331 ueS ‘BIUIOjI[R) JO ANSIOAIUN
ofeng JO Ansioatun

ANSIOATU[) SSNOBIAS

ALU[) 981G BIUBA[ASUUO]

Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

6¥

€0TS1
196'7S
T86°TT
166°€61
€LY'801
£I¥101
+18'19
8S6°SL
LYY IPL9
1¥9°€2C
991
evTLl
S9S°p1

E6'SIE

1€€°L61°1

PILL
S88°LTI
1€9°1

$00°691

€6LTST'T
8ES Y

176°0LS8

1LT01S°LOT

L6861

195°8
0917t
00L9
015°TT
£55°91
PO8°IL
LESTL
69€°LTI

TIsLl
SLILYT
$€9°6T
9LO°IL
960°LT
88T
0SLTT
£PYTI
61T°6
9§T°T1
80T°€9€¢
$89°S1T
L99°0§
60T°TIT
ydnoayy,
-sseq

101°1€

S80°€LY‘L

LSE6EI'T

g

100000VNDSITEETO8
96£STVNIO0-TSOV-dd
TTINIOD81DUN
LTLST00DS-3A
STSE000VN-HA
PPELTVNLO-TSOV-ad
0€810TI9L-S0DV-da
000S8TVH6-70DV-aa
98801HO86-C00V-d4d
S1S004S9L-20DV-aa
6SETTHDLO-T0DOV-3d
1€CTITHOS0-20DV-aa
£0959

uoyEIyHUIP]
preay
[euonippy

ay’is
ay’is
ay’is
ayis
ay’is
ay’is
ay’is
ay'is
ay'is
ay'is
ay'is
ay'is
adis

69799
69799
69799
69799
91599
60599

10O “AS10ug Jo yauntedsq

100 “AS10u7 Jo ysuntedsq

190 “A310u7 Jo yuduntedoq

10y “AS10uq Jo yuountedoq

10y ‘AS10U7 Jo Juountedoq

10 “AB10u7 30 JuoUKRdI

10 “AB10u7 30 JuoUIRda

10y10 “AF10u7 Jo yuounedoq

1y10 “AF10u7 Jo Jusunredag

1Y) ‘A810ug Jo yuduntedaq

100 “AB10ug Jo Jusumedoq

1y “AS10ug Jo yusuniedaq

1y ‘A319ug Jo yusuniedaq

AS1auq yo yuaunaedaq

1810, £5uady u01II}0IJ [EIUIWUOIIAUF
wesSo1q saye] 11D

weiSo1y saye] 11D

weiSo1g saye] 1IN

weiSo1d saye| jealn

AKnpiqeureysng 1oy uonnaduwo)) uSisa(g JUPMS [EUONEN] (PIEMY €J
werSo1d yo1easay (YVLS) SHNSAY 9AIIYIY O], IUAOS
£5uaBy U0NINOIJ [BIUIWUOIIAUT

[€)0 L, UONEPUNO] IIUINIS [EUOHEN
BuuaduISug pur 20U [BUOHEBUINU] JO DYIO
SuLIOUISUZ PUB 9OUSIOS [PUOHEWIANU] JO OO
$00IN0SOY UBWNE] PUE UONBINPE

$00IN0SOY UBWNE] PUE UOEINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNE PUE UOLELINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNE PUE UOBINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNK PUE UOLBINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNY PUE UONEBINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNY PUE UONEBINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNY PUE UONERINPE

$02IN0SOY UBWNY PUE UONERINPE

$02UDIOG WU PUE ‘[BIOIABYY ‘[E100S
$02UDIOG JIWOUOT PUE ‘[BIOIABYDY ‘[EI0S
$02UDIOG JIWOUOIT PUE ‘[BIOIABYY ‘[E100S
$0UQIO OIWOUODT PUE ‘[BIOIABYDY ‘[EI00S
$0UOIO OIWOUODT PUE ‘[BIOIABYDY ‘[EI00S
$20UQIOS [EAIFO[OT

$20UQIOS [EAIFO[OTE

$20UDIOS [EAIFO[OTE

$90UDIOS [EAIFO[OTE

$90UDIOS [BAIFO[OTE

$90UDIOS [BIIFO[OTE

soouaros [EAIFOlOIE

$00U010G [BOIFO[OIE]

$90U0I0g [EIBO[OIE
590010 [EAIB0[OIE]

weagoad [erapag

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



0s

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 9L6'THT - 9L6'TFT [E10)qNS UONEINPT AIBPUOIBSISO JO B0
- €80°S11 - - €80°S11 °0v8 PEOIQY YOIeasdY UONEUASSI(] [BIONO(] - SWEIF0I] SEISIOAQ)
- £68°9T - - £68°9C 910'F8 swei5o1q afendue| udia10,] UL SAIPIS [BUONEWIOJU] dJenpeIFIapu()

uoneanp3 A1epuoasisod JO IO

- 6LS'8LL - - 6LS'8LI S0EY8 heul 1a pue dojaaa(] ‘Yoreasay uor p
$32UBI9S UOILINPT JO INMISU|

- 881°8 ELYLS Ausioarun prealeH - 881°g - ELVL8 advs 12y ‘uonednpy Jo Juduaedaq
uoneanpg Jo yuounedaq

1861861 S6C'€99'€C 9SL970°01 6£5°9€9°€ 1 1830 £319u7 jo yudunredoq
- 0zs0T1 $1600009V-AA amnsuf arydeiSouras ajoH spooyy  0ZS 0TI - SEI'I8 AS1oug - Kouady s100(01( Yo18aSAY PAdUBAPY
- T0T°6T #1L0000¥Y-4d usredwey)-eueqin 1y SIoul|[] JO ANSIAIUN - Z0T6T - SEI'I8 AB1oug - KouaBy $102(01( YoILasY PAOUBAPY
- 667011 19900008 V-9d uSredwey)-eurqin 1y stoul|[[ JO ANSIOAIUN  66T°0F1 - SET'I8 AZ1oug - Kouady s100[01( Yo18SAY PAOUBAPY
- £96'€0T 86500004 V-3A udiedwey)-eueqin 1V SIOUH[[ JO ANSIAIIN - £96°€0T - SEII8 AB1oug - Kouady $103(01d YoIEISIY PAOUBAPY
- TIL'6 9750000 V-4d AnsioAtun asnoelks  7IL6 - SET'I8 AZ10ug - Kouady s100[01( Yo183SAY PAOUBAPY
- ELLTL €0L0000¥8V-4d OT1(sn)uored  €LLTT - SET'I8 AB1oug - Kouady $103(01d YOIEISIY PAOUBAPY
612°66 18T°659 - - 187°659 SEI'I8 AS10ug - KouaBy $100[014 Yo18SAY PAOUBAPY
- 617°6€ 10-TSLI8L AI01EI0QE] [BUOHEN 2I0ULIDAIT QIUIMET  61H°6E - €Trig wieiBoid (ISN) suonmnsug
FurA10g AJLIOUIN (YSNN) UOHENSIUIWPY AJLINOS TE[ONN [BUONEN

- 119°6T PPELTVNLO-TSOV-4a AI01EI0qE] [BUOHEN 2I0UWLIDAIT QOUIMET  [19°6T - €Trig wieiBoid (ISN) suonmnsuy
Surazog Lioury (YSNN) UONensmuiupy AJLnoag Jes[ony [euoneN

$68°ST 8+8°17T - - 8¥8°17T WIS sisA[euy pue Juawdo[PAd(] “Yoreasay AN[Iqeiay AS1oug pue KA AN
- 08€'8L - - 08€°8L €18 YoIeasay uoneIg)[oIduoN Ie[ONN ASUJIJ
SOL'TTET 1L0°696°C - - 1L0°696°C [480 T wesSo1d Juein) 20udIdg diyspIemals
- ILY'LET 1LzL00099-94 SIOION [eIOURD)  [LY'LEL - L80°18 1udwdO[IAd(] PuB YOIEdSaY ABI9UZ J[qEMIURY
- 691°€ 160L00043-9A AusioAtun NG 691°%E - L80'18 uawdojoad(] pue Yo1easay A319uT AqeMAuy
[ SLTLTL - - SLTLTL L8018 Juowdojoaa] pur yoreasay AIoug A[qEAmdUSY
9561 0£5°€07 - - 0£5°€0C 980°18 Juowdo[oAd(] PUE [OIEASOY] UONEAIOSUO)
- PEI'ST $ELL100DS-TA oU[ QABMOIN  $E[°ST - 6¥0'18 wesS01d 9OURISISSY [BIOUBUL] 90UIOG JO 3OO
- 9THY 65981000S-2d 97 SAIUONINPOKID 18IS TIT b - 6¥0'18 wie1So1g OURISISSY [BIOUBUL] 90UIOG JO 30O
- £TTL 9¥$61000S-9d D77 ‘uBaNN €TTL - 6+0°18 WEIF01J AIUBISISSY [EIDUBUL 9DUIIOS JO IO
- 620°102 ££921000S-4a Yoo Auol§ ANNS  620°102 - 6+0'18 WeIS01 A0UISISSY [BIOUBUL] 30UAIOS JO 0UFO
- 856°9 L1911000S-9a unsny 1y sexaf JO ANSIOAIUN 8569 - 6v0°'18 weid01 OUEISISSY [BIOUBUL] 3DUIIOS JO IO
- (z8L's1) 688L0000S-9A unsny 1y sexaf JO ANsioAn  (z8LS1) - 6v0'18 weI3014 AOUBISISSY [BIOUBUL] SOUIIOG JO DUIO
- wsTL 0L£81000S-4A OJIXI MON JO ANSIOATUN  THSTL - WEIB0I AOUBISISSY [BIUBULY 3OUADS JO IO
- T8T911 $8980000S-4A BOSAUUIN JO ANSIAIN T8TYT - wesS01 AUEISISSY [RIDUELL] 32UAIDG JO IO
- 1€9°T€ 10681000S-4d BIRQIRY RIUES ‘BIWIOJ[E) JO ANSIOAIUN  [€9°CE - WEIF0IJ UBISISSY [BIDURUL] 20UAIOS JO DO
- §ST'T L£5010000S-9a 20U10g 10,4 UONMNSU] AIFOUIE) YL SSTT - WEIF01J IUBISISSY [BIDUBUL] 20UALOS JO DO
- SOS*ELT 6€1L1000S-9A sjuowNNSUL JOPAS  GOS'ELT - WeIB014 ROUEISISSY [BIOUBUL] d0UAIIS JO OO
- $86°01 YETE€10008-9a sjuownNSuf 10pAS  $86°01 - WeIS01J UBISISSY [BIDURUL] 20UALOS JO 9O
- L8611 791910008-9d AsIoAlun piojuels  /86°T1 - WEIS01J IUISISSY [BIDURUL] 20UALOS JO DO
- 8€L°66 20TL100DS-9a "ou ‘SA0IAA(] BULIONUOIN UOBIPEY  8EL‘66 - wWeIB0IJ IURISISSY [RIOURUL] S0USIOS JO IO
- PIITL €88L100D0S-9A Ans1oAtun apers UESIYIIN - p11°T1 - weIB01d IUBISISSY [RIOUBUL] S0USIOS JO OLJO
- 0FL69 1€€61000S-3d Anszoarun) sunidoy suyor  0pL°69 - WeIB0IJ OURISISSY [RIOURUL] DOUSIOS JO IO
- €21°791 8€¥91000S-9a AysIoAIUN RIS BMO] - €T1°T91 - WeIB0IJ OURISISSY [RIOUBUL] DOUSIOS JO OLJO
- 96L 01 TLS81000S-9a SONOUAD) ANPPLI TH  96L 701 - wWeIB0I OURISISSY [RIOUBUL] DOUSIOS JO OLIO
$59°60% PSTISL'S - - PST'ISL'S weiS014 AOURISISSY [BIOURUL] 0UIIIS JO IO
- LT L1SY1dIS0-L00V-ad Asojeroqu T [euoneN oyepr (8LT'11) - L1sY1dIS0-L00V-ad JoyiQ *A310ug jo yuowpedaq
- 0€1°901 8SETTHOLO-TOOV-ad Aiojeroqery sowy  0€1°901 8SETTHDLO-T0DV-9a 1y “A31oug Jo yuoweda
- 0€0°€vT LSETTHD90-T00V-3d A103p10qe ] [PUONEN QUUOSTY  0£0'EYT LSETTHD90-T0DOV-ad 1y “AF1oug Jo yusunedac

1dy: qng saanyy| Jaquiny Surkynuapy Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg ydnoayy, waxq uoneIYHUIPY weasoag [eIapag
0) passeq e, Snug ySnoay-sseq “sseq paesy
[euopIppY

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



159°6¥

091°951

16799
£05°0T
LTLL6]
0€6°1S
S18°98

£TI°6EY'1

£0€°501

£0€°501

£91°C
18L°9
68
126'LT
658°8
0S6°0€1
£51°9¢
LIT'0T
6£L°L68
15T'86C

960°0T6

6TLLL
161°7T
LIS0E
1£6°601
LTL0E
100°L0L

181°01

(osz'zy)
ISP'el
w9
4
LLT'S
€80°SL
665681
8TI'LT
vrLElE
6rp6Tl
S10°€S
96791
PE0°9€1
£47°T6

L69€TET

LETTHO'E

L69€TET

YOrTIL'T

0} passeq

eoL

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

990€¥0000T#0d 0LLE-61
20£900dA 10N

£0-696100HODTNN &
€0-¥C6100HDDTNN §

CTEPPTOSHIOY
(£9508)€0-€1SOTOSH 81N §
€0-1LE6ISH 10¥S
LILYTOSHITY
9SSHYTOSH10Y
€06TTOSH10Y
T9TFTOSH10Y
S16YTOSHI0Y

00-10-6000SDr06
alqe[reay 10N
TEEPTOL

8TEVT0D

alqefreay 10N

(I¥€10000)20 17€000Z10TI9TNSHH
L69ELETO0THO D10000S00T99INSHH
+T0L6-ND-TONS

8000019TNSHH

1€0000ST10TT9TNSHH

81TS0S61€0S

T08ETTHY

10-16T9E11V €Pd1
DS0000L10TT9INSHH
IVI0-9TE100MLy AT

1100€1d8TFH

Jaquiny Surkynuapy
Snug ySnoay-sseq

BUI[0IRD) YINOS JO ANSIOAIUN
weySuulg - eweqe[y JO ANSIOAIU

0IYSAYD) SANU)) ST
OISAYD) AU ST

382[[0D) wIRISUI QY

uoysog] [endsoy s,uaIp[iy)
[e1dSO} [BI12USD) SPISNYOBSSBIA]
Ayis1oAlun eueIpul

AyisioAlun) eueipu|

AyisioAtun eiquinjo))
AyisioAlun eiquinjo))
AysioAlun eiquinjo)

SPISNYIBSSEIN JO YH[BIMUOWIIO)
[1ouno) Sutuueld saniiqesiq [eawdopadq SAN
[1ouno) Sutuueld saniiqesiq [eiuawdoaaq SAN
1ouno) Sutuueld saniiqesiq [ewawdopadq SAN
[1ouno) Sutuueld saniiqesiq [ewawdopaaq SAN

10)U9)) UOSIOPUY (A “SEX3 L, JO ANSIOAIUN
Anstoatun supjdop suyop

vonepunog q3e)

0IBASOY [EOIPAWONE SOPIST

WESH 21qnd JO [00Y9S pIearzH

“ou[ ‘eonRWAEN

BJOSOUULIN QUIDIPIN JO 932]]0)) d1ut]) okey

-oup ‘sopnadesoy L odojesiop

“2u] ‘SqRT ANO &
77 sosodsoy

*ou[ QUAISAH [BIUSN 10,] UOHBPUNO,] YOIBISTY

Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

IS

16799 -
£05°0C -
- LTL'L6l
0£6°1S -
S18°98 -
£E1°EHT 066°S61°1
€91C -
18L°9 -
68 -
126°LT -
658°8 -
0S6°0€ 1 -
£51°9% -
L1T°0T -
- 65L°L68
- 15T'86T
S60°€IT 100°L0L
6CLLI -
1617C -
L15°0¢ -
1€6°601 -
LTL'0g -
- 100°L0L
- 181°01
- (0sz'ey)
- Ist'el 0L616-910T-002
w9 - (I¥£10000)20 170002102 19TNSHH
4 - L69ELET00THOd D10000S00Z99ZNSHH
LLT'S - $TOL6-ND-TONS
£80°5L - 8000019ZNSHH
665681 - 1£0000S 10Z19ZNSHH
8TI'LT - 81TS0S61€0S
PrLEIE - T08€TTH9
- 6vp'6C1 S000019ZNSHH 16£000S 10Z19ZNSHH
SI10°€S - 10-1629€11V €41
L96°T91 - DS0000L10Z19ZNSHH
P€0°9€1 - 1V10-92€ 1004 LT
- €776 86808
T89°07LT SS5°0zE
Y6rTILT -
ysnoayy waa uoyEayHUIPY
-sseq paesy
[euomIppy

€L0°€6
890°€6
890°€6
L90°€6
L90°€6

9TT'€6
9TT'€6
9TT'€6
9TT’€6
9TT’E6
9TT’E6
9TT’€6
9TT’€6
9TT’€6
STTes

LYL'€6
0£9°€6
0£9°€6
0£€9°€6
0£9°€6
£EY'E6

980°€6

68€°€6
ay’e6
ad'e6
ay’ee6
ay’ee6
ay’ee6
ay'ee6
ad’ee6
ad’ee6
ay'e6
ad’ee6
ad’ee6
adee
adee

81¥'+8

vain

QOUE[[IOAING PUE UONUAARIJ - SaN[Iqesi(] [uawdo[aad(] pue s10a)a( Yuig

UONURARIJ PUE ‘[0NUO)) YOIBISY :SISLISI(] oI
UONURARIJ PUE ‘[0UO) ‘YOIBISY :SISLASI(] JIU0IYD)
SAIV [eqo1D
SAlV [eqo1D

uonuanald pue [01U0D 3seasiq 10} SIAUD

[e101gns Anjend pue yoresssy aredyijesH 4oy Aousby
sawoonQ pue K[eng) ‘s1S00) IBIYI[EIH UO [OIeSIY
sawoonQ pue K1[eng) ‘s1500) ILIYI[LIH UO oISy
sawoonQ pue K1[en) ‘s1S00) ULIYI[EIH UO [oIesIY
sawoonQ pue K1[eng) ‘s1500) IBIYI[LIH UO OISy
sawonQ pue K1[eng) ‘s1507) ILIYI[LIH UO [oIesIy
sawoanQ pue K1[eng) ‘s1S07) ILIYI[EIH U0 YoIeasay
sawoanQ pue Ajeng) ‘s1s0)) AIBIYIEIH UO YOIBaSIY
sawonQ pue Kjeng) ‘s1S07) ILIYI[EIH UO YoIeasay
sawoAnQ pue Krjeng) ‘s1507) ILdYI[EIH U0 YoIeasay
Sururel ] yoIeasay SIOIAIG YI[EIH SPIBMY 30IAIAS YOIBISY [BUOHEN

Anrend pue yotesssy aredylesH 10j Aoushy

weI3014 SUOHUAAIU] UOIUSARI 3SNqY 1P|

sjuein) £oe00ApY pue poddng oiseq saniiqesi( [eyuswdopasq

sjuein) £ov00Apy pue poddng oiseq saniiqesiq [ewuswdopasq

sjuein) £oe00Apy pue poddng oiseq saniiqesi( [ewuswdojpas

sjuein) £ov00ApY pue Hoddng oiseq saniiqesiq [eyuswdopas

01835y UOEIIqRyY

pue ‘Fuiary juspuadapuy ‘Ajiqesi uo aymusu| [euoneN 1OV
Buiny Anunwwo Joy uonensiuIWPY

sjueID pooylaye d[qisuodsay pue uonowold afeLuejy Ayijeay
SaljiWe pue uaJp|iyd 40} UoNenSIuIWPY
$02IN0SOY YOILASAY 10§ 10U [BUONEN
12Y)0) “UONUDAIIJ PUE [01JU0)) ISEASI(] 10J SIS
10410 “SOOIAIS UBWNF] PUE YI[ES JO yuounredac
10Y)0) “SOOIAIS UBWNF] PUB YI[Ea JO yuounredac
10Y)0) “SOOIAIG UBWNF] PUE YI[Ea JO yuouredac
1OYIQ ‘SIS UBWINY PUE YEdH Jo Juduredocy
10410 “SOOIAIOS UBWNF] PUB YI[Ea JO yuounredac
1DYIQ SIS UBWINY PUE YEdH J0 Juduredocy
19} ‘SAOIAIDG UBWINH PuB W[BIH JO Juduwnreddq
IDYIQ ‘SIS UBWIN PUE GEdH Jo Juduredocy
IOYIQ ‘SIAIOS UBWINF PUE YEdH Jo Juduredocy
19} ‘SAOIAIDG UBWINY PuB eI JO Judunreddq
IDYIQ ‘SIS UBWINE PUE YEdy Jo Juduedocy
1910 ‘SIOIAIDG UBWINH PUB [BIF JO Judunteddq
$S99IAI0S UBWINY] PUE YL JO JudunIEddq

&30, uonednpy Jo yudunredaq

owoou] ALnoos | w1 s10uty Jo ssowpeay Funowolg

weagoad [erapag

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



[43

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 6LE'ST 1T-LETPSOHNT0US “2U] QUAISAH [BIUDJN 10,4 UONEPUNO YOIBASAY  6LE ST - wTee SIUBID [21BASIY (PIESH [BIUSA
- €ELYL EITBITHNION ANSIOATU[) WNSOMYLON  €€L°pT - wTee SIUBID [21BaSAY [PIESH [BIUSA
- €LE'S6 66671 THWI0Y ASojouyda JO Ay BISI09D  €££°G6 - wTee SIUBID [21BISOY PIEIH [BIUSA
- $20°56 IVI0-TIT60THWER AT DT soonko0xg  S70°66 - wTee SIUBID [21BISIY [EIH [BIUSA
- 98€°L81 E€SSELOHNTEL 230][0D) ynownie  98¢°L8I - wTee SIUBID [21BISIY IEIH [N
900°€1T°T S6TTSL0L - - S6TTSLOL wTee SIUBLD [21BISIY IO [BIUSA
- ((29) 9TTETITHIOY Ayszoatun erquinjo)  (¢1) - £€T’E6 018359y $10p10si(] dO3[S U0 10)UD7) [BUONEN.
- 206°01 9TT8TITHIOY Ays1oAtun BIQUINOD 70601 - TETE6 218959Y [BIOUDD) 10J WLIB0I{ JudARday Ueo]
- £6L°6 18121000104 QUIDIPIN JO 9F9[0D) ANSIOAUN [OXAIT  £6L°6 - £L1°E6 SIOPIOSI(] UONESIUNIIWIO.) PUE SSOUFEI(] O} PAIY YOIBASY
- 9r6°8ST L9EY10DAT10d 03eoIYD) JO ANSIOAIUN  916°8ST - €LI'E6 SIOPIOSI(] UOHEOIUNUILIO)) PUE SSAUFRA(] 0} PAJR[AY YOIRISIY
- PETHIT Z0-10LF10DA10¥S [OILASOY [BOIPAN 10, AMNSU] SIOMOIS  HETH9T - €LT'E6 SIOPIOSI(] UOTEOIUNWIO) PUE SSAUFLA(] 0} PAJL[OY YIILASIY
- £THPE +£169000d 104 Aysmoatun uoyueySulg  €7HPE - €LI'E6 SIOPIOSI(] UONEIIUNWIIO.) PUE SSAUJLA(] 0} PAIL[OY YOILASTY
- 90°SLS - - $90°SLS €LI'E6 SIOPIOSI(] UOHEOIUNWILIO.) PUE SSAUJEA(] 0 PAJE[AY YOIBaSY
- 019°s81 €0-9T1800OH10¥S AjsAUN AR 019°S81 - TLIE6 YOIEASIY SUIOUDL) UBLINK
- 19L°06 20-16£600DH10NS SINOY 1§ uf ANs1oatun uoiBuryses  [9L°06 - TLIE6 018359} SWOUE) UBUNE
- [AARZ - - CIIere’l TLIE6 [[0IaSY AWOUSD) BN
- TL9'6T 10-10¥620SHERA 1 dup amdopk) - L9'6T - £r1°¢6 UONEIND UL Yareasay dlseg SadUEISqNS snopieze punyiadng SHAIN
- 98€°85S - - 98€°8SS 121°¢6 01838 SIOPIOSI(] PUE SASeIsI(] [BI0
- 0zI‘IS 10-+¥T8TOSHS AT AlU() AJEIS BIUBA[ASUUD]  OTI‘IS - €Ire6 e [eIUSWUOIAUY
- S06°LT +0-6¥09T0SH0SdS KNSIOAIUN WRISEAYUON  S06°LT - €Ire6 B [BIUSWUOIAUY
- wern €0-6¥090SH0SdS ANsI0ATUL UISEAYUON  (HTT°T) - €Ire6 HBRH [BIUSWUOIIAUY
62€°ST SLEEOT'T - - SLEEOT'T €I1°€6 I[ESH [BIUSWUONIAUZ
- $29°018 - - 79018 LLOE6 o1Rasay A101R[nSay 10V [0NUOD 0008QO ], PUE UOHUIAAIJ Sunjows AJiwe]

UNeaH 4O salniisu| [euoneN
- £hP°0S 00-10-980000HV Id.L T ‘ouf santunpoddo Auno) 08amsQ b 0S - L6TE6 wesord uonuaaalg Loueudald ofeusa],

Aue131098 aup 40 2010 AIWINI

- 898°916 £€0°LST S€8°659 |B101gNS UONRAISIUIWPY SBOIAIDS PUY $30IN0S3Y Y}[edaH
- IvT6LY - - 9T 6LY LST°E6 OJUDIPIXE JO SINUT
- PEEEET 16T6TVHOIN ANsIoAIUN BIQUINOD  HEEEET - Sr1'e6 QOUBISISSY [BOIUYIA ], PUE FuIUIELL PAIRIOY-ATH
- 669°€T LO-8POPTOWN OEH § QUIDIPIN JO [00YOS IeUIS JUNOI  669°€T - 011°€6 swe1301d PAIPI[OSUO)) [219p3,] PEIH PIIYD PUr [euIdey
- 685081 - - 635081 011°€6 swe1301g PAIEPI[OSUO)) [219P2,] EIH PIIYD Pur [euIdey

UOIESIUILUPY S3IAJS PUY $82IN0SaY U)eaH

TSE961 YLL'6EY'T 90T 701 895°SEST [e301gNS UoneAsIUIPY Bnig pue poo
- Y6T 8y 76790004100 12120 BuNRUIPI00) 1IN P6L 87 - £€01°€6 youeasay uonensiumpy 3niq pue poog
- 1988 98950011104 WoULAA JO ANSIOAIUN (988 - £€01°€6 youeasay uonensiutpy Sniq pue poog
- 1S0°Ly 0L£$00AA100 UOHEPUNO UOIU[) SIDULIE [EUONEN  [SO°LY - £01°€6 OIEas9Y UOHENSIUIWPY Bni(] PUE Poof
T5€'961 895°5€6°1 - - 895°ES°1 £01°€6 yoleasay UonensiuIpy Sni( pue poog

uonensiulpY Bnig pue poo

OLL08LT 85L°9S€°E 67 06L 60£°995°T [B103gNS UONUIASId pUe |03U0D 3SB3SIQ 104 SIBUSD
- 1L6°TE - - 1L6°T€ €87°€6 ) [e2IUYDA ], pUE SUONES UONUSAIIJ PUE [01IUO)) 3SBASI(] J0J SINUA))
8TIEl 61°LT §0-L00T00AATONS BUIOIED) YINOS JO ANSIAIUN - $61°LT - €8T°€6 ¥ [eOIUYOS L, pUE SUOHESY ] UONUDAJIJ pUB [0NUOT) dSBISI(] 10§ SINUD
- /YT'T T9L600HO 09N Sururel], puy YoIeasay UONONNSUO)) 10 1IUD) AYL,  8HT°T - 97°€6 wersold yeay pue K195es [euonednooy
- SEPL 6662009010 uoneiodio) puey  SepL - 9€1°€6 swei3old paseq AJUNWWO)) PUB dJB)S PUR YOIRISIY [0NUOD) PUB UONUIAAI AInfuf
- 978611 TT0£00AD 10 o[ “YoIeOSY PBIH 978611 - 9€1°€6 sweISo1g poseq AIUNUWWO.) PUE dJL)S PUE YIILASIY [0NUO)) PUB UONUIAAI AInfuf
- LYT'86€ 10-7€8200dD10NT QU YoredsY PEIH LT 86E - 9€1°€6 sweiSo1d paseq A)UNWWo)) pue dJe)g Pue YoIeasay [0NUO) pue uonuasdlg Amfuy
1€8°195°1 119°5€€°T - - 119°5€€°T $80°€6 So580SI(] SNONOAJU] AQ YIBd(] PUE “KN[IQESIC] “OSEISI(] JO UONUIAIL]
- 950°L 00-€0-$S11004d LTN § QUIDIPAIN JO [00TOS PUIS MO 9E0°L - 080°€6 0189593 PUE “D0UB[[IOAINS ‘UORUIADIJ :WIBIFO1] 10PIOSICT POO[E]
- ¥T6°T1 Lgerooaaron “oU[ “YoIBISNY WIBH  +T6°T1 - €L0°€6 QOUB[[IPAING PUE UORUAIJ - SINIIQESI(] [BIUOWAO[AI( PUE S102J2(T YMIEl

1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0) passeq e, Snug ySnoay-sseq “sseq paesy
[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



€S

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 60T%S €OPITOaNTOY ANSIOATUN 20UDIOS PUY (IEIH UOFAIO 60T HS - LOE°€6 218950y SONLIEASI(Y [BIH PUE {I[ESH AILIOUIN
$55°66 660°TST - - 660°7ST LOE'E6 YoIeasay sanuedsiq PIEH pue YEAH Loty
- 659°9¢ S0-TOLLOOANT0YES RIWISHA JO ANSIDAIUN  659°9€ - LOE'E6 [oIeasOY SoNLIRdSI(] Y[ESH pue Y[ AILIOUTA
- $09°TT 6502099 1¥d “OUJ “YOIBISIY 10,] 10IUD)) SESULY JO ANSIOAIUN  S09°TT - 98T°€6 el uewny daoxdwy o}

suoyeAOUUJ [EJI50[0UYII, 10f Y218asaY parddy pue K1A00SIT
- S10°561 L1LTToga10d 00s10URL] UES ‘BIWIOJIE) JO ANSIAIUN - ST0°S61 - 98T°€6 el uewny daodwy o}

suoneouu] [ea130[0uyad . 10§ Yoreasay parddy pue 1010081
- 1ze ¥0-¥0r0T08arSNS siydwdy JO AnsmoAtun  [zg - 98T°€6 ey uewny daodwy o}

suoneouu] [ea130[0uyPa | 10§ Yoreasay parjddy pue 1040081
- (3454 17091094108 ApsAmn synL - €p$°T - 98T'€6 ey uewny daoxduwi oy

suoneAouu] [e2130[0UYd 10§ yo1easay parddy pue K10A00si
£r1'6L1 S8L081°T - - S8L081°C 987°¢6 ey uewny aaoxduwy oy

suoneAouu] [eo130[ouyoa | 10§ Yoreasay parjddy pue £19400s1q
- 8YE'S FIEOYOVATON AANSU] Y2IBASAY UONEPUNO] JASIEY  8PE'S - 6LT€6 sweio1d YoIeasay UONAIPPY PuE asnqy Sni
- (set1) 1SST-0€1S00VA09dE Aysioatun J2[[2)a%00Y  (Sep1) - 6LTE6 swieIoig Y21BasY UONAIPPY PuE asnqy Snil
- SEE101 10-L6SSHOVATTAT BUIOIED) YLON JO ANSIOAIUN  SEE 10T - 6LT'E6 swieIB01g Y218asY UONIPPY PuE asnqy Snil
- 9Ls'9 Se0e10vaIon QWP JO 00495 ANSIOAIUN JIOA MON  9LS'9 - 6LT°€6 sweI301d YoILasY UONAPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- 9eL'sy LYLTPOVAT0Y ANSIAIUN) JOSEL UOWIS €L EY - 6LT'€6 SWEIS0I( Y2Ieasay uondIppy pue asnqy Sniq
- 691°6 TIP6HOVATINN 1)U [EIIPIN UOISOH  691°6 - 6LT€6 swe1301q Yo1LasY UOHAIPPY put asnqy Sniq
- LLS 08 LTSOPOVATOY 191UdD) [BOIPAIN UOISOY  LLS08 - 6LT€6 SweISold oIeasay UONOIPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- 6€5°001 ozLerovainn Wl JO ANSIAUN - 6€5°001 - 6LT'€6 SwieIB01q Y218SY UONIPPY Pue asnqy Sni
- 8LT9Y 8L8PPOVATOY a8a[10D WIS MAqY  §LTOY - 6LTE6 sweISold YoIeasay UONOIPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- 0S0°L ceLerovainn HEuuRUL) JO ANSIAN - 0S0°L - 6LT°€6 SweIB01q Y218SAY UONIPPY pue asnqy Sni
- 062°9S 86T1¥OVAI0Y ISU] YoIeasay puy Juawdo[aAd( [BUONEN  06T°9S - 6LT'€6 SWeIS01( YoIeasay uondIppy pue asnqy Sniq
- (S16°€6) ST-0€1S0VA 09dS As1oatun 19719300y (St6°€6) - 6LT°€6 SweIB01q (21BISAY UONIPPY pue asnqy Sni
- 8609 6866£0VAE0T “ou] QUAISAH] [BIUSIA] 10, UONBPUNO] YOIBISY  $86°09 - 6LTE6 SweISo1q Yo1easay UODIPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- 8STHI seogrovarnn ANSIOAIUL) SHOA MON  8STHI - 6LTS6 SweIS014 YoILasaY UONOIPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- ¥56'0S THOSHOVA LA AYSIOAIUL) IO MON  $S6°0S - 6LTS6 sweIS014 YoIBasaY UONOIPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- 8118 10-ST6v0VA TNN T Ansioatun wiqunjo) 8113 - 6LT°€6 SweIB01q YoIBISY UONIIPPY PUE dsnqy S
- SOL'ETT 08ZS£0VAT0Y Austoatun wIqunjo)  GOL'ETT - 6LT°€6 SWeIB01] YOIBISY UONIIPPY PUE 9snqY Sl
- 8€9'18 £1LSPOVATON Ausioatun wiqunjo)  8€9°18 - 6LT°E6 SWIB01q YoIBISRY UONIIPPY PUE dsnqy S
- P6r0T1 01S170VAT0Y Ausioatun w1quINjo) 6011 - 6LT°E6 SweIS014 YoIEASIY UONAIPPY PUE dsnqy Sni
- £86°SL ocrerovaiod ANSIDAIUN BIQUINOD)  €86°CL - 6LTE6 sweISo1d YoIeasay uonoIppy pue asnqy Sniqq
- 9IT8E T0-LL6EYOVATHAY D71 suonnjog utelg  9pZ'8E - 6LT'€6 swer3014 YoIeAsay UondIppy pue asnqy Sniq
065°S80°T ES6THY - - PE]6TH Y 6LT€6 sweiSo1g YoI1easay UONOIPPY pue asnqy Sniq
- 009°91 8¥Z0TOV V10 Aysioatun ajerg uoIBUIYSEM  009°91 - €LTE6 sureiSoxg yoreasay [OYOI|y
- TEL'SI 806120VV 10N yBmqsnid JO ANsIPAIUN - TELST - £LTE6 sweioi YoILasRY [0YOI[Y
- LLS'ET S0-€91€TOVYV 10¥ & “ou] QUISAH [BJUDJN 10, UOHEPUNO,] YOIEASAY  LLS €T - €LT'E6 SWEIB01d YIBASAY [04OO]Y
95+°961 0r 19L - - 0P 19L €LT'E6 swesSo1d Yoeasay [04od]y
- £06°'881 SO-ETHOTHIN 108 § AysIoAIUN QIS BPHOLL  €06°881 - wTee SUBID YOILISRY YL [BIUIN
- 65099 €9ESTTHNITOY “ou[ ‘InSU] PUIN PIIYD 65099 - wTee SIUBID) [0IeASAY YI[BIH [BIUSIA
- 6879 90SSOTHINI0Y “oul “MNSU] PUIN PO $68°F9 - wTee SIUBID) 2183y YI[EAH [BIUAL
- LTH9Y 0€8Y I THING6IN BIWIOJI[E) JO ANSIOAIUN QYL JO ST YL LTH9t - wTee SIUBID) [2I1edSaY ([ESH [BIUSA
- LO6'L OITOTTHWITA UOISNOH JO ANSIAUN  L06°L - wTee SIUBLD) [21edsaY [I[ESH [BIUSA
- LYSYT 90SSOTHNI0I QUIIPAIN JO [00Y9S ANSIDAIUN YIOX MON  LPSHT - wTee SIUBID [OIe0SY YI[LIH [EIUIN
- S66°SE G6IISTTHNIO Kas1af MAN JO ANSIDAUN 21R)S AL ‘SIZINY  §66°SE - wTee SIUELD) [21edSOY [[EH BN
- €06°LLT SYITITHNI0A INONIOUUOY) JO ANSIAUN  €06°LLT - wTee SIUBID [oIedsY YIEIH [BIUIN
- L1689 YS980THINTOY [orASAY PIA 10, 2MUSU UIAISUId]  L]6°89 - wTee SIUBLD [21eISIY Y[EIH [BIUSA
- 820°€ 6ELYTTHNFEI [eNdSOH suaWop puy weysug  §70°¢ - wTee SIUBID YoIedsY YIEIH [BIUIN
€LE61 9L0°€91 60SOTTHNI9Y UOIFUIYSEAL JO ANSIOAIUN  9L0°€E9T - wee SIUBID YoIe3SY YIEIH [BIUIN

1dpay-qng saanyy a Jaquiny Sudyyuapy Apug ydnoyr-ssed ysnoay waua uoyEIRHUIPL vado wier3014 [619pg
0) passeq e, Snug ySnoay-sseq “sseq paesy

[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



125

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- LIS°0€ €0-166£0TVOI10US ANSIDAIUN NIGIPUBA  L]S0E - S6£°€6 OIBISY JUAWIBAL ] 1ddUR)
- L90°LS 00162TVO10d QD 0kBN  L90°LS - S6E°€6 OIBISAY JUSWIEAL [ 100UR)
- (g1 128081VD01N [endsoy suawop puy weySug (LE]) - S6€°€6 [O1B3SY JUSWBAL L 130UB))
- (885) S6LYSIVOI0Y uIsuodsI A JO 2591100 [BIIPIN YL (88S) - S6£°€6 Y2IB3SY JUAUNEAI ] 19dUE))
- S6v'LI 06871TVO10d 10152400y JO ANSIOAIU)  S6H LT - S6£°€6 OIB3SAY JUSWIEBAL | 100UR))
- 6bS°E TLTLOTVOI0Y ueSIyorAl JO ANSIAIUN  6S°E - S6€°€6 OIBISY JUSWILAL [, 1ddUB))
- 188°S L9F091VO10Yd ueSyorA JO ANSIAIUN  [88°C - S6€°€6 OIBISY JUSWIBAL [, 1ddUB))
- 88° 17 9%61€VD 01N HON oSeowy) JO Ausioalun) 7881+ - S6£°€6 OIBISY JUAWILAL [, 1ddUB))
- 0S1LL TI-LV6ITIVO TINN S sopaduy SO ‘BruIofi[e) JO ANSIAIUN  OST‘LbL - S6£°€6 [21B3SIY JUWIRAL ], JAOUBD)
- €ET]SI LY61TIVOIINN sopaduy SO ‘eruIofije) JO ANSIAIUN  €€T'8ST - S6€°€6 [21B3SY JUAWIRAL ], JAOURD)
- L6 11-LP61TIVO TNN § sajasuy o ‘BILOfIE) JO AUSIAIN  TSL'6 - S6£°€6 [218959Y JUAWEAI] 190UB))
- yS8'8 968£€TVIL0Y 101uaD) 120uE)) BULIAY UBO|S [ELOWRN  $S8'S - S6¢°€6 [oIeasay jusuedl], Jadue)
- 199°C 0STI0ZVO10Y 121U2)) 100UE)) SULINAY URO[S [ELOWAI  [99°T - S6£°€6 OIEASIY JUSUIEAL] JAOUB))
- 6LT°T61 8TTHOTVIL0Y 282]10D) ymowneq  6LT°T61 - S6£°€6 [oIeasay Jusuneal], J1adue)
- 9Tr'ey 988081VI01N erydiopeiyd JO [endsoy suaIpIyd - 9zhey - S6£°€6 [OIBasay Juduneal], Jddue)
SLY'STL SLI'SYS'L - - SLISYS‘L S6£°€6 YOIBasIY JUSUNEAI], 10DUR)
- 9L0°L 8L601TVIYTN amnsuf peoxg  9L0°L - 6£°€6 o1BaSY SISOUSBI(] puk UONIAA(] 190UL)
- SEI'LE PP10ZTVOITd mnsuf SuLeNoy-ueolS  SEI°LE - Y6£°€6 o1B3SY SISOUSBI(] puk UONIAA(] 190U
- 9T 1Y 6LSPTTVOEHI ouf sarSojouyda |, SunaSie] MO 97T 1+ - 6£°€6 OIB3SY SISOUSBI(] Uk UONIAA(] 100U
- 0T6'cr1 0¥ToITvo10N 12U [EDIPIIN BISEIGON JO ANSIOAUN  0T6°EP T - 6£°€6 oIeasay sisousel(] pue uonodlaq 1adue)
- €€9°1T Z0v980VD10N 12)UD)) QUG I[LOH ‘SEXAL JO ANSIOATUN)  €£9°[T - 6£°€6 [oIeasay sisouSel(] pue uoNoa)d(] 12dUL))
8T8TEL SSTH00't - - SSTH00t }6£°€6 youeasay sisoudei(] pue uondR( 19UE)
- 0Er'TE 912L0TVO10Y 12)UD)) JOdUR)) UOSIOPUY (TN 0EH'TE - €6£°€6 [OIBISOY UONUIADIJ PUE ISNE) TOIUE))
- TTee SEI8TTVOI0A 12)Ua)) [EIIPIIN AVSIDAIUN HIOK MIN  TTE'E - £6£°¢6 [OIeasaY UONUIADIJ PUE ISNE) 12DUET)
- LTE PP TI19STIVOI0Yd wIog JRNSIOAIUN  LTEbhT - €6£°€6 [OIBISOY UONUIADIJ PUE ISNE) TOIUB))
- WILTT 895S61VI10N BJOSUUIIA] “QUINIPAN JO 989[[0)) o1ut)) oKe]yl  ZHI°LIT - €6£°€6 [OIBISOY UONUIADIJ PUE ISNE) TOIUE))
- 810°0C £€560TVOITY Qmnsu| SuLopay-urolS  810°0T - £6£7€6 [DIEASY UONUOAII PUE ISTIE)) 10DUE))
- 9¥E°66 090L81VD10d QUIIPIIN JO [00YOS AJSIDAIUN HIOK MIN  9FE‘66 - £6£°€6 UoIB3S3Y UORUIASIJ PUE ISNE) 190UB))
- SLO'PS 8SETTTVOI0Y 980100 WOISUIT WOqIY  SLO0PS - £6£°€6 OTBasIY UONUOAdIG PUE ISTE)) J00UE))
- oL IVI0-99%S1TVO10d1 BUIOIR)) YINOS JO ANSIOAIUN 6L - £6£°€6 UoIedsay UOHUIASIJ PUe ISNE) 190UE))
- 91 S6L00TVOI0Y Aysioamun vrqunjo) 91 - €6€°€6 [OIBISIY UONUIAJIJ PUE ISNE) IOOURD)
- 90€°101 820SOTVOI0d Ays1oAtun vIqUINGOD  90E 10T - £6£°€6 UoIB3SaY UOHUIASIJ PUE ISNET) 190UE))
91L'6EY 168°TELY - - 168°TELY £6£7€6 [DIBASOY UONUAAI PUE ISNE)) 10OUE))
- 0SH°TL PEVPIOANIOY WenN JO ANsAIIN - 0SHTT - 19€°¢6 [1BasY SuIsIN
- S00°€1 PEOLTOUNIOY [e)dSO} S,udWop puy weysug — §00°¢l - 19¢€°¢6 {18359y SUISIN.
- $61°9T S069T0ANITE ANISIOATUN) UMOIOBI0D)  $61°97 - 19€°¢6 218359y SUISIN.
s1TTee 867918 - - 861918 19€°€6 Yorwosoy Sursmy
- 181'€ SLIFTTVOI0N amnsuf SN -UROlS  [8%'PE - £55°€6 10USUOOJN 190UE)) UAPIE NLAg] - 10 SN A2 IS [T
- S68°TS 10-€S1¥TTVOI0NT As1oatun synL - G68°CS - £6€°€6 JOYSUOOJN] 199U UIPIE NEAE - JOV SN AIMUI) IS|T
SPO'TI 6T ITI'T - - 6T ITT'T £5£°¢6 JOUSUOON 100UE,) UAPIE NEAg - 10 SN AU IS [
98597 $S5°599°T - - PS§°599°T 15€°€6 SUIRIS01q QINONISEIU] YOIEISIY
- ($66°1) P8ETOOULITIN 10)U07) d[EPO0IE J3I[[0D) NUNE- ANND UOHEPUNO] YoIeasay  ($66°T) - (USRI $OIUDIOG [BUONE[SULL] BUIDUBAPY 10J 10JUD)) [FUOHEN
- §96°9T1 LSST00YLITN 43IngspId JO ANSIOAIUN - §96°9T1 - (USRI $OIUIO [BUONE[SULL], BUIDUBAPY 10J 10JUD)) [FUOHEN
89T°0¥9°C 8S8IEL 01 - - 8S8TEF 0T 0S€°€6 $OOUDIOG [RUONE[SURI] FUDURAPY 10} IOIUI)) [RUONEN
- TLY'8e £€60004.LEHN AysIoAtuN IDI[JONOOY  TLY'RE - 01€°€6 poddng yo1easay HIN-SUeLL
- €01°11 659810449104 Ays1oAtun preAteH  €01°11 - 01€°€6 poddng yo1easay HIN-SUBLL
- (g0T'ce) €81€2040EDN AysioAun eiqunjo)  (£07°¢e) - 01€°€6 Moddng yoreasay HIN-SUeLL
- £80°689°S 9$§920d0OT1O AysIoAtun BIQUINO)  €80°689°S - 01€°€6 poddng 4125y HIN-SUBLL
- POEPST Jqe[IBAY JON onsuj uosdwoy ], 99K0g  H6EHST - 01€€6 1oddng yo1easay HIN-SULI],
- 6EP'SS8'S - - 6EP'SS8'S 01€'€6 poddng yoreasay HIN-SUBL],
- YTLYOL EILTTOaNSTY ANND JO UOHEPUNO] YOIBISY  HTL P01 - LOE'E6 218359y SONLIEASI(T YI[EIH PUE I[ESH AILIour
1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0) passeq e, Snug ySnoay-sseq “sseq paesy
[euopIppY

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2amIpuddxy Jo [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



199

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 1€ $S68TITHION ydmgsnid Jo Ansioaun ¢ - 8€8°¢6 [oIeasay saseasi(q Sun
- 8S1°y 8EPTTITHIOY UeSIYOIA JO ANSIAUN - §S T - 8€8°€6 youeasay saseasi( Suny
- $$8°T91 81TSTITHION AusIoAlun BIqUINOD  $$8°T91 - 8E€8'E6 [oIeasay saseasi(q Sun
- L8O'TIT ELIYETTHION aimnsu yoreasay] 13ulg AuaySajly L8011 - 8€8'E6 218359y saseasi(] Sun'y
60€7€0°E SYI'LYI'S - - SYI'LYI'S 8€8°€6 218359y SosEISI(] Fun'
- SEIH01 L0-LO6SOT'TH 10N § UONRIBIA 10, - AUSIOATUM 10X MON  SETHOT - LEY'E6 YoTeasay $aseasi(] Je[NoseAoIpIe))
- LSL'SLT S9PSEITHTEL ANND JO UOHEPUNO{ YOI1easay  LSL'GLI - LES'E6 Yo1BISIY SISEISI(] JB[NISEAOIpIE)
- 9SL'T TV10-900LT1'TH 10N 1 DT “YoIBIsAY [BOIUID WO 9GL°T - LES'E6 YoIeasay saseasi(] Je[noseAotpIe)
- €SLEL 66vLTITHIOY ANSIOAIUN J[IGIOPUBA  €GL°€] - LES'E6 OIB3SAY SASEISI(] JB[NISLAOIPIE))
- 909°L SL86TITHIOY I2JU) [BIIPAN sesuey JO %:m._o\w_ca 909°L - LER'EH 21BISIY SOSBISI(] JB[NOSBAOIpIR))
- L1638y TBLOTI'THEEY BPLOL] (IO JO ANSIOAIUN LSS - LER'E6 [oIeosay Saseasi(] Je[noseAolpIe])
- (<) TBLOTI'THESY a50[[0) walsurg QLY () - LEY'E6 [0Iea59y S9583SI(J JE[NOSEAOIpIE])
- $96°0€ 8LLOCTTHIOY IBASIY PAA 0] SMNSU UIISUD  $96°0€ - LEY'E6 Y0Ieasay $a5easi(] Je[noseAoIpIe))
- PPTEEe 1690€ T THZTHN weySuwng - eweqe[y JO ANSIOAIUN  HHTEEE - LES'E6 [OILASOY SISLASI(] JB[NOSEAOIPIE))
- TTs'sT 8ELOTITHION wieySuwug - BweqeE[Y JO AISIDAIUN - TTSST - LEY'E6 Yoreasay saseasi(] Je[noseAolpre))
- 78€°0¢€ 128SEITHS €Y uojsog [edsOH SudIpIYD  Z8E0E - LEY'E6 oIeasay Saseasi(] Je[noseAOIpIE))
- 8LT'E €910€I'THION —au_QmOI SUdWwop puy Em:wcm 8LTE - LER'EOH 21BISIY SOSBISI(] JB[NOSBAOIPIE))
- ssi'ey 9€EETITHION [eNdSOH SuaWoM puy Weysug  SSI‘ch - LER'E6 o185y Saseasi(] Je[noseAolpIe])
- 008°6€ 9€EETITHION [eNdSOH [BIQUID) SPASNYOLSSEIN  008°6E - LER'E6 [0Iea59y S95351(] JB[NOSEAOIpIE])
- 15881 $0-TO98TITHIONS ApsAun A 16881 - LEY'E6 YoTeasay Saseasi(] Je[noseAolpre))
- L09°991 T9SOPITHIOE SEXOL, YUON JO ANSIOAIUN L0999 - LEY'E6 UDTeasay SISLasi(] JE[MOSEAOIPIE])
- LE6'9 €LTOPTITHIOY QUIDIPAN JO [00YIS TBUIS JUNOIN  L€6°9 - LES'E6 [OILASY SISLASI(] JB[NOSLAOIPIE))
- 66L°0T€ L6TISITHION QUIDIPI JO [00YDS TBUIS UNOIN  66L°0TE - LE8°€6 OIB3SAY SASEISI(] JB[NISLAOIPIE))
- 11z LISSTITHION Ausaun g 117 - LE]'E6 [0IBaSY SASLASI(] JB[NOSBAOIPIE))
- 009°9€ 9ETETTTHIONT AsIoAtun BIQUINO)  009°9€ - LER'E6 o185y Sa53sI(] JB[NOSBAOIpIE])
060°5H8°T £76°€96°6 - - £75°€96°6 LER'E6 [oIeas9y Sa5asI(] Je[NOSEAOIpIE])
- (OLL'8Y) LYPLEVD 010 oBearyD JO Ansioaun  (0LL'8Y) - 66€°€6 [onu0) 10UE)
- zITo1 61STPIVISTY QMINSUT YO189SAY 79 INUD)) 100UB) NJON 99T 'H  TIT01 - 86£°€6 Tomoduepy YoIeasaY 100U
- 601°0TL'T - - 601°02LT 86£¢6 Tomoduey] yoreasay 1ooue))
- 208 181 LE6GTOHIVI0S AQmusu] SuLRY-UBOlS  TOS ISI - L6€°€6 syuein) poddng s1ojua) 100ue))
- 99t $0-19¥€61 VOVSNS AMINSU] JdUED) JoQIB-BUR(  99F - L6E°€6 sjueln) poddng s10jua)) 10uR)
- £SH'T 90-T1S89IVO vTN S uoneloqe[jo) :w:o._:r_. 21838y 10 dOUBI[[Y BUWOdIRS €SH'T - L6EE6 SjueID) ﬁc&&:m SIUR)) 1dURD)
- L¥0°LT €0-180661VOYSN 12JU9)) 190URD) FULINDY UBOIS [BLOWIN  LP0°LT - L6E°E6 siueln oddng sioua) 10oue))
- Terore €0-180661VO¥SNS 12)U97) 100UED) BULIONIY UBO[S [EHOWDN  TEHOPE - L6E°E6 syue1n) poddng s101ua)) 190uUR)
126'789 YSTIL6'E - - ST'IL6'E L6E°€6 sjuen) poddng s1jua)) 100ue))
- €L0°L9T 696L11VD10d 10)U0)) 1JUBD) UOSIOPUY (TN €L0°L9IT - 96€°€6 yoreasay KSojorg 10oue))
- 19L°6 L8LS6IVOI0Y qmusu] SULPAN-UBOIS  [9L'6 - 96£°€6 yoIeasay| £30jorg Jooue)
- 798°9 91T8TTVOI0Y musu] SULIPIY-UBO[S  T98‘SY - 96€°€6 yoIeasay| A30[o1g 1ooue)
- €19°L0€ 88E€88IVDI0N AAMUSU] (OIeasOY [ENASOH ISIPOYRIN  €19°L0E - 96€°€6 yo1easay AFojorg 100ue))
- P16°501 €86L0TVOI0Y so[aBuy 0T [endsoH SUIPID  FIS°G01 - 96€°€6 yo1easay AFoorg 100U
- YLY'TST #960C1VO10d [BNASOH] SUOWOM puy Weysug  $LTST - 96£°€6 1835y AFo[OIg 100U
- 91TEE 680861VO10d BIUBA[ASUUD] JO ANSIAUN 91T HEE - 96€°¢6 yo1easY AFojorg 100ue)
- S€0°061 00€F1TVOI0N UOLEPUNO,] dUI) PUBPAR) YL SE0°061 - 96€°¢6 yoreasay AFojorg 1o0ue)
9£9'TTE TTL'LOE'Y - - TTLLOE'9 966 youeasay £3ojorg saoue)
- 9179 0-9€LT8IVII0US Joqied-eued  91Z'9 - S6£°€6 01828 JUSWIBALY, 100UR))
- /YE9L 0E8PTTVOIPY ouf ‘[eannadseueyd x:oa:%m 8PE9L - C6E°E6 2Ie3sSIY Juduneal ], 1adue)
- $66°€€ 10-L¥0€81 DID dno1n yo1easay 109ue) NIRIDV-DODE  ¥66°€€ - S6€°€6 018353y JUSUNEDL], 120URD)
- o€l TEEEETVOIDN dmnsuf SULONIN-ULOIS 0L bt - $6€°€6 0185y JUDUNBAL], I100UBT)
- 688°8t LTBO8IVDOIN 12)U2)) [BIIPIN AIOYAJUOIN 68881 - $6€°¢6 [OIBISIY JUDUNRIL], Jd0UL)
1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0) passeq e, Snug ySnoay-sseq “sseq paesy
[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



9¢

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 9¥0°T01 1T-S8ETEOSNIOAT YBMqsnId JO ANSIPAIUN - 9p0°TO1 - €58°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [EQISO[OIMAN PUE SIOUDIISOININ Y Ul SWEIFO1] YOIEISIY [BINWENXF]
- 01T°€L 89LS90SNFSN BJOSOUUIA JO ANSIOATUN)  OT'EL - £€68°€6 SIOPIOSI(] [2OISO[OINAN] PUE SIIUIIISOINAN Y} UI SWLIS0IJ YIILASIY [BINWEIX
- STETL 0TPLIOSNIOY 00S10URL] UBS BIUIOjIE) JO ANSIOAIUN  STETT - £68°€6 SIOPIOSI(] [EOISO[OIMAN PUE SIOUIIOSOINAN AU} UT SWEIFOL] [OILISTY [BINMEIXE
- 009721 $8IL60SNIO ANSIALUN WIRJNOOY  009°TTT - £58°56 SI10pI0SI(] [2I150]0INAN] PUE SIOUIISOININ A} UT SWLITOI YOTRISIY [BINUWLIXE
LOEFT 0677 SI8080SNTON KNISIOATU() UIAISOMIUON  06T°TT - €58°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [BOISO[0INAN PUE SIIUIIISOININ AY) Ul SWRIF0I] YOILISIY [BINWENXF]
- LIFIST 98FF80SNT0Y QUIDIPOIA JO [00YDS TBUIS JUNOIN  L[H' ST - £€58°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [2AIS0[0MAN] PUE SIIUIIISOINAN Y} UI SWLIS0IJ YIILASIY [BINWENXF
- 85T +ZS080SNION Anszoarun) sunydoy suyor 4857 - £€58°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [2AIS0[0MAN] PUE SIIUIIISOINAN Y} UT SWLIS0I YOILASAY [BINWEIXF
- TE1°001 €PIPOISNIOY Ays1oAtup) preAIeH €001 - £€58°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [2A1S0[0MAN] PUE SIIUIIISOINAN Y} Ul SWLIS0I YOILASAY [BINWENXE
- £€50°08 LETLOTSNYZN Ays1oAtun) eIquINjo)  €50°08 - €68°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [221S0[0MAN] PUE SIIUIIISOINAN Y} Ul SWLIS0I YOIRISAY [BINWENXE
- 960°0€ €99101SNI0Y Ays1oAtun) eIqunjo)  960‘0¢ - £€58°¢6 S10PIOSI(] [221S0[0MNAN] PUE SOUIIDSOINAN Y} Ul SWLIS0I YOIASAY [BINWENX
- 0TE'LI 891LOISNFTN Aysioatun eIqunO)  OZELL - £€58°¢6 S19p1081(] [BIITO[OININ PUB SIIUIIOSOININ A} UI SWRIF01 YOI8asY [eInwen Xy
- (€1 L9TLLOSNOTN Aysioarun eiqunjo) (g1) - £€58°¢6 S19p1081(] [BIITO[OININ PUB SIIUIIISOININ A} UI SWRIF01] YOI8asyY [eInten Xy
- $66°61 8TL9SOSNOIN ANSIOATUN) BIQUINOD)  $66°61 - £68°€6 SIOPIOSI(] [2OISO[OINAN PUE SIOUIIISOINAN A} U SWLIF0I] [oIeasay [BINenXy
- 0S9°PL 698S60SNT0N ANSIOATUN) BIQUINOD  0S9*pL - £68°€6 SIOPIOSI(] [291TO[OMAN] PUE SIIUDIOSOINAN] A} UT SWLIT0I] Y2IBISY [BINWENX
- SOv°0T 0$8001SNT0Y ANSIOATUN) BIQUINOD)  SOF'0T - £68°€6 SIOPIOSI(] [BOISO[OINAN PUE SIIUSIOSOINAN Y} UI SWEIF01J YOIeasay [BINWENXF
- $98°6¢ 10-TLY8OTSNIOYT Aysioalun uosog  98°GS - £€58°¢6 SIOPIOSI(] [BOISO[0INAN PUE SIOUIIISOINAN] Y} UI SWEIT0L] [0I18aSY [BINWENXT
11€788°C 0€Y°L18°TT - - 0EH'LI8TT €68°€6 SIOPIOSI(] [BOISO[0INAN PUE SIOUIIISOINAN] Y} UI SWRIT01] [0oI1easy [eINWRNXT
- TET91 10-v6S61TAT0AT 0peI0[0)) JO ANSIOAIUN  TET9T - L¥8°€6 218959y [RANWEIXE SISEISI(] AQUPIS] PUE DANSIBI( ‘SA0qRICL
- 880°8 96001 TXAT0Y 2MSUL Y0IeISY [BOIPAWIOIY SEXDL,  880°8 - L4856 OIEISOY [RINWIEIIXE SISEISI(] ASUPEY] PUE “0ANSIBI(T ‘Sa10qeI(q
- 01°1 ZI8rI1edd KISIOATU) OAIOSOY UISIA 958D ZOT°T - L¥S€6 [0IOSY [RINWEIXT SISLASI ASUPIY Pue ANsaI( ‘sajaqerq
- SS1°TST LSTH603AT0N KNISIOATU) OAIOSOY UIASIA 9SBD)  GS[°TST - LP8°E6 [OIBOSY [RINWEIXT SISLASI ASUPIY Puk dANsasi( ‘sajaqerq
- L98°LTI LLLPTTIATOY IUDD) YIIBISIY 10UR)) UOSUIYONH Pl L98°LTT - LYS'€6 [OIBOSY [RINWEIXT SISLASI ASUPIY Pue dANSasi( ‘sajaqerq
- 90€°SS 91SL00MATEL I9)UD)) [BOIPIN SSIUOIBI(T [OBIS] IOF  90E°SS - L¥8°E6 YOIBISOY [PINWIEIIXE SISLISIC] AOUPIY] PUB “OANSITI(T *SI0qRI
- 0LI'S 0S9LTTAT0d AusIoAUN OBA  OLI'S - L¥8°E6 018IS9Y [RANWEIXE SISEISI(] AQUPIY PUE DANSITI( ‘SNOqRICL
- SES°IL 001911AT0N QUIDIPI JO [00YS TeUIS JUNON  SEG'TL - LP8'E6 [0189S9Y [PANWEIXE SISLISICT AOUPLY PUE DANSITI( ‘SNOqRIC
- 0¥ 1€ 008L80MA10Y ANSIOATU() AIBIS BURISINOT  OOF' (€ - Lb8'€6 oIeaSIY [RINUWIEIXF SISLASIT ADUPLY PUB ‘aANSIBI ‘SAqeIq
- 000°1€ 1V90-008L8031AT04T Ays1oA1uN IS BUBISIOT  000°TE - LY8'E6 [183S9Y [RANWELXE SISEISI(] AQUPLY PUE DANSITI( ‘SA0qeI(]
- 096°61 809£90MA0Ed Ays1oAtun BIQUINOD  096°61 - L¥8'E6 YOIEaSOY [BINWENXY SISLASI(] ADUPLY Pue ‘9AnsaBiq ‘sopqeiq
850°680°1 695°S99°T1 - - 695°S99°T1 L¥8'€6 YOIBasaY [BINWEIXF SISLISI(] KSUpry pue ‘0ansadi( sjeqeiq
- I S0-0Z08SAV EPAS 2077 3N Sui-eng upy ou[ ‘saoudtpsolg wnuslg | - 98€6 O183SOY SISEISIC] UIYS PUT [BIO[ONSO[NOSII ‘SLIYMY
- TIg6l 6986904100 ‘U] ‘Yoreasay YIEH 71861 - 9866 Y182y SISEASI(] UIYS PUE [£2[2YSO[NISIN ‘SHLIGLY
- P6£°TC LES690¥V 10 WP JO [00YIS IRUIS MO 6€°TT - 94866 Y18y SSEASI(] UIYS PUE [£12[2YSO[NISIN ‘SHLIGLY
- a3 658904V 10U SUIDIPIN JO [00YOS TeUIS JUNOI  HI€ - 918'€6 Y112y SASEASI(] UIYS PUE [£12[2YSOMISNIA ‘SHLIYMY
- 0§ 6986904V 10N £18ng [e10adg 104 [endsoH 0§ - 9v8'€6 1easay SASEASI(] UIYS PUE [£12[2YSO[NISNIA ‘SHLIYMY
- 0sTY YT-STEIHOAV 109§ A103ng [eroadg 104 [endsoy  0$TY - 98'€6 212383Y SISLASI(] UDYS PUE [BIA[OYSOMISI ‘SHHYMY
- 95THE 10-ESTLOAVITY | K18 [e100ds 104 [EdSOH  96T'bE - 948'€6 153y SISEISI(] U PUB [€[NSO[NISAL ‘SHLIGLY
- S0T'88 S0-€T0S90AVI0US Ausioarun BiquInj0)  S0Z‘88 - 9I¥8'€6 [o1easaY SASEISI(] ULYS PUB [BJR[YSO[NISNIA ‘SHHYMY
6L81€8°T ¥S0°6LS'S - - 7S0°'6LS’S 9¥8'€6 o1e2S9Y SASEISI(] ULYS PUB [BJR[YSO[NISNA ‘SHHYIY
955°6L1 19t°09% - - 19709 0v8'€6 s1opIosi(] doa|§ pue ‘saseasi(] poojg

“BunT 1IBaH 10J YOIRISTY A0UIIOS UONERIUAWI[dW] pue UOHR[SULL],
- 89L 8Y00E I THI0N QIS YoIBISAY SUIP[IYD  89L - 6£8°€6 [DIBISIY SI0IN0SRY PUE SISLASI(T POO[E]
- 616°0% 68Y6ETTHIOT ANsIoAtuN BIQUINOD 6601 - 6£8°€6 [21BISY SO0INOSY PUe SASLISIT poojg
L11°9T€ 920'91S°T - - 920915°T 6£8°€6 [2IBISIY SO0INOSIY PUE SASLISIT Pooje
- €L6'0F 088LETTHION BIWIOJIE) JO ANSIOAIUN YL JO SIUOSNY AL €L6°9F - 8€8°€6 218359y $95EISI(] Fun'
- 209°06 SEPTTITHIOY URSIYOIA JO ANSIOAIUN 94, JO SIUOSY YL 20906 - 8€8°€6 218959y $95EISI(] Fun'
- 8¥6'TH 088LETTHION 035I0UBL{ UES “BIUIOJIE) JO ANSIOAIUN  816°TH - 8€8°¢6 218959y $95EISI(] Fun'
- 008°0T LLISTITHTON oD PULIAAD  008°0T - 8€8°¢6 218959y $95EISI(] Fun'
- €00°€01 SOSTETTHIOY BIUWSIA JO ANSIOAIUN  €00°€01 - 8€8°¢6 018359y SaSEISI(] Fun'
- Twe6's1 IVI0-v6¥9E T THIONET YBIMgsSHI JO AISIPAIUN  TH6'ST - 8€8°¢6 18359y Sa5EISI(] Fun'

1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
o) passeg oL, Snug ySnoay-sseq sseq paesy
[euopIppY

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



SELTIS
8LS'STL

9€0°LT6'8

0SL°0TT
SELTIS
8LSQTL
SEPIT
60L9%
99°0€
8L6'LIT
$90°LT
0£€°98
65179
961°L8
£90°8
96L°0C
18L°08C
Ly1€T
S09°8LT
(1L0°62)
8LIY0Y
8LLLT
POLY1
WELLY
66011
865°L6
STTIL
60€°L
95L°0T
09°0S€
0S€°50T
L§0°901
866°0L
L6S'EE
£SHYy
TEH'9ST
(sL66)
9€1°1T1
(09t°€€)
179°181
1L9°SES° 1Y
L98°€6
L'
88T
LILYIL
889°TCT
9L0°61
900°9
£PE0PL

0} passeq

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

S9S6011V TN
SOIINOD(I80NLIH) 1 1-6198901V TINNS
£1-6198901V 1NN §
SO89EITVI0YI
PSI6ENTVI0Y
PRLEVIIVIO0Y
SPPOEIIVIOY
$70160-590-00-8EN
6YEPTIIVIOY
£266901V100
IIITIIVIOY
699TY 11V 10
LY9TTIIVESY
9LESEIIV6IN
#00SE0IV 100
THSS60IV 100
$0T6601V 10
1276901V INN
THSPEIIVIOY
8661€11V10Y
998901V 1NN
900TH0IV 10
$SLEYIIVIOT
SSTIEIVION
1V10-005T 11V 0¥ 1
998901V INN
0661111V10d
6891Z1IVITH
10€L011V 104
0981111V 10¥
T€98901V INN
IV10-€6S811IVITHI
PLLLOTIV61N
189F01TV 1NN
9IPSTIIVIOY
L£699011V10d
TL6IIIVIOY

E1660ISNITY

9L8L6OSNTOY

891080SNI10N

0LT660SNTOY

LI-LETOYOSNIOAT

T8YB60SNTI

1V10-S€89C0OSN 10N T

€TTOROSNTIN

€PS00TSNEHN

€S9T60SNTOYA

6STO60SNTON

T0-09TSISN 1TAT

STPYLOSNTON

9E1S80SN

LYTTOTSNITOYE

T0-89S660SNT0US
Jaquiny Surkynuapy
Snug ySnoayy-sseq

UOSBA BIUISIIA 1Y 9IMNSU] Yo1easay] eAoIeudg
09¢€ THA
09¢€ THA

*2U[ S[EOINAORULIEY ] XIOJRUA A

sesuey] JO ANsioArun

BJOSAUUI JO ANSIDAIUN YL JO SIURSY
BJOSAUUI JO ANSIDAIUN BY L JO SIUATY
[OIBASIY [BOIUILD) 10 AMSU]

20D YI[edH ANSIDAIU( [[IDIN JO AMUSU] Y2IBSAY YL
AyIsIDAIUN J[1qIapUBA

pueKIey JO ANSIoAIUN

TWer JO ANsioatun

Kasiof MaN JO ANsIoAtu a1elg Ay, ‘s1oSiny
IPID BQ( AIMISU] YOIBISAY [BOIPAWIOLY [N
a8ay10D waIsuIg Waqry

Ansioatun) uoiSuryse sy

uojsog [edsoH s,uaIp(iy)

on{saYn sANUI) $97

[endsoy s,uswop puy weydug

[endsoy s,uswop puy weysug

[endsoH s,uswop puy weysug

[e1dSOH [B19UID) SPISNYIRSSBIA

ysmqgsnid Jo Ansioatun

ysmagsnid Jo Ansioatun

Sieg 950[[0)) PUBIAIRI JO ANSIOATUN
so[oSuy S0 ‘BruIofife) JO ANSIAIUN
o[eyng JO AIsIAIN

AYSIOAIUN) NV SBXOL

K)ISI9ATUN U0YRIULI
[outa ], JO sy
Ansioarun) supjdop suyof
uopuo jO a39[[0) [eraduy
AyisIoAIun preArey
Anszoatun ang
Ansioatun ang
AyisiaAlun eiquinjo)
AyisIoAlun eIquIno)

o

12)U2)) [EDIPIN TBUIS JUNON

S[[IATOSYOE[ OTUI[) OB

S[[IAUOSYOE[ OTUI[) OB

mnsu] SuLnay-ueo[s

a8a10D uoisog

“ou ‘105911 Apouuay|

09SI0UEL] UBS ‘BIUIOJI[ED) JO ANSIOATUN

989[10D urdsuIg Haqry

oI purAAL)

Ansioatun uoySuryse sy

[eNdSOH [PIOUID) SPISNYOBSSEIA

I9)UD)) [BOIPIN SSIUOILI(T [9BIST YIOF

D)UY [BOIPIN SSIUOILA(T [9BIST YIOF

ANSIOATU[) O[B4

ANSIOATUL) O[B4

MUSUJ YOIISIY [EIIPIN ONINE UOSINSEI PALIUIAY
Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

LS

0SL°0TT
SELTIS
8LSSTL
SevIT
60L9%
9¥9°0€
8L6'LIT
$90°LT
0€€°98
6519
961°L8
£90°8
96L°0T
18L°08T
LYT'ET
S09'8LT
(1L0°62)
SLI'pOY
8LLLT
POL'bT
wWELLY
66t°t1
865°L6
STTIL
60€°L
95L°0T
079°05€
05€°50T
L§0°901
866°0L
L6S'EE
£SHY
TEH'9ST
(SL6°6)
9€1°1TI
(09¥°ce)
179°181
L98°€6
SLY'E
L88FT
LILPTT
889°CC
9L0°61
9009
£PEOPT
(<)
9671
L95°8
(8¥L)
LT6'E
SLL0T
901°50T
1L8°0F
ydnoayy,
-sseq

g

uoyEIyHUIP
preay
[euonippy

§68°¢€6
§68°¢6
§68°¢6
§68°¢6
§68°¢6
§68°¢6
§68°¢6
$68°¢€6
SS8°€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°€6
$68°¢€6
§68°¢€6
§68°¢€6
SS8'E6
§S8°¢€6
§58°¢€6
§68°¢6
§68°¢€6
§58°¢6
§68°¢6
§68°¢6
SS8'€6
SS8'€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
$68°¢€6
€58°€6
€58°€6
€58°€6
€58°€6
€S8°€6
£58°€6
£68°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6
£58°€6

vain

YoIeasaY SISLISI(] SNONGAYU] pue AS[[Y
"y $95BaSI(] Snono3juy pue A31d[[y
oreasoy sasEasI(] Snonoagu] put A3y
0IBasaY $3sLAsI(] SNONo3ju| pue 3191y
YoIBasay $3seasi(] Snonoajuj pue A319[1y
o1Basay saseasi(] snonoajuy pue K313y
o1easay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K313y
oIeasay saseasi(] snonoajuy pue K313y
0easay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K319y
o1Basay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K319y
oIeasay saseasi(] Snonoaju] pue K313y
[o183say Saseasi(] snonajuy pue A319]y
0IBaSaY SISLAsI(] SNONAJU pue K313y
0IBASaY SISLASI(] SNONAJU pue K313y
[0IBaSAY SISLASI(] SNONIYU] pue ATy
[0IBaSIY SISEASI(T SNONAYU] pue Ay
[0IBaSIY SISEISI(T SNONIJU] pue A1y
[0IBISIY SISLISI(T SNONAJU] pue A1V
O1BSIY SASLASI(] SNONOAJU] pue A1y
0180SY SASLASI(] SNONOAJU] pue A1y
[01B0SY SASLASI(] SNONOAJU] pue A1y
O1BSIY SASLASI(] SNONodJU] pue A1y
0180SY SISLASI(] SNONodJU] pue ASI19[[y
0180SY SISLASI(] SNONodJu] pue ASI1[[y
YoIeasIY SISLISI(] SNONOAYU] pue ASIO[[Y
YoIeOSIY SISLISI(] SNONOAYU] pue ASI[[Y
YoIe0saY SISLISI(] SNONIAYU] pue AS[[Y
YoIeasaY SISLISI(] SNONGAYU] pue AS[[Y
oreasoy sasEasI] snonoagu] put K[y
yo18as0Y $ISEASIC] SNONOAIU] PuE AT10[[Y
[oIB3SIY $ISBASI(] SNONdJUL pue A31d][y
oIeasay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K313y
0Ieasay $aseasi(] snonoaju] pue K313y
o1easay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K313y
YoIBasay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K313y
oIBasay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K319y
oIBasay saseasi(] snonoaju] pue K319y
[o1e3say $aseasi(] snondajuy pue £319]y
SI9PIOSI(] [9130[0INAN] PUE SIIUDIOSOININ Y} UI SWEIFOIJ YIIEASIY [BINWIEIX
S19PIOSI(] [9130[0INAN PUE SIIUDIOSOININ Y} UT SWEIFOIJ YIIEISIY [BINUIEIX
SIOPIOSI(] [EOIFO[OINAN PUB SIOUILISOINAN] AU} Ul SWLISOI] YOIISAY [eINWENX]
SIOPIOSI(] [BOIFO[OINAN PUB SIOUILISOINAN] AU} Ul SWLIS0I] YOILISAY [eINWRIXE]
SIOPIOSI(] [EOISO[OINAN PUB SIOUILISOINAN] AU} Ul SWRIS0IJ YOIy [eINWRIX
SIOPIOSI( [EOIFO[OINAN PUB SIOUILISOINAN] AU} Ul SWRIS0I] YOIy [eINWRHX
SIOPIOSI(] [IISO[0INAN PUE SIIUIIISOININ Y} UI SWRIS0I] [OIBISNY [BINWRNXT
SIOPIOSI(] [OISO[OINAN PUE SIIUIIISOININ Y} UI SWRIS0I] YOILISNY [BINWRNXT
SIOPIOSI(] [OISO[0INAN PUE SIOUIIISOININ Y} UI SWRIS0I] YOIRISNY [BINWERNXT
SIOPIOSI(] [OISO[OININ PUE SIOUIIISOININ Y} UI SWRIS0I] YOIRISNY [BINWRNXT
SIOPIOSI(] [IISO[OINAN PUE SIOUIIISOININ Y} UI SWLIS01] YOIRISNY [BINWENXT
S10pI0SI(] [EAIFO[0INON PUE SOOUDIISOININ Y} UI SWEIFO1] YOIEISOY [EINUWENXT
S10pI0SI(] [2AIF0[0INAN] PUE SOOUSIISOININ Y} Ul SWILIFOL] YOIRISTY [EINWLHXT
SIOPIOSI(] [EOIBO[0INON PUE SOOUSIOSOINON Y} Ul SWEIFOIJ YOILOSIY [EINWEBIXE]
SIOPIOSI(] [EOIBO[0INON PUE SOOUOIOSOININ Y} UI SWEIFOI YOIEos
SIOPIOSI(] [EOIBO0INON PUE SOOUSIOSOINON Y} UI SWEIFOI] YOIEsOY [EINWEBIXE]

yore:

¥ [eINWELXE

weagoad [erapag

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



8¢

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

- 90T 1 0ZLPSODV10Y Ipsuf SULANON-ULOLS 90Tt - 998°€6 yoreasay Suidy
- 9I°LE 97€£600AH10Y 0JU0I0L JO ANSIOAUN  TYT'LE - 998°€6 yoreasay SISy
- 976'T 10-92€T60AH 101 0IU0I0] JO ANSIPAN  9T6°T - 998°€6 yoreasay Suidy
000°011 150°020°1 0£67100V10d QISU] YoIBISY [BIIPIN N UOSIANSEIN PALIIAY 150070 - 998°€6 yoreasay Suidy
- (88€) 90-¥06+70DV 10N T 0321 ueS ‘BruIoIe) JO ANSAIUN  (88€) - 998°€6 [oILISY SUIBY
- 65°S 6LS190DVITY QUIIPIN JO [0049S ANSIOAIUL HOX MON  $6S°S - 998°€6 yoreasay Suidy
- SILIL 0LSLSODV LY QUIIPIN JO [0049S AUSIOAIUL HOX MON  STLTL - 998°€6 yoreasay Sudy
- $58°0€ 6£8T10DV0Ed Kopnyiag ‘erulope) JO AUSIOAUN - SS8°0E - 998°¢6 yoreasay uidy
- PSI°L6 98TTSOOVI0Y Kosiof MON JO KNSIOAIUN WIS YL ‘SOTIMY  $ST1°L6 - 998°€6 YoIeasay Fuldy
- €L5°001 0£6¥1OV10d TNSU] YoIeasay [EDIPIN AYINE UOSIAISEI PAIUIA  €£S°00T - 998°€6 yoreasay uidy
- £P8'SPE 11$SS0OV10d yBmqsnid JO ANSIPAIN PR SHE - 998'€6 yoreasoy Suidy
- 929'sT TE6LFODVI0Y UEBIYIIN JO AUSIOAIUN  979°6T - 998°€6 yoieasay Suidy
- 60€°60T 1€6LS0DV 108 U0z JO ANSIBAIN - 60€°60T - 998°€6 youeasay Suidy
- 0S€°66€ TLS9TOOV10d BUOZHY JO ANSIPAIUN  0SE°66€ - 998°€6 yoreasay Suidy
- $85°08 098ZS0OVITY uojuey3ulg ANNS  $85°08 - 998°€6 yoreasay Suisy
- 919°¢ $T9SS0OV 10U AUSIOAUN JIOX MON 919°S - 998°€6 yoreasay Suidy
- 91TPT S090S0OV10Y 121U uotuId() Y21easY [BUONEN  91TPT - 998°€6 yoreasay Juidy
- 9£6°€5€ 68€LSODV10Y 9[EPIOAR] 1Y QWOH MAIGOH  9€6°ESE - 998°€6 yoreasoy Suidy
- PrYST PEETIOOVFSN Aussoarun Kowy  prp'sT - 998°€6 yoreasay BuBy
- 0ST'SL 1L1970DV 104 Ausioamun 2N 0ST'SL - 998°€6 yoreasoy Suidy
€01°108°1 908°8LS‘6 - - 908°8LS°6 998°€6 yoseasay Suidy
- o6l 6LSPLOAHI0Y PWOUEPO JO ANSIOAIUN 210’61 - $98'€6 o12asy [BINWENXY 1UaWAO[aAA( UPWINY PUE YI[EH IO
- T ST-STEETAH 10dS INAWN Kas1of MaN JO ANsIoAtun 21elg YL ‘s1Biny ¢ - $98°¢€6 [o1easay [eInWenXF Juawdo[aAd( ueWng pue yeay pliyd
- 959°1 1€1680AHITY ANSIOAIUN 9[BX  9SO°T - $98°¢6 [oreasay [eInwenxy Juowdo[Ad(] UBWINE] PUE YI[edH PIIYD
- TSI6EL 60-T0LS90AHITAS youeIg [POIPOIN SEXOL JO ANSIOAUN  TSI'6E] - $98'€6 yo1easay [eInuenxd uawdo[aAd(] UeWnH put YeaH Pl
- 0v6°€E 10-90S880QH 0¥ | UBSIYOIN JO ANSIOAUN  0P6°EE - $98°€6 yo1easay [einuenxd 1uawdo[aAd(] Uewny put YeaH Pl
- 6VLL9 1V10-016880QH1 T 1 AusIoAtun 9SNORIKS  6hL°L9 - $98°€6 oreasay [eanuenxg 1wawdo[dAd(] URWINE] PUT YL PIIYD
- (0s1°9) T8559-6# LDV 61-790TE0AH10dS Ansioatun erquiniod  (0$1°9) - $98°€6 yo1easoy [einuenx uowdo[dAd( uewng put YeaH Pl
- PEIITI Tr9080aH10d Ausioatun vIqunio)  pEIITI - $98°€6 yoeasay [ernuenx 1uowdojdAd( Uewng put YeaH Pl
- 9€5°Ly1 S8ST160AH 108 erqd[opeIIyd JO [PHASOH SUIPIYD  9€5 L1 - $98°€6 Go122sYy [eINUEnX UAWAO[IAI(T UPWNE PuT YEH PO
- 98€°9f 608€80AH 10 QUIIPAN JO IB0I[0D Jolhee  98€°9p - $98°€6 YoIeasay [eanwexg Juowdo[Ad(] URWINE] PUB YIEIH PIIYD)
- 9sH 1% LS1£80AH10d QUIdIPON JO 9391[0D 101KRE 95 1 - $98°€6 oIeasy [eNWENX Juowdo[aAd(] uewmE pur YEdH PIYD
- 0vL'0T IPES60AH10Y QWDIPON JO 939110D 10KRE  OBL 0T - $98°€6 oIeasay [eINWENX Juowdo[aAa( uewmK pur YEdH Pl
260°166 1L6°LYL'8 - - 1L6°LYL'8 $98°€6 yo1vasay [ernwenxy Juowdo[aAd(] ueWnY pue yEdH Py
- 901°1S P9T6TINDI10Y QUIAI] “BIUIOJI[R) JO ANSIOAIUN  90‘[S - 658°€6 Sururel ], 4oIeasay PUE YIILASIY [EOIPAIOIg
- 1€L°LE 0LSOTINDI10Y Qmusu] uLNY-UROlS  [€L°LE - 658°€6 Suturel ], YoIe3SAY PUE YIIBASIY [BOIPALIOlg
- 996°00€ OLPTSOND10Y Amnsu] BUHANIY-UBOIS  996°00€ - 658'€6 Sururei [, yo1easay pue YoIvasay [earpawiorg]
- 60LPE 12-0SS9SOND 10d § Ausioalun AEA  60L'PE - 658'€6 Buturel ], Y2150y PUE YOIEISIY [EIPAOLY
- IsLeg $S99TTIND 10U Ausioatun o[eA  [SL'€E - 658°€6 Suturel ], oIB3SAY PUE Y2IBASIY [BIIPALIOlg
- SSTIE SO-118801INE10US SINOT 1S U[ ANSIOAIUN UOISUIYSEA,  GST'IE - 658°€6 Suturel ], YoIe3saYy PUE Y2IBasay [BIIpawioly
- 9L6T1 #99P90ND 10 eI JO ANSIPAIN  9L6°TI - 658°€6 Buturel |, 21850y PUE YOIEISIY [EAIPIOLE
- S6LTIT 91-06Z6SOND 10U S eI JO ANSIOAIUN - S6LTTT - 658°€6 Butuel ], 21050y PUE YoIBasay [EAIPaIOLY
- 1L9°8y YE60E IND10Y [H [odeyD eurjore) yHoN JO ANSIAIN  1L9°8H - 658°€6 Sutute1 | YIESOY PUE Y2IEASY [EDIPAWIOLE]
- 17L°81 €0-01EPTINDI0YUS BYSEIGON JO ANSIOAUN (L8] - 658°€6 Sutute1| YoIEASOY PUE Y2IEISAY [EQIPIWIOLE
- 158681 IVI0-€1 191 INDI0Y1 BUOZLIY JO ANSIOAUN  [S8°681 - 658°€6 SututesL YoIEASIY PUE YOIEISAY [EDIPIWIOLE
- 6tp'81 1V10-9€Z91 INDHI UL SONAUATENIL  6¥h'81 - 658°€6 Sutute1L (0IE9SOY PUE YOIEISY [EDIPIWIOLE
- £Th'8T £0-€0LITINDI0YUS UOIEPUNO, 2IBIsAY [EDIPIN BWOYEPIO  £T'8T - 658°€6 Surure1L (oIEasIY PUE YOIEISIY [EDIpIWOLE
- 6L0°8L1 SLSLTINDI0Y Ansioatun supido suqor  6L0°8L1 - 658°€6 Burute1 L (oIEISIY PUE YOIEISIY [EDIpIWIOLE
96°8€S 0LV PLTTY - - OLYPLTTY 658°€6 FUIIRIL YOIROSOY PUT YOIEOSIY [EIIPOWOLE
- P6T Y1 90STHIIVITE BILIOJ[ED JO ANSIOAIN  $6TF1 - $$8°€6 YOIeISOY SASEISI( SNONIRYU] put AFI0[1y
1dpay-qng saanyy a Jaquiny Sudyyuapy Apug ydnoyr-ssed ysnoay waua uoyEIRHUIPL vado wier3014 [619pg
0} passeq w0, Spuy ySnoayp-ssed -sseq paesy
[euonIppy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



L6§1T

126'901

88L°€8S

88L°€8S

126901

126°901

8¥0't1
T6r'LT
S96°LLT
£8T79T

919°01

T10'9C

919°01

T10°9¢C

911°919°0L

6LT6YITITS

SLY16T°1

¥SL°981°T

SLY16T°1

1S9°L1
0TS'SLT
8SL'Y
819°8L8°1
€TY'SL
$80°S1
00L91

IL8VTLLE

155°9¥8°08T

I THY'SE

YTLOSEILT

TI°LS
T€0°TT
£17°90€

€99°L11T

L9E9SL

LSL'LT
P8T'LS
1434
796°0S
STL'SYL
TSE9L
9T
981°LT
660°T
£€9°IpS
9K 1Y
(L98°TY)
(©)
SPSI8E
899°L1
168vt
LESHL

S

2.

eoL

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

6L898

6SEL8

S18s8

TEOLN-D-EILALA ® ¥6L0E0D
€6L0€0D

D€LI-M

r000VO81VV00TL
€0000-91-VI-VVO-dIV
1S000-€1-V-VVO-dIV

0L000D81VV00TL
$91-85T910
€L960T

8€1010M.LEYA
LEE600MLSTY
LEE600MLSTY
LEC600M.LEYA

C0-S6ETIONTITYIT
THETIOWTYON
LO9TIONTION
996TIONTIOY

€9€810ATI0Y
ST-LSO80AHT 01N
£9€8T0AHI0Y

8ELSODVERT

£16850DVISH

68€LSODVIOY
Jaquiny Surkynuapy
Snug ySnoay-sseq

SOPIYDA 1010 JO 1o SAN

[1e1], KeAreog soyB] 18910

[1e1], Keareog soye] 18910
SHOA MaN JO Ansioatun K1)
S0 A MaN JO Ausioatun K1)

A1S210 Uy 20UAIOG [BIUSWIUOIAUL JO 239[[0D ANNS

Ansioarun synp
ANSIOAIUN J)eIS SESURY]
ANSIOAIUN RIS SESURY]

“ou[ “oyyNSu] SUIUTRI], %9 YOILISNY [S[
SIAR( BILIOJI[RD) JO ANSIOATUN
Arstoatun anping

a8a[j0D) [eOIPa uBnSLIYY) orefuewI|y
KyisIoAIUN J[IqIapUBA

12)UD)) [EOIPIJN ANSIOAIUN I[IGIPUBA

101U3)) [BIIPIIA] ANSIOATU() J[IGIOPUBA

SINOT 1S U ANSIAIUN UOISUIYSEA
y3ingsnid JO Ansioarun
BIURA[ASUUSJ JO ANSIOAIUN
ANSIOAIUN pIojuR)S

1215900 JO ANSIOATUN
Kyszoatun) sunjdo sutor
ANSIOALUL) UOISOE

“ou[ ‘uonduni-|
107U [EOIPOI AVSIOATU[] Y10 & MON.
PoBY OY L 10, QWO MIIGOF
Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

6S

L6S°1T

88L°€8S

88L°€8S

8Y0'1
Tov'LT
S96°LLT
€8T79T

21092

T10°9¢T

IYTEpt' 1L

8€0°90L 6V

9€1°80€

819°8L8°T

1S9°L1
0T§*SLT
8SLY
€TY'SL
¥80°S1
00L91

819°8L8°T
- 0L000D81VV00TL
- +91-852910

- €L960T

A

L61°090°6YCT

YOS H91°6T

LSL'LT
P8T'LS
(34

79608

TSE9L
9T
981°LT
660°T
9K 1Y
(L98°1¥)
()
899°L1
1687
LESHL

ydnoayy,
-sseq

0TTTO1THT

STL'SYL

£€9°1S

SPSISEY

g uoyEIyHUIP]
preay
[euonippy

009°0T

S0T°0T
S0T°0T
§0T°0T
S0T°0T

11961

10086
10086
10086
10086
ad'86
ad'86
4’86

686'€6
686°€6
686°€6
686°€6
686°€6
6L8°€6
6L8°€6
6L8°€6
6L8°€6
6L8°€6
L98°€6
L98°€6
L98°€6
L98°€6
998°€6
998°€6
998°€6

vain

Apyes AemyS1y Ajunwwo)) pue sjelg
uonepiodsued |, jo yusunaedaq

asnp) Kayes Aemysrg

B30, 19)SN[D UONdNISU0) pue Furuueld Kemysig
[e101gns uoneliodsuel | Jo Juswiedaq
uoyonnsuoy) pue Suruuvyg Kemysiy
uononnsuoy) pue Suruue[y KemysSi
uononnsuo) pue Suruue[y KemysSiy
uononnsuo) pue Suruue[y Kemysiy
uoneprodsue. |, jo yudunredaq

J13)sn[) uondnKsuo)) pue Suruuelg Kemysig

[€301, 19)SN[D JIPIIAA PUE USL]

UONEINDH JOJUNE] DISEE] PUE UONBIOISIY AJIP[IM

aoLidpuy oY) Jo Judunaeda

A9)SN[D JUPIIAL PUE USIY

apsn[) JuawdopPAd(Q P YIIBISIY [E)0],

&30 yudwdoaAd(] [euoneuId)u] 10y AUy

SEOSIOAQ) SWEIF0IJ 10J 20URISISSY USI2104 AIVSN

SBASIOAQ sweiS01q 10§ doursIssy USaI0 AIVSN

$BASIOAQ sweiS01q 10§ doursISSy USII0 AIVSN

SBASIOAQ SriS01q 10§ dourSISSY USIDI0] AIVSN

1O ‘quawdo[osd( [euoneuINu] 10j LouaSy

1O quawdo[pad( [euoneuINu] 10j LouaSy

1y uawdo[aAd( [puonewINU] 10§ Kouddy

Juawdo[aAd( [euonewIdU] 10§ AHUITY

[£10 1, S9IAIIS UBWINY puE YIEdy Jo yuowntedaq
[€101gNS UI[B3H JO SAIMMISU] [eUOeN

Sulurel ], 4oIeasay pue YoIeasay [BUONBUIdU]

Sulurel ], 4oIeasay puE YoIeasay [BUONBUIU]

BuIuIel] YoIeasay PUE (OIEASIY [BUOHEWIAU]

BuIuIRI] YOIedsaYy PUE (OIEISIY [BUOHEWIANU]

BUIUIRI] YOXEOSOY PUE (OIEISIY [BUOHEWIANU]

Q0UBISISSY AIRIQIT [BOIPIN

QouRISISSY AIRIqIT [BOIPIN

Q0URISISSY AIRIQIT [BOIPI

QourISISSY A1RIqIT [BOIPIN

20URISISSY AIRIQIT [BOIPIIA

YOIBASIY UOISIA

YOIBASIY UOISIA

YOIBASIY UOISIA

YOIBISIY UOISIA

oreosoy SuiBy

Yoreasoy Suidy

yoreasoy Suidy

weagoad [erapag

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



09

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

8TTYY $6T9T1 95T 8ELETI
- 956°C LS9LT-€000L-810T 1IPISA140D ANNS — 95§°T - LITO1 weiSoxq sjuern) a3ud][ey) uonmnsuy - toneonpy 1YSH
8TTHY 8€L°ETI - - 8EL°ETI L1T01 wesSol sjueln AFUD[[EYD uoNMSU] - UONEINPH IYSIH
YLy 9€€° 17T 9€€° 17T -
- LTESI S169T-0798€-L10T ISNLL PUBULIE] UBDLOWY ~ /TEQ] - SITOT UOREINPH PUE YOIEISY AINOLBY d[qeuieisng
- $08°8T STHST-0v98€-810T JUOULDA JO ANSIOAIUN - $08°ST - SITOT UOREINPH PUE YOIEISIY AINOLBY d[qeuivisng
- LTH9T S169T-0¥98€-L10T JUOULDA JO ANSIOAUN  LTH9T - S1T01 UONEONPY PUE YDIEISIY AIM[NOLBY d[qeurpIsng
yeL'y TST'L8 08€ST-0v98€-910T JUOULA JO AUSIATUN - TST'LY - S1Z01 UONEONPY PUE YIIEISIY AIM[NOLBY d[quurpisng
- 90L°6S LLLET-0¥98€-ST0T JuoULdA JO ANSIOAUN  90L 6S - SIZ01 UONEINPH PUE YOIEISOY AIMNOLBY d[qeureIsng
- 026 19122-0v98€-F10T JuouLdA JO ANSIAN 076 - SITOT UONEINPY PUE YOIEISOY AIMNOLBY d[qeureIsng
- L81°EL 89€PT-0LLS-S10T Ayspoatun umqny - [81°€L - 00201 SIUBID YoI8dsaY [B102dS “YOIeasay [BIMNOLBY 10§ SJueID)
- 000°L1 £€900-8-0009-8S BPLOLI JO AUSIAIUN - 000°LI - 0ST01 SUOBIOQE[[0)) PUE SUWAIBY
2Ane12d00)) ‘YoIaSAY JIWOUOIT [BINY PUE [EIMNILITY
- 181°61 9E0DXXXX00108 TNV amnsuy AU[IQEIA WIB HOX MON 8161 - 0L1°01 11 wie - weadoid yuein yoorg doi) Ayeioadg
- 1929 - - 1979 9101 Juowdo[aAd(] 13BNl QAIBUIANY PUE SIOULIE] J[SI[OYA\
TI9't8 68196 - - 6£8°196 €91°01 UOHOWOI PUE UOHIRI0IJ 1B
- LTSI 61€°091 (LLs'L)
- T9L°68T VO89TI-9€96-€1 SN % BV JO 1420 SAN  T9L°6ST - ST001 21D [BUIUY PUE ‘[0NU0D) 152d ‘SLISI(] [BWIUY PUE e[
- LSS J[qe[IRAY 10N sy % 8V JO 1dod SAN LSS - $70°01 Q1)) [PWIUY PUB ‘[0U0D) 1594 ‘ASLISI(] [BWIUY PUB JuR|]
- (LLs'e) - - (LLs'L) ST0°01 9IED) [EWIUY PUE [ONU0D) 1594 “OSEASI [BWIUY PUE Jue|d
IMMOLISY Jo yusunaedaq
SpIeMy PO
- [ [ - 230, 1)SN[D PIEdIPIN
- [ 6561700 SIIAIDS AJHUE] PUY UIP[IYD JO PWIO SAN bt - 8LLE6 wWeIS01 AULISISSY [LIPIN
SIDIAIDS UBWINY puUE [P[EIH Jo yuswaedoq
493SNL) PIEAPIN
- LST LST - [e30, 103801 4ADD
- LST 656LT0D SIOIAIDG AJIUE,] PUY UAIPIIYD) JO WO SAN  LST - SLS'E6 JueID ooig Judwdoead( pue a1e) pliyd
SIIIAIIS UBWINY puk ey Jo Judwyredoq
13801 4ADD
- 695 0€L - 69S°0€L 1B10 . 19380 OIUL
- 69S°0€L - 695°0€L [e10], uoyeEanpy yo yuounaedoq
- €STELT - - €STELT LITY8 JUSWAAJIYIY 1BAME[EIRE-1S0d HENOIN OTYL
- 9IE°LSS - - 9IE'LSS LYO'PS punog premdn ORIL
uonednpy jo yusunredaq
a)sn1) ORIL
- 89°79¢ 891°79¢ - [EJOL, 1)SN[D Pun SUIA[0AY LIS IAEAL UL
- 89°79¢ 00-10-9%26-LD 0d10)) SINIIOB] [BIUDWUONAUZ LIS JIOA MON YL 895 CIE - 85199 SPUN{ SUIAJOAIY IS IAEA UEI]D) 10F Sjuesn) uonezieyde))
£2uasy uondd)0ad [EIuGWIUOIAUY
J19)SN[D pun | SUIA[0AIY 3)e)S JI)BAN UBI[D
- L6S°TT L6S°TT - [er0, 12ysn) A)ages Aemysig
1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0 passeq oL fnug ySnoayp-sseq ssed paeay

[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



096°S1

0T6'8L6

096°S1

6L0°1
107'8y
12h'86T
SSP168
$95°6€

(2K
LL9'16
Ts'66
€8T°L6S
(£L6°16)

668°L6L

TIYI90°LL

£€9°0L

8I1L9¥T
68L°8€
98°r1
LL6TE
919°95€

690°81

LLE'S
696

SYO'PS
668°500°C

808°8LI

TI9'LSHO1

808°SLI

£87°6
T90°L
L90°1¥1°01

686°L

S6S°1SE

ISL7ISHT

S6S IS¢

SET'S
CiACiza

859°681

881°S¢E

S6L'SS

€98°€€l

S66°6T1

118°LT

€95°0S 1

118°LT

T59'8S
116’16

666°LTE

0} passeq

eoL

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

6LO0LITIVOSIVN
€SE0LIPAVOSIVN
6900L1PAVOYIVN

0€9¥8

+0008000dS91VN

SLIOVOT
8€ST000001

88S8C-LTOOL-810T
STTKT-00T6¥-S10T

L188T-HTO0L-810T

§TSTT-9000L-+10T

TOLST-0TO0L-910T

TE6ST-LO0LI-L10T

Jaquiny Surkynuapy
fmug ySnoay 1 -sseq

1ddississin JO Ans1aatun)

yooig Auoig ANNS

yooig Auoig ‘@Innsuf JuelD) BOS 10X MIN
yooxg Auoig ‘@imnsuf ULl BOS 10X MIN

080100 uApjo0Ig]

SIDIEN % BV JO 1dod SAN
SIDIEN % BV JO 1dod SAN

areme[d( JO ANSIOATUN
areme[a( JO ANSIOATUN

Ays10Atun) 918)S UBSIYOIA

JUOWLID A JO ANSIdAIUN)

SHO A MAN JO UONEIDO0SSY Sutuief o1ueSiQ 1Seay1oN

AYsI9ATUN) 91R)S SeSURY]

Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

19

95€°66 $95°6€
6L0°1 -
107'8y -
12h'86T -
SSP168 -
- 795°6€
(a4 -
- LLY'16 ANYO0D/000°1010-VdI-61Ad-0600
- 566 000°€000-VdI-81Ad4-6600
- €8T°L6S T€00-VdI-81A4-0600
- (€L6°16) 9100-VdI-91A4-0600
$98°559 8PS S0r 91
- SIL'9VT
- 68L°8€
- 9871
- LL6TE
- 919°95€
69081 -
LLER -
769°6 -
- SHOS
- 668°500°T
SpS91 L90°THH 01
€876 -
90°L -
- L90°THY 01
686°L -
SETS bSO
SETS -
- IS IV
S6L'SS €98°EEl
S6L'SS -
- £98°€€1
- S66°6T1
T9°8S 116°T6
T59'8S -
- 116°16
- 666LTE
ysnoayy waa uonEIyHUIP]
ssed paesy
[euomIppy

LIY'TI
LIY'IL
JALAN
JALAN
JALAN

800711
vONTT
€0NIt
Nt
[(Us N

0S6°01
206°01
096°01
£€09°01
8SH°01

LS ol
s ol

SIS0l
P1S°01

00S°01
00S°01
00S°01

9€€°01

62¢°01
62¢°01

8TE01

8TE01

1eot

01€°01
01€°01

F0€°01

vain

poddng juein eag
poddng juein eag
poddng juein eag
poddng juein eag
1oddng juein eag

SPIRMY UONRONDT PAYRY-UOISSIN VVON
1Y) ‘neaIng SNSuUI)) ‘SN
1Y) ‘neaIng SNSUI)) ‘SN
1Y) ‘neAIng SNSUI)) ‘SN
YO ‘neaIng SNSU) SN

d1awwo) jo yudunedaq

130, damymaLidy jo yusunaedaq

suoday sonsneg (e nousy

UONBAIISUO)) JAJEAN PUE [10§

Q0uBSISSY [eI) oLy [Bo1UYd3 ],

weiSoid syjrey Suidiowyg

saje)g pajosdie ] ut uoneonpy dueisuy doi)

(ANNA) weidod uontnN 19BN SISULR] DA
(dNIAA) wesSo1d uonLnN 1R SISULE] DIA

5109[014 puny Snd0 [EUOHEN PUE JOY UOISUIIXH SIOIMOSIY [qeMauay
weSo1d UONEINPF UOHLINN pue pooq papuedxsy

291A198 uoIsUAIX dAnEIad00))
991A198 uoIsUAIXG dAnEIad00))
991A195 UOISURIXG 2ANEId00))

WeiB014 JuBID) SIS ATEUHOP A

weidord syuein) aannadwo)) juswaSeueyy 1594 pue uonodjoid doiy
weiSoig syuein) aannadwo)) juswafeue|y 1594 pue uonodjold doi)

weidoid syuein aannadwo)) aouelsissy
[BOIUYI3 ] puUE ‘Yorann() ‘uoisualxy ‘uoneonpy ‘Surures] K1ajes poo [euoneN
werdoiq syuein 2AnHadwo)) dURISISSY
[BOIUYIA ], pUB ‘YoraNNQ ‘UOISUAIXY ‘uoneonpy ‘Sururel] K19Jes pooq [BUOHEN

weiSo1 yuawdoAd(] Joyoury pue oL SuruuiSog

([AAV) PANENIU] YOIESSIY POO] PUE dIMNILBY
(FAV) 2AIRNIU] YOIEaSY POO,] PUE dIMNIUSY

[eIMNOLSY AILINOAS PUBOWOH

weagoad [erapag

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



0LSTST

651°061

018°€¢

909°T
T66°ELT
1SL°6

L95°9S

618

¥0S TSt

618

0181+
0v$'s9
sev'ey
LI18°1
187
19%°56

$06°6¢

£PT8TT

1TT8Te
[«4

62081

WIL

62081

908°8
959°T9

68656

STL'LY
€8L° 1Y
8LY'9

S60°L6

200°0%
£60°TY
000°ST

096°S1

L8T°00LT

66€°Y
91801
6LE'S

0} passeq

eoL

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

100869€8

00610900-1D

(2483
81-19-T$86081

LTO1-VO-81-ADVIH-S
0201-VO-LI-ADVIH-S

€000-Xd-NI-810T
9100-X4-NI-L10T

10000dV91D
€4T00dVLId
EPOTTNY

TSI0TEYIVOLIVN

S1S00000ND
Jaquiny Surkynuapy
fmug ySnoay 1 -sseq

UONEPUNO UOISUAIXT

©10SOUUIJA] JO AJISIOATUN Y} JO SUDSY

SHOA MON STIUBWNE]

uonepuno,f suy dNuepy pra

UONEINPH [BUOHRUINU] JO AMNSU]
UONBONPY [BUOHBUIANU] JO AMISU]

[19UN0)) H-f [BUONEN.
[19UN0)) H-f [EUONEN.

uStedwey)-vueqIn 1V Soul[[ JO AsioAun
JOLISI UONBAIISUOD) 1Je A\ PUY [10S A1Uno) 03amsQ
A1S0I0,{ PUY 20USIOS [RIUSWIUONAUY JO 982110 ANNS

uStedwey)-vueqIn 1V Soul([ JO AsioAun

Lnuy ysnoayy-sseg

a8o]j0)) uApjooig

9

- 0Ls'TST

9179 €PLE81

018'€ -

909 -

- T66'€L1

- 1SL'6

- 19595

8619 90€9rY

- 018°THC

- 0v5°s9

- se6v'sy

LI8'1 -

186 -

- 19756

- 70665

€7T8CT -

1208C -

44 -

OrIL -

908'8 -

95979 -

636'S6 -

STL'LY -

8L -

8LY'9 -

- S60°L6

- 200°0%

- £60°Th

- 000°1

$69°656 6 0vL

- 6651

918°01 -

6LE'S -
g

ydnoayy,
ssed

1000-D-L1-9L-OH-DIN

9v00d61THTI9E

1100-VI-91-440-VSAL

EPOTINY

£000-0-61-000VdI
6000-0-81-000V dI
$000-0-81-000V dI

uoyEIyHUIP]
preay
[euonippy

10°LL

91L'99

69%°99
95¥°99
LEV99

10N0°+9

691°Sy
€91°St
6v1Sy
6T1°SY
STost
10€°Sy

1n°1e

010°61
010°61

9TL 91
9TL 91

S08°ST
99°61
100°61

£€0NnTl
wonel
(Ui

8LY'T1
wrll
6111

vain

1Y) ‘uoIssIwo)) A101e[nSay IJeajonnN

uorssiumo)) A10)en3ay JeappnN

1830, £2Ud3Y U01}39)0.{ [EIUIWUOIAUT

SAIPMS puE ‘suonensuowd( ‘Sururer],

‘gorannQ ‘uoneonpg d1qng ‘Fuiojuoly ‘yuawdo[aad( ‘YoIeasaY
werSo1g saye 1ea1n

werSorg Arensg [euoneN

wesSo1g punog puelsy Suo]

K2u3Sy U01)II)01J [BIUIWUOIIAUT]

19Y)Q ‘SHRJJY SURIDRA JO juauniedoq

SATEJJY SUBIAIA Jo yudunaedaq

1810, )TV 3Y) 10J JUIWAMOPUT [BUOHEN

sapIuRwWNY [2131 JO A0LJO SINIUBWNY ) JO UOHOWOI

d a 1SS9JOIJ SONT 1 9y} Jo uonowolg

$SO00Y/ PUE UONBAIISI JO UOISIAI(T SSNIUBWINE] Y} JO UOHIOWOIJ
diysiounied 21e)S/[eIOPa] SINIUBWNY Y} JO UOHOWOI]
SJuowISY diysioulred siTy ) JO UOHOWoI]

©OLIDWIY 10J SWINASNIA

$)IY A1) 10J JUIWAMOPUT [BUOHEN

1O “Amseai], ay Jo yuauntedaq

Aamseax, ay) jo yudunredaq

e10L 9e3S Jo yuaunaedaq

wesSorg diysmoljo Aoryduny 1 119qn - SWeI01q SFULYING SNWAPEIY
wesSorg diysmoljo Aoryduny 1 19qn - SWeI01d SFULYIXG SNWAPEIY
a)e)g Jo yuaunredaq

[0, dnsnr jo yusuniedaq

wieiBo1g SULIOJUSIN d[IUdAN[

weiBo1g SuLIOJUSIN d[IudAN[

dansnr jo yusunaedaq

&30, Joridjuy 3ty o yudunedaqq

SOINNSUT YOTEISAY SIOINOSNY IIJEA JJBIS O} SOUBISISSY

UONERIOISIY SNBT JBAID)

12y1Q “Toudu] Ay Jo Juduntedaq

JoLpuy 2y Jo yudunaedaq

[€)0, 3sudja( Jo yuaunredaq

1YIQ “dSUA( JO JdumIedoq

QI “aSUdFA( JO JudumIedoq

1YIQ “aSUA( JO JdumIedoq

asuaja( o yuaunaedaq

[€)0 L, dI9wwo)) jo yusunaedaq

weISo1g ueadQ [BISLO)) YOIBISAY UBIO() [BISLO)) PAIosuods 10] 101ua))
saimpsu] 2A1RIdo0) (VYON) UOHEHSIUIWPY dLaydsouny pue o1uedadQ [euoneN
SPIEMY UOHRISIUNUPY JUSWISRURIA SUOZ [R)SEOD)

weagoad [erapag

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x

SPIEMY [BIIPI] JO SAIMIpuddX7 Jo 3[NpPayYdS

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



€9

‘SpIemMY [eIdPa, JO saamirpuadxy Jo onpayos ayp Jo ued [eidajur ue are sojou Suruedwodoe Ay,

€69°676'IL $  L96'L86'STL S 90L'¥00°6L S 197°€86'619 $ S2UNIPUIXT PIEMY [210PI] [EIO,
0v0'961°T LOT'SIL'LT 667959 808°L61°1T SPABMY 12O [8)0L,
- 00S°LET - - 00S°LET L5998 10N°S6 10YI0 WAPISAI L} JO RILJO SANNIXY
JUAPISAIJ ) JO RYJO FANNIXT
- 05661 - - 05661 £10'v6 BOLIDUWIY 0] JIAIIG UL SI9ANUAJOA
IAIIG AIUNWwWo) pue [euoney Joy uoneiodio)
160°6 8€0°890°t IP1°SSH'T L68TIOT [BI0L, SIIAIIS UBWINY pue eIy Jo yuduiedaq
66L°T T6TIST 2000S¥E-DDLETEED-TOHOA WEIH JO 1A SAN  T6T1ST - 66°€6 SQIBIS AU} 03 JUBLD NIO[ SIIAIS YI[EIH PIIYD PUB [BUINEN
- 968°LYE LLLLTOO $92IAIRS A[Iwe ] Uy UaIPIY) JO 29JO SAN - 968°LYE - 659°¢6 douesissy uondopy
- 869°TH 869°TH -
- LS1 6S6LT00 SROIAIDG AJIE] Uy UIPIIYD) JO PYJO SAN  LST - 869°€6 H-AI9PLL 218D 191504
- 17$°TH LLLLTOD SOOIAIDG AJIUE] PUY UIPIYD JO PYIO SAN  [#S°TH - 859°¢6 H-AT9DLL 218D 19150,
- $SL9ST Jqe[IeAY JON. [1ouno)) Sutuuely sanijiqesi( [eiuawdoPAdq SAN ~ SSL9ST - 0€9°€6 sjuein) £oeooApy pue uoddng oiseg sanifiqesi( [eiuawdofaaq
- LEIELT 99000HV 1dST Ul YoIvasay WIBIH  LEY'ELT - 005°€6 wieiBold pun ouelsissy Kouruarg
- €20°611°T 8€9°8 SSEOIT°T
- 8E98 00-20-1000aVdA06 wesSoxg uonezin() yoreasay Suiary uapuadapul “SE9Y - £€1'E6 YoIBISIY UOHEI[IGEYSY pue
‘Buiar yuapuadapuy ‘Ajiqesi uo amusu| [eUoneN OV
- S8E0IT°L - - S8E0II°T £er'e6 [oIeasay uone[iqeydy pue
‘Burar yuapuadapuy ‘Ajjiqesiq uo Amusu [euoneN OV
- T£9'88C Z0SOETHO00MD0SANG ouf Yoreasay WedH  1£9'88C - £2£°€6 (O77) saseasiq snonoagu 10§ Aioede)) Axojeioqer pue A3ojoruapids
- L68°€6E - - L68'€6€E EVT'E6 20UBDYIUBIS [BUONEN PUE [BUOIZRY JO
$109[014 SIIIAIIS YIESH [BIUSI PUE ISNQY 0UBISANS
sy SE6°S8E 1000S¥E-DOLETEED-TOHOA WIEaH JO 1400 SAN  S€6°68¢ - SET'E6 wei3o1d (FVYS dIEIS A OPILL) UONEINPH SOUBPIOAY JSIY [ENXS LIS A OPLL
- SE0°6TE ozr'oce S19°801
- L9T°LE 08800T.L s1oyEN %9 8V JO 142 SAN ~L9T°LE - €01°€6 018283y UOHENSIUIWPY Fni] Pue poog
- w0L6r 18800T.L s %9 3 JO 1dod SAN  TOL6Y - €01°€6 218959y UONBASIUILPY Fni] PUE OO
- S6€T LL80OOTL SIOMEN % BV JO 1A SAN - S6€°T - £01°€6 218359y UOHEASIUIWPY Fni(] Pue poo
- 8€6°6Y 9L800TL SIEN %9 Y JO 1420 SAN  8€6°61 - €01°€6 2189593 UOHENSIUIPY Fni] PUE pooy
- ¥10°6€ 70-9065004481NS SIEN % 8V JO 1A SAN - #10°6€ - €01°€6 218359y UOBBASIUIPY Fni(] PUE OO
- (6TL'L) SL800TL SIEN % BV JO 1d2d SAN (62L°L) - £€01°€6 oIBasaY UONEASIUIIPY Bri] Pue oo
- £€6°6 VD-$¥T0-9€T8-91 SIEN % BV JO 1A SAN  £€6°61 - €01°€6 [OIEISOY UONENSIUIPY SN U oo
- S19°801 - - $19°801 £01°¢€6 YOIEaSY UOHENSIUILPY BN Put pooy
or1°T 6€T6LY 0000S¥E-DDLETEED-TOHOA WIEdH JO WA SAN  6€T°6LY - T60°€6 wieiBoid uoneonpg ANIqisuodsay [euosIdg (VIV) 10V 218D d]qepioyy
SIAIS uBWINY pue ey jo Judunsedaq
- 768°6S $1-LLTO0T-INY SUBDLIO) MON JO ANSIOAUN  768°6S - £00'68 SIUBID) SPI092Y PUE SUONEDNQN [EOLIOISIH [EUONEN
UONESIUIWPY SPI0INY PUE SIAIYITY [EUONEN
WTHSE 6V8°L6TE €19°T66°1 9€TS0E°T 12301, uoyeanpy jo yusuaedaq
- SLT9 07998 JOLSI( [00YDS [BNUD)) INOJUON-BSSIPO  GLT°9 - L8TS s1oua) Juried | Arunwwo)) Amua)) 11 4-K1uam [
- 08L°vEr 90008 THYOTH diys1opear] [euonEONpy 104 ANUSU]  08L'bEY - POT P8 SI9JUS)) 0UEISISSY [€IIUYOI [, SUIUIEL], UONENIqRYY
- SOL‘T99 SOL‘T99 -
- 0z 656L20D SOIAIOG AJIWE,] PUY USIPIIYD JO IO SAN 0T - 9718 TS 0} SUBID) UONETHIGRYIY [PUONEIOA SIIIAIIS UONEII[IGRYIY
- 110°19 alqe[reAy 10N uoneonpg 30 142 SAN  110°19 - 921t SOIRIS O} SULID) UOLEN]IGEYIY [EUONEIOA SIDIAIDS UONEN[IQRYY
- 816109 010-810 uoneonpg JO 1A SAN  8+6°109 - 9718 SAIEIS 0] SUBID) UONEH[IGRYIY [PUONEIOA SIIIAIDS UONEII[IqRYIY
- L) L1289 uoneanps 0 149 SAN (4£7) - 9TI't8 SOVEIS O} SULID) UOLEN]IGRYIY [EUONEIOA SIDIAIIS UONEN[IQRYY
S05°8S [ - - 59T 1208 proiqy spoafoig dnoin - sweiSoid SeIsINQ
LELS6T PRETET] - - PRETETT S10H8 wesSo1g digsmol[oy sAIpMIS BaIy pue a8enduer| uiolog pue weidoig
SOIPNIG [BUOHEWIANU PUE 9Fen5ue uSIa10,] 10 SAIPNIS BAIY pue
fenfue- uS010,] 10§ WEIFOI] SIS, A0S [BUOHEN
- 16t°1LS 100-610 uoneonpy JO 1doQ SAN  16t°1LS - 100-610 wn'ys 1241 ‘uoneanpy Jo aunedag
- T9€°LIE LY0-S10 uoneonpg JO 140 SAN  T9€°LI€E - L¥0-S10 10nv8 1O ‘uoeanpy Jo yuowedac
uoneanpy o yuownredaq
- 98L°SE PSE81000S-9d [OUYRL JO mmsuf N 98L°SE - 6¥0'18 weIB0IJ UBISISSY [RIOUBUL] S0USIOS JO IO
AS1oug yo yuowpaedaq
- 0LSTST - 0LSTST [230 L, uoIsSTWIo)) A10)en3ay IedPNN
1day-qng sanyy| q Jaquiny Suidjnuapy Kpuy ydnoayp-sseq ysnoayy, P uonEIyHUIPY Vaio weadoad [e1apay
0} passeq e0L fmug ySnoay 1 -sseq sseq presy

[euonippy

610T ‘0€ dunp papug 1ed3 x
SPIBMY [P JO S2IamIpuddxy JO [npayds

AJISIIATU() [[PUI0))



Cornell University

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
June 30, 2019

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant, contract, and
cooperative agreement activity of Cornell University (the “University”) and is presented on the accrual basis
of accounting. Negative amounts represent current year adjustments of amounts reported in prior years.
CFDA and pass-through entity numbers are included when available. The information in the schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the consolidated financial statements.

2. Facilities and Administrative Costs

The University applies its predetermined approved facilities and administrative rate (“F&A”) when charging
indirect costs to federal awards rather than the 10% de minimis cost rate as described in Section 200.414 of
the Uniform Guidance.

Ithaca Campus: F&A cost rates for the Ithaca campus have been finalized through fiscal year 2021 as
predetermined rates pursuant to the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) rate agreement dated
June 26, 2018. Provisional rates have been established for fiscal year 2022 and beyond.

Weill Cornell Medicine: F&A cost rates for Weill Cornell Medicine (WCM) have been finalized through
fiscal year 2020 as predetermined rates pursuant to the DHHS rate agreement dated July 5, 2018. Provisional
rates have been established for fiscal year 2021 and beyond.

3. Student Loan Programs

The federal student loan programs are administered directly by the University and balances and transactions
relating to these programs are included in the University’s consolidated financial statements. Included within
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are loan beginning balances, new loans and administrative
cost allowance from the Perkins Loan Program and Health Professions Student Loans. Included below are
the loan balances for the year ended June 30, 2019.

CFDA Amount
Number Outstanding
Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 $ 27,099,545
Health Professions Student Loan Program, including
Primary Care Loans and Loans for Disadvantaged Students 93.342 4,186,412
Grand Total $ 31,285,957
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To The Board of Trustees
of Cornell University

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Cornell
University (the “University”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of

June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities and of cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 17, 2019, which included an emphasis of matter paragraph related to the University changing the
manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its consolidated financial statements
as a not-for-profit entity in 2019, as discussed in Note 1.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s internal
control over financial reporting (“internal control™) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinionon the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1200 Bausch & Lomb Place, Rochester, NY 14604-2705
T: (5685) 232 4000, F: (585) 454 6594, www.pwc.com/us
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

DreusniihepadCappra E

Rochester, New York
October 17, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a
Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance

To The Board of Trustees
of Cornell University

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cornell University’s (the “University’s”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the University’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. The University’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the University’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
University's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1200 Bausch & Lomb Place, Rochester, NY 14604-2705
T: (5685) 232 4000, F: (585) 454 6594, www.pwc.com/us
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

DrieusniihesadCappra E

Rochester, New York
February 11, 2020

68



Cornell University
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

e  Material weakness(es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

e Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
e  Material weakness(es) identified?

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major

programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) or Grantor ID No.

Various

93.433

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

69

Unmodified Opinion

Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None reported
Unmodified Opinion

Yes X No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Research and Development Cluster

ACL National Institute on Disability, Independent
Living, and Rehabilitation Research

$3,000,000

X Yes No



Cornell University
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

None noted.
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Cornell University
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.
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Cornell University
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Status
Year Ended June 30, 2019

2018 — 001 — Non-Compliance with Maximum Direct Loan Eligibility Requirements

Grantor: U.S. Department of Education

Program Name: Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Award Name: Federal Direct Loan Program

Award Year: Fiscal Year 2018

Award Number: Not applicable

CFDA Number: 84.268

Condition:

PwC reviewed a sample of 40 students from the Ithaca campus who received student financial assistance during the
fiscal year. One of the 40 received an aggregate of $33,000 in Federal Direct Subsidized and Federal Direct
Unsubsidized Loans ($2,000 in excess of the maximum aggregate loan limit for a dependent undergraduate student).
Of the $33,000 received, $25,500 was received in previous years and $7,500 was received in fiscal year 2018.

Status:

e  The Office of Financial Aid and Student Employment (FASE) completed a review of all 2017-18 NSLDS
aggregate loan limits and updated the PeopleSoft query secondary control for monitoring combined aggregate
over-awards.

o FASE also implemented system functionality that points to NSLDS data within PeopleSoft for monitoring
combined aggregate loan limits.

e An additional review of systems functionality and business processes is in progress. We continue to develop,
test and improve controls in PeopleSoft using NSLDS data through the transfer monitoring process and the use
of Financial Aid History files to inform a student’s total borrowing in relation to aggregate loan limits. This
requires monitoring for proper validation and our current estimate for full implementation and validation is
June 30, 2020.

2018 — 002 Non-Compliance with Timely and Accurate Student Enrollment Change Submissions to the
National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS) — Significant Deficiency

Grantor: U.S. Department of Education

Program Name: Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Award Names: Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants, Federal Perkins Loan Program, Federal Pell
Grant Program and Federal Direct Loan Program

Award Year: Fiscal Year 2018

Award Number: Not applicable

CFDA Numbers: 84.007, 84.038, 84.063 and 84.268
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Cornell University
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Status
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Condition:
PwC noted the following:

e In the summer of 2017, management determined that all students enrolled at the University’s Ithaca campus
were reported to NSLDS as full-time, regardless of their level of attendance (full-time, three-quarter-time, half-
time or less-than-half-time). Beginning in the spring 2018 semester, management updated the NSLDS reporting
process to include the appropriate level of attendance for each student. This was also noted in PwC’s testing as
PwC reviewed a sample of four students whose level of attendance (full-time, three-quarter-time, half-time or
less-than half-time) changed from the beginning of the spring 2018 semester to the end of the fiscal year and did
not have any exceptions.

e PwC reviewed a sample of 61 students enrolled at the University’s Ithaca campus who graduated or withdrew
from the University either prior to or after the student began attendance. Of the 61 students tested, two students
(one in Graduate School and one in Johnson Graduate School of Management) were reported to NSLDS either
inaccurately or untimely. Of the two students, one student was input using an incorrect effective date which
was reported to NSLDS 281 days late. One student, who had an accurate effective date, was reported to
NSLDS 286 days late. This is a repeat of the prior year finding (2017-004).

Status:

e The Office of the University Registrar (OUR) continues to utilize and improve upon the design and process
improvements described in the corrective action plan.

0 College registrars are submitting withdrawal inquiries to an OUR-monitored central ticketing system.

0 OUR continues to monitor graduation status reporting to NSLDS to ensure accurate and timely
reporting.

0 OUR loads enrollment status files from NSLDS into our student information system (PeopleSoft) and
has implemented an automated process to directly compare the compiled data from the two sources
(NSLDS and PeopleSoft) to identify any required corrections.

e  The first full term of enrollment reporting data will be Fall 2019, after which, OUR will assess
the need for additional control enhancements.

0 Automated notifications for withdrawal requests greater than 30 days and degrees posted after the
degree deadline have been implemented.

e The OUR policies and procedures manual was completed in March 2019 and is regularly updated as processes
are enhanced.

e  We continue to develop, test and improve controls such as electronic withdraw form, program calendars and

end to end validation of reported data. This requires monitoring for proper validation and our current estimate
for full implementation and validation is June 30, 2020.
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